71 Reerl < wéf'”fmf

CFL/@@J ZL fe

25 YEARS OF

CONNECTING
ADAPTING
EVOLVING

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn
mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

LLLLLLLLLL

OOOOOOOOOOOOOO




AT THE TOP OF AN

EVER-CHANGING
INDUSTRY

We exist to make more lives better
through connected technology.

By putting connectivity at the heart of our business
we are committed to helping people experience and

buy the best range of hardware, accessories, connections

and services to suit their individual needs

Where this annual report contains
forward-looking statements they
are made by the directors in good faith
based on the information avatlable

to them at the time of the appraoval of
ttis annual report These statements
should be treated with caution due to
the inherent risks and uncertainties
underlying any such forward-looking
information The Group cautions users
of this document that a number of
important factars could cavse actual
results to differ materizily from those
contained in any forward-looking
statements Such factors include but
are not limsted to those discussed
under the nisk management sections
on pages 1?7 and 24
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Highlights of the year

CARPHONE WAREHOUSE

s Pro forma Headline EBIT of £151m (2013 £132m)

e Full year ike-for-like revenue growth of 5 3%
(2013 4 6%)

e Launched award-winning tablet-based sales
tool Pin Point, driving customer satisfaction
and conversion

* Record-high customer recommendation
levels year-on-year
European Partnerships

» Store-in-store partnerships with Media-Markt
Saturn in the Netherlands and Harvey Norman
mn lreland

Connected World Services

e Preferred-partner agreement to run Samsung
Experience Stores across Europe

e Developed honeyBee platform with Accenture

VIRGIN MOBILE FRANGE

¢ Creditable performance in tough
trading environment

= Exclusiity agreement reached in May 2014
for the sale of Virgin Mohile France
to Numericable Group

GROUP EPS

e Headline EPS of 18 4p (2013 11 ép]
e Statutory EPS of 8 6p (2013 0 9p]

Group Headline diluted EPS pence*

18.1r

+68%
18.1
108
89 102
201 2012 2013 2014
* From continuing operations
Pro forma CPW EBIT Em
+14%
139 151
ng 128
20i1 2012 2013 2014
PERFORMANCE REVIEW
PAGES 20-24
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STRATEGIE REPORT
Business overview

CARPHONE WAREHOUSE GROUP

Founded by Sir Charles Dunstone in 1989, today Carphone Warehouse ("CPW")
is the largest independent multi-channel telecommunications retailer in Europe.

CPW specialises in mobile handsets, tablets and other connectled devices,
combining hardware with connections to create subsidised propositions
In recent years i1t has started to offer a range of managed services to third parties

OWN CHANNELS .

m
CPW has a range of store formats across Eurcpe, together 9

with well-developed online propositions, offering specialist and SWEDEN

independent advice in areas of product and service complexity IRELAND

GWN STORES 7

— Our own stores typically vary in size from 500 sq it to 1,500 sq t GERMANY
— Larger stores offer a broader range of products and services 145 1
PORTUGAL 48

3
FRANCHISE 157 NETHERLANDS 4

- Franchise stores operate in Mainland Eurepe under 3
the Phone House brand

— Lease held by franchisee
- Allows CPW to build scale with little or no upfront investment SPAIN

356
ONLINE oo
— Transactional websites in atl CPW s retail territories

— Supporis the retail business, allowing customers to research
products and find stores online

— Arange of anline brands alongside Carphone Warehouse
and Phone House including e2save and mobiles co uk in the UK
and Typhone in the Netherlands and Germany 1,732 Own stores 292 Franchise stores

DEALER

— Sale of mobile handsets to, and management of MNQ
cennections on behalf of smaller or non-specialist retailers
and distributors

— Our largest operation 1s tn Germany through our Mobite World
Distribution business

GEEK SQUAD

CPW also offers a range of services through the Geek Squad including

— technology support device set-up, data back-up and transfer
services, remote technical support from our highly trained
Geek Squad agents

— nsurance providing protection from loss theft or damage
to customers' devices, and

— repars largest in-house mobile phone repair faciity in the UK
and well-developed processes across Europe

D 2 Earphone Warehouse Group plc
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The business operates under the Carphone Warehouse brand in the UK and Ireland

140434 21931¥41S

and under the Phone House brand in the rest of Europe

Pro forma revenue Pro forma Headline EBIT

£3.3m | £191n

STORE-IN-STORE PARTNERSHIPS

Within its own store portfolio at 29 March 2014, CPW had 35
stores-in-stores [*SIS ), providing a specialist connected products
and services proposition on behalf of retailers with larger store
formats who enjoy significant footfall but who lack expertise in
the mabile field This cancept proved to be particularly successfut
in the US with Best Buy Mohite CPW aims to replicate ihe success
of such arrangements with other established retaslers in Europe,
providing further growth opportunities for the business

MANAGED SERVICES

In addition to the SIS mode!l, CPW has taken the opportunity

to leverage its retail expertise to provide retail services lo a
number of MNQs, cther service providers and, more recently,
manufacturers The business manages stores on behalf of

a number of European networks and in February 2014, CPW
announced a preferred-partner agreement to operate Samsung
Expenence Siores across Evrope At 29 March 2014 CPW's own
stores included 83 stores being managed on behalf of third parties

EXPANSION THROUGH PARTNERSHIPS
PAGEM

Connections

Stores Employees l

2,024 |..11,500

CONNECTED WORLD SERVICES

CPW has 25 years of experienca in the mobile industry During this ime,
the business has developed sophisticated IT systerns and operating
pracesses to help customers navigate through the extensive range
of network package plans and other options, and to facditate rapid
transactions |t has also evolved bespoke customer relatronship
management tools which enable services such as upgrade
rerninders, data storage and tarff checks

With the advancement of mobile and cloud technology and increasing
connectivity between peopte and devices, the business has identified
greater opportunities for its services As such, CPW has started to
package its core systems expertise and relationships into a range
of services This business unit is called Connected World Services

Within its own channels, CPW s already offering managed services
to @ number of businesses in Europe However, the development

of this growing range of services offers potential new business
opportunities cutside of CPW s existing ternitories

THIS GROWING RANGE OF SERVICES CONSISTS
QOF FOUR MAIN CATEGORIES

CONNECTED RETAILING

SERVIGES AND SUPPORT
HONEYBEE PLATFORM

GLOBAL PARTNERSHIPS |

CONNECTED WORLD SERVICES
PAGES 12-13

VIRGIN MOBILE FRANCE

Carphone Warehousa Group plc has a £6% nterest in

Virgin Mobile France [ VMFT) On 16 May 2014 the shareholders
of VMF enterad into an exclusmty agreement for the proposad
sale of 100% of VMF to Numanicable Group

JOINT VENTURES
PAGE 18
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman’s statement

IN SUMMARY

* Proposed all-share merger with Dixons Retail plc

* Strong set of results from CPW, despite challenging
conditions in parts of Mainland Europe

* Key strategic developments with Connected
World Services

2014 sees the 25th anniversary since Carphone Warehouse first
opened for business 1n 1989 Compantes have to constantly adapt
and ¢hange, and our history over the last 25 years has been an
incredible journey of identifying the challenges and cpportunities
in our fast-changing marketplace, navigating the former and taking
advantage of the latter | am immensely proud of our track record
of doing this It has kept our business moving forward, thriving
and generating great retucns for our employees, trading partners,
customers and shareholders All this s particularly relevant as we
plan taking the next step in our journey with the proposed merger
of equals with Dixons Retail ple

Financially, Carphone Warehouse has had a strong year We have
delivered on our guidance, increasing pro forma Headline EBIT from
£132m to £151m Improved pro forma EBIT, together with the benefits
of consclidating 100% of CPW Eurape, have resulted in a 59% increase
in our Headline EPS from 11 6p to 18 4p Given our overall performance,
financtal strength and prospects we are delighted to recommend

a final dividend of 4 00p per share, up 23% on the final dmdend for
2013 This s expected to be paid on 1 August 2014 to shareholders

on the record as of 11 July 2014 and will bring the full year dwidend
to 6 00p per share, up 20% on 2013

Strategically and operationally, we have also moved our business on
In our UK retail operations we have significantly enhanced our customer
service offering through introducing Pin Point a tablet-based sales
toel This has helped drive customer satisfaction to record levels
We are also nding the dynarmism of 4G The speed, range of new
devices, increased data usage and new 4G taniffs have all increased
our appeal to customers building on our long-standing reputation
for impartial advice and value

In the tough French marketplace, Virgin Mabile France has again
proved resilient, relaining value for its shareholders by focusing
on maintaing 1ts contract customer base and migrating this

GCOMPANIES HAVE TO CONSTANTLY

ADAPT AND CHANGE

IN ORDER TO GROW

Syr Charles Dunstaone Chairman

04 Carphone Warehouse Group ple
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s Entered exclusmty agreement for proposed
sale of Virgin Mobtle France

« Recommended final dividend of 4 00p per share
to be paid on 1 August 2014

onto a Full MVNO plaiferm For some while, we have signalled that,
potentially Virgin Mobile France could be for sale and, in May
this year together wath its other sharehalders, we announced an
exclusivity agreement for its proposed sale to Nurericabte Group

We have made some key strategic developments in our Connected
World Services business, including our preferred-pariner agreement
with Samsung to roll cut and manage 1ts stores across Europe
Connected World Services is our BZB business In effect exporting
our systems and expertise to other businesses wanting to build value
centred around connected devices and services We see considerable
potential, over time, for Connected World Services to extend Carphone
Warehouse into a global organisation, making low demands on capital
expenditure and management It is also at the heart of the rationale
for our proposed merger with Dixons Retail ple

While our marketplace and our business have seen incredible change
over the past 25 years, at iIts core, Carphone Warehouse 15 still daing
what it originatly set out to do - to prowide simple, independent impartral
advice over a bewilldering variety of devices networks and taniffs,
and in the process, to simplify complex technology and deliver its
potential to our customers As | look ahead, this wilt continue to be
the case with our proposed merger with Dixons Retail plc We know
the value that can be created by placing Carphone Warehouse stores
within their ouilets And we are proposing the merger just at the time
that we are seeing domestic devices and services of all kinds increasingly
becoming connected We have a deep respect for each other we share
a cammitment to customear service and we wish ta create a new
retatler for a new digital age | hope ta be able to report at aur annual
general meeting that you have separately approved the merger and

| will feel privileged to be leading the new combined group

Sir Charles Dunstone Chairman




Chief Executive Officer’s statement

IN SUMMARY
s Proforma Headline EBIT of £151m (2013 £132m)

s tike-for-like revenue growth of 5 3%, second
consecutive year of growth

» Significant gains in UK postpay market share,
building on growth n 2012-13

» Signed partnership agreements with Media-Markt
Saturn in the Netherlands, and Harvey Norman 1n Ireland

This has been a good year for Carghone Warehouse Financially,
we have delivered on the guidance we gave, operationally, we have
strengthened our business and growth platform, and strategically,
we are proposing a merger of equals with Dixans Retail plc to add
substantially to our growth potenttal going forward and to capture
the opportunities of a changing marketplace.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

We completed our buy-back of Best Buy s 50% share in CPW Europe
on 24 June 2013 Consequently, in arder to give a more meaningful
picture of our performance, we have provided the results for CPW

an a pro forma basis, as f CPW Europe had been 100% owned

by the Group for the whole of 2013-14 and the previous year

On a tap bine basis, total pro forma revenue dropped 2% to £3 282m
compared 10 £3,348m in 2012-13 This primarily reflects decreased
actmity in our dealer business which was particularly strong in the
prior year However our dealer business operates at low margins
and has little impact on the overall profitability of the business

Within this performance, we saw like-for-like revenue growth for
the full year of 5 3%, buitding on the 4 &% growth in the prior year,
predominantly driven by postpay growth in the UK and a continued
shift towards high-end smartphones which drive higher revenues

We delivered pro forma Headline EBIT of £151m [2013 £132m), an
increase of 14% year-on-year and in lina with the quidance we gave
ayear ago |mproved pro forma EBIT in CPW, along with the benahits
of consobidating 100% of CPW Europe from 26 June 2013 resulted in
an increase 1n Greup Headline net earnings from £55m to £102m
and an increase in Headline EPS to 18 4p [2013 11 6p]

PERFORMANGE REVIEW
PAGES 20-24

IT'S ALL ABOUT POSITIONING OUR
BUSINESS IN THIS CHANGING WORLD
AND ENSURING THAT WHAT WE DO IS

RELEVANT FOR
OUR CUSTOMERS

Andrew Harrison Chief Executive Officer

» Significant progress far Connected World Services,
most notably through preferred-partner agreement
with Samsung and the development of our omni-channel
platform, honeyBee, with Accenture

* Proposed all-share merger with Dixons Retail plc
expected to deliver synergies of £80m in the financial
year 2017-18

CPW

Our retail operation enjoyed a good year with hke-for-like revenue
growth of 5 3%, despite the continued sharp reduction in the prepay
market reflecting the regulatory cuts in mobile termination rates
and the consegquent withdrawal by network operators of subsidies
on prepay handsets While the fall in prepay connections reduced
overall total connections, both for us and for the market in general,
we held our prepay market share

More important for us has been the strength of our postpay sales
on which we have agatn grown our UK market share We have been
particularly encouraged by the uptake of 4G phones with 4G now a
major new gynarmic in the mobile marketplace The speed of 4G has
a sigmificant impact on data usage and the sale of 4G devices typically
brings with it additionat data packages the result of which 1s an
overall increase in the average revenue per user and therefore

the revenues we earn

4G 15 a very clear example of the way that technology 1s becoming
more complicated with anncreasingly wide choice of new dewvices
and 4G tariffs Qur custormners are looking for stmple, independent
and impartial advice to simplify technology for them and to ensure
they have the right solution for their needs providing this is our
primary purpose

During the last year we invested significantly in our brand and 1n our
distribution channels We introduced a new tablet-based assisted
sales tool called Pin Point This gives our custorners a personalised
experience, guiding themn through the overwhelming variety of devices,
networks, larffs and services to find the most suitable package

to meet their needs Pin Point has been rolled out throughout our
stores in the UK and has resulted in our highest levels of customer
satisfaction and customers witlingness to recommend us to others
Pin Paint was acknowledged through the BT Retail Week Technology
Awards, for the Customer Experience Technology Award of the year
for 2014
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive Officer’s statement continued

CPW continued

All retailers are affected by the growth of the internet and online
shopping We have adapted our business accordingly and are a true
multi-channel retailer The number of visitors to our website last
year was a record, i particular around Chnstmas Whilst the majority
of mobite shoppers conduct their research online, our retail channels
continue to remain the key part of the mobile phone purchase journey
Customers generally want to see and hold the device, ensure they
understand its functienality, transfer their contacts and leave the
store with their phone working

Our growth last year was the result of strong performances

1n countries such as the UK, treland and Spain, balanced by challenges
in some of our Mainland European markets In the Netherlands,
we experienced a weak consumer market, while in Germany, our
performance was affected by challenges in the wholesalte market
However, we are encouraged by other business ventures in both of
these markets, such as partnership opportunities in the Netherlands
and a growing connectiens services business in Germany

The exit process from the French retail market 1s now substantially
complete and we are delighted to have been able to transfer the
majority of our employees to third parties as part of this process
The costs of exit, together with French operating losses have been
recorded as non-Headline items, along with net costs associated
with the CPW Europe Acquisition and the amortisation of acquisition
intangibles which arose on the transaction Including these items,
statutory earmings for the year are £48m (2013 £4m)

EUROPEAN PARTNERSHIPS

Our European partnerships are helping us to gain scale and grow
value within our existing markets In the Netherlands we concluded
our partnership with Media-Markt Saturn and are on track to complete
the roll-out of cur stare-in-store {ormat across their estate by the
end of September 2014

In Germany we have made good progress developing our
relationship with the Metro Group and continue to work with
them on a more tailored B2B offering

In Ireland, we completed the roll-out of stores within all 12
Harvey Norman stores

Discussions continue with Media-Markt Saturn and with other
partners across targeted territories and we believe that these
partnerships offer a mutually beneficial way of expanding the

sales of connected products and services

CONNECTED WORLD SERVICES

Connected World Services is cur growing B2B business, which
aims to leverage our core expertise and systems o provide a range
of services to third parties, as sel out on pages 12 to 13 of this
annual report

Connected Warld Services was established around 18 months ago
and has made real progress during the year In partnership with
Accenture, we have developed our omni-channel platform, honeySee
We have been extremely encouraged by the initial response from
manufacturers networks and retailers across the globe to the wide
range of expertise and services that CPW can provide We entered
into a preferred-partner agreement {o operate Samsung Experience
Stores in Europe, and we have now opened 33 Samsung stores

In seven countries

Over time we see Connected World Services as a means to take
Carphone Warehouse global n a low-risk way, with lrmited
demands on capital expenditure

06 Carphane Wareghouse Group ple
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VIRGIN MOBILE FRANCE

In a very tough French marketplace, Virgin Mobile France delivered
a restlient performance, substantially maintaining its contract
customer base and continuing to migrate thts base onto its Full
MVNO platform This reflects extremely well on the quality and
commitment of our French management teamn

It was clear to us, however, that Virgin Mobile France s future would
be best served by being part of a larger organisation Subseguent to
the year end, in May, we and our joint venture partner, Yirgin Group,
together with management shareholders, announced an exclusmity
agreement for the sale of Virgin Mobile France to Numenicable Group

PROPOSED MERGER

0n 15 May 2014, we announced our proposal to merge with Dixans
Retail plc The relevant shareholder decuments will be made available
to shareholders for the general meeting to be held an 17 July 2014
Subject to sharehalder approval, this merger is expected to cemplete
in August 2014

This 1s a merger of equals, a merger of complementary organisations
and a merger for growth It anticipates the ways in which our
marketplace is converging and changing and it positions us to be
ahte to take advantage of this Hardware innovation mobite broadband
developments such as 4G, content evolution and cloud-based storage
have advanced at a rapid pace and are converging to create a
phenomenocn known as the Internet of Things Having access to the
Internet of Things, including all the services needed to get working and
stay working, ¢creates a powerful and competling story far our customers

Coming together will give us greater scale and reach, enabling us
to invest more efficiently In our systems, employees and customer
preposition, and enhancing our combined relevance for our
suppliers and network operators alike

We believe that the combined group will be able to achieve integrated
mobile retailing and procurement synergies, together with cost savings,
of at least £80rn on a recurring basis, which are expected to be delivered
in full in the financral year 2017-18

Lastly this 1s a story about growth We see real opportunities to tap
Into a services market that we feel 1s ripe with potential Both of our
businesses have growng services platferms and the propesed merger
will enhance opportunities to develop this further for consumers
and businesses We are the leading independent European previder
of connectivity, and Dixons Retail plc s a leading European retailer
of electrical products Both of us share a3 commitment to customer
service and impart:al advice Put us together and we create a new
digutal retailer for a new digital age

OUTLOOK

We have worked incredibly hard over the past year focusing on our
customer proposition Improving cur operational excellence, driving
4G penetratien, forging new partnerships in Eurcpe with leading
retallers and developing cur Connected World Services business

| believe all this provides us with signsficant petential for growth
over the future years

We currently face and continue to expect challenges in Mainland
Europe, but our outlook remains positive

The hustory of Carphone Warehouse has been anticipating change
and positioning the business to take advantage of this change The
changes we see in the marketplace offer considerable opportunities to
create value for our employees, our customers our partners and our
shareholders From a position of strength, we are planning to take
advantage of these changes through our propesed merger

Andrew Harrison Chief Executive Officer




Business evolution

CELEBRATING 25 YEARS

1989 g?ruggae?ls: Dunstone

initrat Public Offering on
the main market of the
tondon Stock Exchange

200

First store opened
in Marylebone

199

Launch of TalkTalk,
a2 new residential fixed
line service provider

200

SEE MORE ONLINE
WWW.CPWPLC.COM/ABOUT-US/HISTORY/

First branches opened
In Mainland Europe

199

Launched Best Buy Mobile
in collaberation with Best Buy

200

2“08 Best Buy acquired 50% of the
Group s retail and distribution
business for £1088bn

2010 Demerger of TalkTalk as 201 3 Acquisition of Best Buy s
separately listed group 50% interest in the Group for
g p

net consideration of £471m

The Group has a long history of retail and customer service awards Qver the tast year alone,

it has received awards from Mobite News for Best Large High Street Retailer’ and Best Airtime
Distrbutor’ It received the Best High Street Retailer award at the uSwitch com mobile awards
in Novernber 2013 The Group came first in the Retailers - Specialist category of Britain's Most
Admired Compantes 2013 and also received a 5 star rating from Defagto for its Geek Squad
service, for the third year running

Continued progress to transform the business...

CONNECTING ADAPTING

SCLUTIONS FOR A CONNEGTED WORLD PARTNERSHIPS AKD MARAGED SERVIGES
PAGES 03-09 PAGES 10-11

EVOLVING

GONNECTED WORLD SERVICES
PAGES 12-13
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STRATEGIC REFORT
Business evolution Connecting

SOLUTIONS FOR A CONNECTED WORLD

For the last 25 years Carphone Warehouse has been committed to making
maobhile technology available and accessible to everyone.

Innovation in mobile technology has transformed our lives - the way we bank,
shap, socialise and so much mere

INDEPENDENT, IMPARTIAL, EXPERT ADVICE
SUPPORT THROUGH THE LIFE OF THE DEVICE
BEST POSSIBLE CHOICE OF DEVICES AND NETWORKS

WE ARE UNIQUELY PLACED TO KEEP CUSTOMERS

CONNECTED

O 8 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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We have adapted and evolved our retait
offering to accommodate customers

changing needs We recognise that we have CUNNEGTW"Y
the opportunity ta connect with customers

using multiple channels We aim to offer Is AT THE HEART
a consistent and high-quality expenience ﬂF WHAT WE Dﬂ

across all our channels - contact centres,
retail outlets and online alike

CHANNELS

Our websites are the most visited
touch-paints for our Brand and the

CONTACT CENTRES begmning of the journey far most
customers While we have invested to
provide a truly multi-channel offering,

RETAIL STORES customers continue to vatue the
advice available within stores, given
the complexity of the technology

WEBSITES available, and the opportuarty to
ohtain technical support through
MOBILE SITES the business’ Geek Squad service.

BELIVERY SUPPORT

CLICK AND COLLECT GEEK SQUAD

FREE NEXT DAY INSURANCE
FREE NOMINATED DAY TECH SUPPORT
DELIVERY TRACKING REPAIRS

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Business evolution Adapting

UNDERSTANDING OUR CUSTOMERS

We recognise that a consistent offering across all channels provides
a seamless multi-channel experience for our customers.

Personalisation 1s the next step in retail evolution We've built a revolutionary
tablet-based assisted sales tool called Pin Point

PERSONALISED
DEAL

We know that personalisation 1s
the future of custormer experience
Using tablets 1n store, we ask
customers a few simple questions
to help them find the right deal
Pin Point helps us add value for
custemers through personatlisation

'I O Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014

NETWORK
COVERAGE CHECKER

With Pin Point, we can campare
network coverage for customers
Far example, using home and work
postcodes, the network coverage
checker compares networks to
determine which one provides

{he best coverage, across

36 and 4G networks

5,000 expertly trained
cotleagues are using the
Pin Point sales tool across
the whole of our UK estate

FUTURE-
PROOFING

For cusiomers looking to upgrade
to 4G for the first time, it can be
diffrcult working out how much data
will be needed Pin Point helps our
customers assess their future usage,
using simple tllustrations, helping
us to future-proof customer deals




PARTNERSHIPS AND MANAGED SERVICES

CPW has taken the opportunity to leverage its retail expertise to build store-in-store
({"S1S™) partnerships and provide other retail services, making these services
available to retailers, MNOs and manufacturers.

We have SIS partnerships in the Netherlands and Ireland, and currently run stores
on behalf of MNQs in Spain, Portugal and Germany

PROVEN SUCCESS
THROUGH BEST
BUY MOBILE

Best Buy Mobile was launched

In 2007 as a partnership with Best
Buy, through which CPW received
a profit share Stores, based on
the Carghone Warehouse model,
were rolled out across Best Buy's
Big Box' stores, aswelt as on a
stand-alone basis in the US The
venture was a resounding success
and in January 2012 the Group
disposed of its interest in Best Buy
Mobile for a total consideration
of £838m

CPW aims to replicate the
success of the Best Buy Mobile
SIS concept, by providing a
specialist connected products
and services proposttion on
behalf of retailers with larger
store formats, who enjoy
significant footfall but who lack
expertise 1n the mabite field

Carphone Warehouse Group plc ’l "I
Annual Report 2814
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Business evolution Evolving

CONNECTED WORLD SERVICES (“cws")

CWS aims to leverage the specialist skills, operating processes and technology
of the business to provide services to third parties looking to develop their own

connected world solutions.

CWS already provides managed services to a number of businesses and is actively
exploring further opportunities within existing markets and elsewhere

GCONNECTED RETAILING
IS A COMPLICATED BUSINESS...

Selling cannected devices requires a range of experience and processes that many retailers find impossible
to buitld It can be an expensive, complicated and difficult process

SULTE CF SERVICES

CONNECTED
RETAILING

SERVICES
AND SUPPORT

Partner AVIVA

HONEYBEE
PLATFORM

>
Partner accenture

GLOBAL
PARTNERSHIPS

’I 2 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014

Multi-channel consultancy and
support for connected product and
service propasitions, ranging from
specific managed services through
to partnerships on the Best Buy
Mobile model

Prowision of insurance services,
inctuding policy administration,
claims administration and fulfilment,
and provision of technical support
solutions for connected devices

Provisien of technology platforms
and managed services to support
complex transactions, connections
to service providers and customer
relationship management

Leverages CPW s scale and
commercial relationships,
epabling partner retailers to
source hardware and to access
netwark operator services

WHY SO COMPLICATED?

— MNO and supplier relationships

= Complex propositions

— Exposure to fraud

= Comgplex remuneration structures
= Need for highly trained consultants

— Regulation
— Exposure to fraud
— Repairs manufacturer accreditation

— Capital intenswve

— Requires interfaces to networks
= Tracking serialised stock

— Credit checking

— Scale 15 key to buying power
=~ Short supply of popular devices
— Rapid product cycles




EXAMPLE SERVICES

— Sales processes and proposition design
— Store format design

— Employee blueprint and reward model
— Custorner fulfilment and loyalty

— Insurance and claims management
— Trade-ins

= Repans

= Delivery

— Remote technical support

— honeyBee assisted sales tool

— Activation services

— Web soluticns

— Data security suite

— Customer relationship management

— Commercial relationshups
— Scale advantages
— Purchasing benefits

EXISTING CLIENTS

CONNECTED

WORLD SERVICES

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Business model

SIMPLIFYING

COMPLEX TECHNOLOGY FOR ;
CUSTOMERS AND BUSINESSES

For 25 years we have bheen offering the best choice, advice, price and support for
our customers. Our retailing, systems and process expertise provides a strong

platform for growth.

CPW is commutted to prioritising long-term value creation for shareholders

HOW WE ADD VALUE ®>

)
N o¥
— Partnering with device $ $ﬂ§\
manufacturers and
o

major networks

— Creating ongoing
mutual economic
benefits

GNEUVES BEMgp

CUSTOMER
PROPOSITION

— Committed to delivering value
far our customers

— Optimal supplier terms

s — Ability to leverage
existing cost base
and explore new
opportunities at home
and ahroad Inturn
driving scale

— Independent, impartial, expert advice

— Widest choice of devices connections
and services

— Committed to investing
In our people

- Driven entrepreneurial
management team

%
/3

UNIQUE RETAILER WITH
PLATFORM FOR GROWTH

CPW has an unusual revenue model compared to traditional retailers
A significant proportion of our revenue 1s derived from MNOs for
delivering new custorners and upgrades The business generally
receives a share of future customer revenues, and/er commissions,
which are typically used to subsidise the sales values of a range of
connected devices Other revenue streams include value-enhancing
products such as accessories, insurance and assurance products

Adapting to changing market dynarmics, CPW has realised the potential
ta grow new revenue streams by leveraging its unique relationships
core systerns and expertise to provide a range of managed services to
businesses including MNGOs other service providers and manufacturers

T4

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014

— Truly multi-channel offering

— Subsidised and
Innavative propositions

= Trusted brand

P &
,o( WWhegrep TepunS

— Experts i our field

= Unique systems and core
Cny capabilities that are
\‘\{, difficult to imitate
&

LONG-TERM APPROACH T0
CREATE SHAREHOLDER VALUE

Qver the past 25 years, we have built the largest independent
telecommunications retailer in Eurepe, aitracting consumers and
businesses looking for simple, :mpartial, expert advice about the
complexities of mobile technology Qur leng-standing purpose

15 to halp customers understand technology

Our long-term approach to (nvesting creates a sustainable
opportunity to continue to add value for a wide range of stakeholders,
fram our custemers, through empleyees, communities suppliers,
partners, and fundamentally, for our shareholders



Marketplace

ADAPTING TO AN
EVOLVING

MARKET

DEVICE INNOVATION

Mobile devices have been transformed in recent years by the
developrnent of smartphone technology evolving rapidly frem simple
devices used te make and receive calls, to sophisticated hardware with
advanced computing functionality The market has seen continuous
innovation with ever-improving processing speeds and ever-evolving
functicnality, and increasing choice of screen sizes Alengside competition
between manufacturers of devices, competition has also developed
between operating systers providing broader choice for customers and
rmaking CPW s expert and impartial proposition particularly relevant

NETWORK EVOLUTION

In recent years, Western European MNOQOs have been subject

to significant regulatory intervention, particularly on charges to
terminate calils from other network operators and onnternational
roaming ¢harges, causing downward pressure cn MNO ARPUs
Mabile termination rate cuts have caused MiNOs to reduce subsidies
on prepay phones mzaking them rncreasingly more expensive for
consumers, causing a shift towards postpay In scme markets

MNOs across Western Europe have been investing significantly in

1n the development of their 4G network infrastructures 4G technology
facilitates much faster downloads, providing cormparable levels of
perfermance to many Wi-F1 networks, and providing @ much better
platform for streaming than 3G infrastructure As 4G sarvices have been
rolled out MNOs have seen significantly increased levels of data usage,
a trend which 1s expected to increase as network guality continues to
improve, and more and more devices become capable of communicating
with one another In most of the markets in which CPW operates, MNOs
are still in the process of rolling out thewr 4G networks with natronwide
coverage expacted in the UK by the end of 2015 After several years of
downward pressure on ARPUs, caused by weak consumer confidence,
regulatary intervention and competition increased data usage provides
opportumities for MNOs to (ncrease customer ARPU

REPLACEMENT CYCLE

Fixed mimimum terr mobtle phone centracts {typically 24 months]
help to drive the replacement cycle of connected devices supporied
by the device innovation ncted above

To benefit tram 4G services customers nead 4G-enabled devices
and as 46 network coverage impraves in Western Euraope, there
1s 2n Iincentive for custamers to upgrade their services, providing
a stimulus to the replacemant cycle

14043y J{931YYULS

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Mcbile phones have become an integral part of customers lives and
are considered to be less discretionary than other consumer electronics
However, the economic backdrop and a challenging consumer
environment can determine the rate at which consurners are witling

to upgrade their handsets and their averaga monthly spend

ONLINE

Aswith most markets the internet plays an increasingly important part
of customers purchasing Journey The majority of customers research
online before making a purchase However, unlike many multi-channel
retailers, for whom online channels now represents a significant
portion of sales, online sales cantinue to represent between 10%
and 15% of total retail sales for CPW Customers continue to value
the advice available within stores gwven the complexity of the
technology available, the nature of entering inte mobile contracts,
and the opportunity to obtain technical suppert through the
business Geek Squad service

INTERNET OF THINGS

Developmentis in mobile broadband technclogy such as 4G will
continue to transform lives and current imdustry developments
suggest that everyday abjects will increasingly be connected to the
internet, described as the Internet of Things The Internet of Things
means that people can manage home security or heating, or domestic
electronics such as TVs fridges home entertainment systems and
washing machines, through thewr smartphones This phenomenon
will not only drive mobile data growth, but also machine-to-machine
data grewth With smartphones at the heart of this evolution of
consumer electronic devices, we betieve that CPW 1s well placed

to take advantage of this evolutian
5'1 0)(

faster data speeds,
compared to 3G

3-3x

increase n data
usage by 4G users

98-

coverage n the UK
during 2015

Source Company estimates
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and KPls

OBJECTIVES 2013-14 ACHIEVEMENTS
OWNERSHIP OF THE CONNECTED WORLD
Provide outstanding — Launched a tablet-based sales tool called Pin Point, which enables our colleagues

In store to explore our customers needs around complex areas such as data usage,
4G coverage and how to future-proof tarffs

= Invested in nationwide training and engagement events for all our UK colleagues
to develop a world-class assisted sales experience for our customers

— Launched the Geek Squad quick-start self-help programme on our GeekSquad co uk
website, offering free technology advice

= Developed a number of new Insurance propositions for our customers, including
multi-paticy discounts

— Continued to improve customer service, achieving record customer recommendation
scores for the year

value and simplify
complex areas of
connected technology
for our customers

Enhance multi-channel — Delivered record market share gains in online new subscrptions and upgrades in the UK
platforms to improve — Suceessiul launch of ontine live-chat functionality
customer choice — Improved and adapted online and in-store customer journeys

= Focused on sotal medra and m-commerce to drive traific and improve conversion

CONTINUE TO BUILD SCGALE

Leverage global scale — BDelivered significant postpay market share gains in the UK

to build strategic — Continued to develop franchise and managed services businesses which generally require
relationships with key bimited capital investment

suppliers and partners = Entered into global purchasing agreement with major Ukrainian retailer, Allo

Replicate success — Stgned store-1n-store [ SIS | agreement wath Media-Markt Saturn in the Netherlands,
of Best Buy Mohile in for approximately 40 stores, as well as an onlne partnership with Redceon, its online brand

the US by partnering — Signed SIS partnership agreement with Harvey Norman in Ireland for 12 stores

with retailers in
target markets

CONTINUE TO DEVELOP CONNECTED WORLD SERVICES

Leverage expertise — Signed a preferred-partner agreement to run Samsung Experience Stores

and systems capabilities across Europe
to provide managed — Continued to develop ormnni-channel platform honeyBee with Accenture

services to third parties — Continved to develop third party service agreements with RBS for the provision
of mchile phone insurance, and with TalkTalk and British Gas for the provision
of technical support services

— Signed msurance sales and administration agreement with fnnov8 in France

1 6 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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GOING FORWARD

= Canbinue to construct innovative propositions ané to find
new ways to subsidise expensive praducts

— Focus on improved functionality and wider deployment
of Pin Point sales tool

— Develop best-in-class merchandising opportunities for both
manufacturers and networks, allowing them to demonstrate
their full range of products and services, including end-to-end
sofutions for customers

— Continue to enhance the online journey across mobile,
tablet and desktop versions of the websites

— Provide a research experience that drives customers into
our stores, providing a seamless multi-channel experience

— Continue to invest in online functionality, improving the
customer research Jjourney

— Continue to reinvest the benefits of scale in the customer
proposition, to diive further growth

— Focus on the development of partnerships to leverage
CPW s scale and commercial refationships

— Seek to conclude further partnerships with retailers
In existing markets

— Continue to butld client base far the provisian of retail
managed services 1nsurance sarvices, tachnalogy platforms
and global partnerships

— Continue to develop honeyBee to enable deployment
ta third parties

— Focus on developing retail partnerships in target markets
outside our existing retall footprint

KPIs

NET PROMOTER SCORE (“NPS")

NP3 allows CPW to gauge customer

satisfaclion The chart below shows quarierly
NPS measured aganst Q1 2012-13 CPW

achieved record levels of NPS for Q4 2013-14
NPS IMPROVEMENT AGAINST €1 2012-13

5
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CONNECTIONS (M)

Continued decline caused by weak prepay
market which in the UK was down ¢ 25%
year-cn year This has had a positive impact
on postpay mix for the Group

INCLUDES FRANCHISE CONNECTIONS
m POSTPAY MIX 1%)]
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Joint ventures

VIRGIN MOBILE FRANCE

In May 2014 the shareholders of Virgin Mobile France entered into an exclusivity
agreement for its sale to Numericable Group.
Founded in 2006, Virgin Mobile France 1s the largest MVNO in the French market,

with a reputation for innovation and high-quality customer service, offering a wide
range of tariffs and contract options, catering for a broad range of customer needs

£

18

Revenue

INNOVATIVE,
DIFFERENTIATED
AND COMPETITIVE
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Subscribers

346u! 1.7n

OVERVIEW

OWNERSHIP

A joint venture with Virgin Group {46% eachl, with remaining
interests (8%} held by management Virgin Group was founded

by entrepreneur Sir Richard Branson and operaies across a range
of sectors globally

MANAGEMENT STRUCGTURE

Experienced management team, led by chairman Geoffroy Roux de
Bezieux and chief executive officer Pascal Rialland Geoffroy joined
Carphone Warehouse in 1995 and was a member of the Old Carphone
Warehouse board before leaving to set up this venture, in which he
1s also a minority shareholder Pascal jomned Virgin Mobile France in
2010 having previously worked at SAP, SFR and Xerox A shareholder
board meets formally cn a regular basis to agree strategy and
review perfarmance

FUNDING

Funded primarily through shareholder loans, which are provided
in propartion to each party s shareholding, supplemented by a third
party finance lease facility

DISTRIBUTION

Strong distribution netwaork with over 2,000 third party handset
sales points, some 37,000 distribution points for prepay vouchers
a portfolia of Virgin Mobite branded stores, and a well-established
ontine platform

NETWORK RELATIONSHIPS

Strong partnerships with Orange, SFR and more recently Bouygues
Telecom, all of which provide netwerk infrastructure for the business
Now offering 4G services on bath the SFR and Bouygues networks

FULL MVNO

The business has invested in the development of a Full MYNO
infrastructure which enables it to participate more fully in customer
revenue streams, including termimation revenues and to reduce
its costs [t alsa provides additronal strategic fleximlity by giving
the business greater control of Its customers The business had
77% of its customers on this infrastructure at March 2014



Risk management

CPW has a well-established risk management function, which monitors

the key risks facing the business.

The table below summarises the most materal risks identified and the ways

in which the business seeks to mitigate them

RISK

CONSUMER ENVIRONMENT

CPW s major markets have experienced economic

headwinds since 2009 There stdll remains some uncertainty
around the economuc outlook for some markets The products
and services offered by CPW may be viewed as discretionary,
and consequently affected by consumer confidence

DEPENDENCE ON KEY SUPPLIERS AND

CPW s principal revenue streams are from MNOs Changes
in MNO strategies in relation to CPW or more generally,
and/or their perfoermance could materially affect the
revenues and profits of the business

CPW s dependent on relationships with key suppliers to source
products on which avaitability may be limited

COMPETITION

CPW operates in markets that are highly competitive and
competiter behaviour may damage revenues and margins

In some markets CPW may not have the scale required
ta compete effectively against increased cempetition

REGULATION

CPW s subject to regulation in a number of areas, including
Insurance operatigns, information security and customer

management Non-compliance with regulation could result
in financial loss and/or reputational damage to the business

OPERATIONS

CPW s dependent on internal and external IT systems
which cauld fail or ba unable to keep pace with the needs
of the business

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

A matenal part of CPW s activities and earrungs are
denominated in Euros giving rise to exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations

MITIGATION

CPW continues to focus on strong cost control to try to ensure
that it 1s well positioned to deal with an uncertain enwironment

CUSTOMERS

CPW prioritises commercial arrangements that are closely
atigned with the interests of MNOs and focuses on high-value
segments to help drive econamic vatue for the networks

CPW seeks to increase and leverage the scale of its operations
to support strategic relationships

The business has sought to differentrate itself through
innovative propositrens, high quality customer service,
and a good supply of scarce products

The business ts working to build partnerships with other retaiters
in certain territories in order to achieve additional scale

The business has internal committees and control structures
to manage these requiremnents to ensure appropriate
compliance and to react swiftly should 1ssues arise

A significant investment has been made over recent years in the
IT infrastructure of the business supporied by testing processes
and engoing business continuity planning

CPW mitigates the risk of being dependent on cutsourced IT
systems by partnering with tier 1 application and infrastructure
providers with best-in-class credentials whilst also retaining
key tntaellectual property and know-how 1n-house

The business may hedge a proportion of such earnings
to provida certainty of their value

Carphone Warehouse Group plc 'I 9
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Performance review

THE BUSINESS DELIVERED ITS

EARNINGS TARGET,

DESPITE MARKET CHALLENGES

Niget Langstaff Chief Financial Officer .

IN SUMMARY

¢ 59% growth in Headline EPS, e French exit process substantially complete
following CPW Eurcpe Acgquisition

Strong operating cash flow

e 20% growth in annual dividend to 6 G0p

CPW

HEADLINE INCOME STATEMENT [PRO FORMA BASIS]*
2014 2013
£m £m
THIS PERFORMANCE REVIEW COVERS: Revenue 282 9348
Gross margin 837 835
= CPW the Group s wholly owned businesses Gross margn % 25 59% 24 %
including, since 24 June 2013, CPW Europe which Aperat (636) (627]

prior to this date had been a 50% joint venture CPW peraling expenses

results are shown on a pro forma basis, as though EBITDA** 201 208
CPW Europe had been 100% owned by the Group Depreciation and amortisation (50 (76)
throughout the current and prior periods, to enable EBIT 151 132
year-on-year comparison EBIT % 4 6% 39%
= Virgin Mobile France the Group s 46% interest Interest (18] {7
in a joint venture with Virgin Group, which is now PBT 133 175
classtfied as a discontinued operation Tax (30] (26]
= Group results covering the Headline and statutory PAT 103 99

performance of the Group as a whole, reflecting the
CPW Europe Acquisition as it 1s reported 1n the
Group s income statement and other financials

* Prior year Headline results have been restated to exclude the results of
the Group s French reta:l business following the decision to exit this market
This business generated revenues of E357m and EBIT of £8m i the prior
year Current year losses assoctiated with the French business during the
exit programme details of which are provided within Group results below
are similarly excluded from Meadline results and KPls For further details
see note 4 to the Group hinancial statements

** Pro farma Headline EBITDA includes the unwinding of discounts for the time

value of maney on network commissions receivable over the Life of the customer
This unwind had a value of £9m in the year [2013 €9m] and 15 treated as
interest income in the Group s non-pro forma Headline and statutory results

PRO FORMA RESULTS
Ravenue EBIT PBT Revenue EBIT PBT
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 013
£€m £m £m £m £m £m
Headline results 2,505 136 127 1t 51 53
Share of results of joint ventures — (3 {3] - {48) (48]
CPW Europe joint venture [see note 24) 777 12 9 3,337 129 120
Unwind of discounis on network commissions recewable*** - 6 - — - -
Pro forma results 3,282 151 133 3,348 132 125

== As explained i note 24 CPW Europe Heacline EBIT includes the unwinding of discounts for the ime value of money on netwark comrussions receivable over
the bife of the custemer In the period since the CPW Europe Acquisition the Group has reflected such discounts in the inceme statement within interest income
The discounts which have avalue of £6min this period have been reclassified in pro for ma resulls fer consistency with CPW Europe presentation

20
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CPW generated revenues of £3 282m, a decrease of 2 0% year-on-year
2013 £3,348m) principally due to reduced revenues in our dealer
business, which operates at very low margins and therefore has a
limited impact on overall profitablity These reductions were partially
offset by strong like-for-like revenue growth in our retail and online
channels and a strengthening of the Euro year-on-year

Full year like-for-like revenue growth was 3 3%, a second consecutive
year of streng momentum, again driven by postpay growth in our UK
business which continued to deliver year-on-year market share
gains in this category

We were encouraged by customer take-up of 4G services as network
infrastructure was rolled out more widely across the UK market
during the year The sigmticantly improved network quality and
download speeds have encouraged customers to take richer data
packages, which in turn drive increases in monthty line rentat Our
executronal focus remains strong with our tablet-based sales tool,
Pin Paint continuing to drive custorner satisfaction and conversion
to the benefit of customers, network operators and ourselves

Qutside the UK, the business has made good progress on improving
its critical mass through partnerships and we continue to focus on
exporting the UK business proven operational excellence In the
Netherlands, a weakened consumer environment caused some
year-on-year deterioration in performance but we have made excellent
progress on our partnership with Media-Markt Saturn and expect
the roll-out of our proposition across their estate to be completed
by the middle of the forthcoming financial year We have also made
good progress with the Metro Group in Germany, with trals launching
early in the coming year and while performance was affected by
challenges in the German whotesale market our connections
aggregation business performed very strongly Elsewhere, we saw
a resitient performance n Spain, despite the challenging market
and consumer backdrep, and a strong perfoermance from our Irish
business, which launched a hughly successful partnership with
Harvey Nerman during the year

We have made good progress with Connected World Services continuing
to focus on bulding a pipeline for future growth and launched our
preferred supplier partnership with Samsung through which we
have now opened 33 Samsung Experience Stares in seven countrias

The declines experienced 1n the prepay market in recent years
continued reflecting reduced subsidies from network operators
follewing regulatory cuts 1n mobile termination rates and roaming
charges, in addition to the migration of prepay customers to postpay

As a result of continued weakness in the prepay segment although
we held our market share, connection volumes dropped year-cn-year
by & 4% from 8 9m ta 8 4m

CPW opened or re-sited 94 stores during the year and closed 130 stores,
ending the year with 2 024 stores of which 292 were {ranchise stores,
up frem 248 at March 2013 [all excluding France] Theincrease in
franchise stores primarily reflects growth in Spain, where we have
focused on using the successful franchise model to maintain scale
without the fixed costs of leasing our own slores The decrease In
our own stores also reflects net closures in Germany and Portugal

LIKE-FOR-LIKE

Like-for-like revenue compares year-on-year revenue generaled from
sales in stara internat sales and telesales using constant exchange rates
New stores areinciuded once they have been open for a calendar year
and were Lherefore open both in the current and the comparative period
Closad stores arz excluded for any period of closura including periods

of refitling Ravenues (rem our dealer Connacled World Services and olher
non-retail businesses are excluded from Lke-for-like revenues Like-for-Uke
revenue 15 expressed on a pro forma basis as though CPW Europe had
been 100% owned by the Group throughout the reievant periods

CPW s overall gross margin increased year-an-year to £837m

(2013 £835m] while CPW s gross margin percentage increased by
40 basis points year-on-year to 25 5% (2013 24 9%!, largely reflecting
a lower proportion of low margin dealer revenues Gross margins on
the core business declined marginally, principally reflecting a higher
year-on-year weighting towards high-end handsets, which have a
lower gross margin percentage than other categeres, 1n the first
half of the year Average cash gross margins on our core categories
were slightly improved year-on-year, in part reflecting the effects
of higher value 4G customers, tagether with the continued benefit
of incremental revenues beyond the minimum contract periad

Operating expenses increased by 1 4% to €636m (2013 €£627m)
Savings from reduced numbers of our own stores, last year s
reorganisation programme and the unwinding of acquisttion lease
liabilities were more than offset by investment in the retail sales
Jjourney, partnerships and Connected World Services

Depreciation and amortisation dacreased to £50m (2013 £76m)
This reductien reflects the full year effect of outsourcing contracts,
through which responsibility for capital investment has transierred
to third parties, as noted last year Depreciation and amortisation
have also been affected, in Une with expectations by the acguisition
accounting exercise, which resulted :n the revaluation of CPW
Europe s non-current assets to fair value As a result of this, and
as previously noted the ongaing depreciation and amortisation
charge 15 closer to our anticipated ongoing tevel of capex in the
core businegss, before investment in Connacted World Services
and parinerships

CPW s pro forma Headline EBIT increased from £132m to E151m,
reflecting the factors noted above

The interest charge for tha year was £18m [2013 €7m] reflecting
additional borrowing costs following the CPW Eurcpe Acquisition

CPW had an effactive tax rate of 22% on Headline earnings (2013 2i%]
OPERATING CASH FLOW [PRO FORMA BASIS)*

2014 2013

£m im
Headline EBITDA* 201 208
Working capital (63 89
Capex (451 (61)
Operating free cash flow 73 236

*Headline EBITDA 15 presented on a pro forma basis for consistency
with earnings analysis

Headline EBITDA decreased year-on-year to £20im (2013 £208ml,
primarily reflecting the incremental investment 1n operating
expenses noted above

As anticipated the business saw some working capital absorption
during the year reflecting growth in our postpay volumes together
with an Increase In average revenues as 46 connections hecame a
mare significant proportion of sales during the year The business
recorded a working capital outflow of £63m, campared to an inflow
in the year to March 2013 of £89m

Capex spend Increased to £65m (2013 £61m), driven principally

by the IT investment in our honeyBee platform which wilt support
the continued development of both our retail and Connected World
Services businesses

Carphene Warehouse Group plc 2 '1
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Performance review continved

VIRGIN MOBILE FRANCE
HEADLINE INCOME STATEMENT (100% BASIS)*

CASH FLOW (100% BASIS)

2014 03 2014 2013
Em Em £m £€m
Revenue 346 385 EBITDA 12 20
EBITDA 13 20 Working capital ] 4
Depreciation and amortisation (10) 8]  Capex (12) (19]
EBIT 3 12 Operating free cash flow ] 5
EBIT % 0 7% 31% Other i2) (sl
Interest 41] (1Y Movementin netdebt (10) -
PBT 2 1t Opening net debt (40) (400
Tax 4] 4] Closing netdebt* (50 (40)
PAT 1 7 * Comprises shareholdar loans of E37m (2013 €42m) third party inanong
Group share — 3 of £15m {2013 rull and nat cash of £2m (2013 £2m)

* See note 24 to the Group financial statements

As announced in May 2014, we, alongside our fellow sharehotiders, have
entered inte an exclusvity agreement for the sale of Virgin Mobile France
to Numericable Group for an enterprise vatue of €325m During the
exclusmity pertod, the parties have carned out the necessary consultatrons
with employee work councits, the transaction 1s subject to regulatory
approval In Light of the disposal process, the business i1s now reporied
as a discontinued operation In the iIncome slatement and has been
recorded as an asset held for sale in the balance sheet at March 2014

Virgin Mobile France revenue fell by 10 2% year-on-year on an actual
currency basis to £344m {2013 £385m)] reflecuing a decline of 13 1%
at constant currency, partly offset by a strengthening of the Euro
year-on-year The reduction was broadly in line with expectations
and reflects market re-pricing in the past two years, driven by intense
market competition which has caused downward pressure on
ocutbound ARPU

The total custarmer base was down year-on-year at 1 67m customers
(2013 1 71m| with a 2 4% reduction in the posipay base to 1 32m
2013 135m]) and a 3 0% reduction in the prepay base to 035m
{2013 0 36m| The business continues to perform creditably despite
intense market competition, maintaining its focus en innovative
propositions and high quality customer service to provide differentiation

We have seen further good progress on migrating the base to a
Full MVNO infrastructure which enables the business o participate
more fully in custormer revenue streams, including termunation
revenues and to reduce its operating costs At the end of March
77% of the customer base was on this ptatferm, and substantiatly
mare of the base by value

Reduced revenue, together with competitive pressure on margins
resulted in a reduction in EBITDA to £13m {2013 £20m], while
increased depreciation and amortisation of £10m (2013 £8m}
reflects investment 10 the Full MYNO infrastructure

Interast was flat year-on-year at £1m [2013 £1m] and the tax charge
decreased to £1m (2013 £4m] reflecting the lower level of pre-tax
earnings described above

2 2 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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EBITDA decreased from £20m to £13m for the reasons described abave

As anticipated, after substantial working capital inflows over the
previous five years, the business recorded a working capital cutflow,
of £9m (2013 inflow of £4ml

Capex decreased year-cn-year to £12m (2013 £1%m| with the prior
year spend including investment in the Full MVNQ deferred from
the previous year

Other cash flows reflect interest and tax payments and the impact
of foreign exchange

GROUP RESULTS
HEADLINE INCOME STATEMENT

2014 7013

£m £m

EBIT
— Wholly owned operations 133 3
— Joint ventures 3 51
tnterest {9 2
PBT 127 56
Tax (25) 1l
PAT 102 55
EPS (basic} 18 4p 11 6p

EBIT {or wholly owned operations includes CPW Eurcpe

from 26 June 2013 In the period from 1 April 2013 to 26 June 2013
CPW Europe registered a post-tax profit of £5m, of which the Group s
share was £3m which is included in results from joint veniures The
Group s share of post-tax results from jeint ventures was £51m for
the year to March 2013

Net interest expense ef £9m (2013 incame of £2m)] reflects
addittonal borrowings following the CPW Europe Acquisition with
net income in the prior year principally reflecting interest on loans
to Virgin Mobile France




Atax charge of £25m arose in the year (2013 £1m] increasing in Line
with pre-tax profitability from wholly owned operations

Impraved pro forma Headline EBIT in CPW together with the benefits
of consatidating 100% of CPW Europe from 26 June 2013, resulted in

an tncrease 1n Group net earmings fram £55m to £102m This in turn
resulted in an increase in Headline EPS to 18 4p (2013 1 épl for the year

Since Virgin Mobile France 1s now treated as a discontinued operation,
the Group s share of its prior year post-tax profits are shown separately
in the income statement The Group s share of its post-tax profits

i the current year 1s nil Profit after tax for continuing operations

is therefore £102m (2013 £52mi and EPS on the same basis

1518 4p (2013 10 9pl

NON-HEADLINE ITEMS
2014 2013
Em Em
Headline PAT 102 55
French operations (in process of closure) (29} (45)
CPW Europe Acquisition (12] -
CPW Europe Reorganisation — 15)
Amorusation of acquisition intangibles 13) (M
Statutory PAT 48 4
Statutory EPS [basic} 8 6p 0 9p

Non-Headline ttems in the current year comprise losses associated
with our French retail business during our exit fromn that market,
together with the results of France for comparative periods, items
assoclated with the CPW Europe Acquisition and the amortisation
of acquisition intangibles

The exit process frem the French retail macket 1s now substantially
complete The large majonty of our own store leases have been
transferred to third parties and all of our franchise contracts have
been terminaled We have made every effort to mininmise redundancies
and have been able to transfer the majority of our employees

to third parties

The non-Headline resuits of France include the Group s post-tax share
of operating losses, asset write-dawns and provisions fer closure
costs, recorded prior to the CPW Europa Acquisition totalling £23m
Since the CPW Europe Acquisition the French business incurred
further EBIT losses of £6m

Naon-Headline items aiso include net costs of £13m in relation to the
CPW Europe Acquisition, against which a tax credit of £3m has been
recogmised These costs represent banking and professional fees on the
transaction and cash and non-cash charges associated with employee
incentive schemes This was partially offset by gains on the revaluation
of CPW Europe and on the disposal of the consideration shares
issued to Best Buy in retation to the CPW Europe Acquisition

The Group's results also include an amortisation charge of £16m,
against which a tax cradit of £3m has been recognised on acquisition
intangibles arising on the CPW Europe Acguisition

Statutary profit after tax including non-Headline items was £48m
(2013 £4m] and EPS an the samea basis increased from 09p to 8 ép

MOVEMENTS ON NET FUNDS [DEBT)*

2014 2013

£m Em
Operating free cash flow 73 236
CPW Europe Acquisition 1341) —
Net proceeds on shares 126 —
Distributions to shareholders (20) (54}
Other (541 [15)
Movement in net (debt) funds (248) 165
Cpening net [debt] funds 238 73
Closing net [debt) funds (13 238

* This summary aggregates the netfunds [debtl of the Group and CPW Europe
at the start of each year lo enable a complete understanding of cash flows

The operating free cash inflow was £73m [2013 £235m)] for the
reasons described in the CPW section an page 21

Cash outflows relating 1o the CPW Europe Acquisition were £361m,
comprising net upfront cash consideration of £341m cash costs of
Incentive schemes of £8m and banktng and professional fees of £12m

Net proceeds on shares comprise £103m raised threugh the placing
in April 2013 of 47m shares at & price of £2 22 per share and £23m
recewed n July 2013 on the dispaesal of the consideration shares
1ssued to Best Buy in respect of the CPW Europe Acquisition

Distributions to sharehotders of £30m (2013 £56m] represent
ordinary dividends, together with £33 in the prior year returned
to shareholders through the deferred capital eption of the B/C Share
Scheme following the disposal of Best Buy Maobile in January 2012

Other cash flows include operating losses and other cash extt costs
of £29m in relation to our French business Further cash costs in
the region of £19m, which have been pravided 1n full at March 2014
are anticipated in tha carming year principally in relation to final
redundancy payments and lease exit costs Within our previous
expeciations of net cash exit costs, we had anticipated the disposal

of our French insurance business However, it has become apparent
that our expertise in this area represents an opporturity to develop a
new Connected World Services business in France, focusing initially
on insurance, as we did 1n Belgium Since the year end, we have put
in place a team to develop this business, which has already secured
two third party clients and 1s actively engaged in tenders for other
business White the vatue of the run-off base, 1n the absence of the
retail infrastruciure to support it 1s clearly uncertain we will aim

to use | to grow the Connected World Services business as part

of continuing operations going forward

Other cash flows also include proceeds on the disposal of CPW
Europe s fixed Line operations in Switzerland and the disposat of
tha Group s remaining freehold in Acton, both of which completed
in April, offset by working capital movements in France tax and
interest payments, and the purchase of the Croup s own shares

Other cash flows in the prior period reflect exceptionat cash costs
associated with Best Buy UK, ofiset by EBITDA from the French
business, and other cash flows reported by the wholly owned Group
in that period
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Performance review contnued

BALANCE SHEET
2014 2013
£m Em
Goodwill 481 -
Other fixed assets 226 27
Joint ventures/assets held for sale " 537
Deferred consideration (50) -
Working capuital/other 220 {20
Net [debt] funds (8) 17
Net assets 880 661

As a result of the CPW Europe Acquisition, the Group has derecogrised
its interest In the CPW Europe joint venture and consolidated the
CPW Europe balance sheet in full with effect from 24 June 2(H3

CPW Europe s assets and liabilities have been consolidated at fair
value, resulting in certain differences to their book value at acquisitron
These differences relate princepally to property, plant and equipment,
operating intangible assets and property leases Property, ptant and
equipment and operating intangible assets were valued by third party
experts using a replacement market cost methodolegy Leases were
also valued by third party experts comparing actual rents to market
renls at acquisition resulting in the recognition of a labitity for leases
that are deemed to be over-rented At the seame ttme deferred
rent-free incentives and key money assets have been derecognised

Acquisition intangibles with a value of £46m, In relation to customer
relatronships and brands, were also recognised as part of the acquisition

Goodwill of £481m arose on the acquisittan reilecting the fact that
CPW Europe s value 1s based on its cash generating potential rather
than its existing assets, and the fact that many of its key strengths,
such as scale and expertise do not represent intangible assets

as defined by IFRS

DIVIDENDS

We are proposing a final dividend of 4 G0p per share taking the total
dividend for the year to 4 00p per share a 20% increase on the previous
year {2013 5G0p] The final dividend is subject to sharehalder approval

at the Cornpany s forthcomtng annual general meeting The ex-dividend
date 1s 9 July 2014 with a record date of 11 July 2014 and an intended
payment daie of 1 August 2014

OTHER KPIs
The KPls which are relevant for the Group as a whole are those
regarding shareholder returns and profitability

2014 2013
Headline KPIs
ROCE M1% 80%
EPS 18 4p 11 ép
Dividends for the year 6 00p 500p

The improvement in return on capital employed and EPS principally
reflects the CPW Europe Acquisition, which was accretive to the
Group s earnings

24 Carphone Warehouse Group ple
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The key risks of the wholly owned Group are set out on page 19

The Group does not exercise control over Virgin Mobile France

and therefore materizal decistons can only be made with the consent
of our joint venture partner Inability to reach consensus on such
decisions could have an adverse effect on the growth business and
financial results of this business Such risks are mitigated through
agreed strategies defined and documented processes and

reqular communicatien

The Group 1s also exposed to market risks such as interest rate
risk and foresgn currency risk Further details on such risks are
provided below

FINANCING AND TREASURY

The Group has a £650m term and revolving credit facility agreement
which matures in Apnit 2017 In additron, the Group also has everdraft
and uncommitted money market and factoring lines, at various banks
and in various currencies, all technically repayable on demand

ta assist with cash management efficiency

The Group s tnvestment policy for surplus cash 1s to maximise
investment returns whilst ensuring low risk and suitable liquidity

Cross-border funding 1s provided on an arm s length basis and
currency risk 1s fully hedged using foreign exchange swaps and
currency borrowings, as apprepriate, atall imes Other than this,
translational exposures are not hedged against movernents in exchange
rates and any such movaments are taken to reserves The Group

1s exposed to cross-border transactional trading commitments
including the purchase of stock and, where significant these
exposures are hedged at inception

As further descnbed n note 25 to the Group financial statements,
treasury policy permits the use of long-term dervative treasury products
for the managernent of currency and interest rate risk, and the Group s
exposures are manitored regularly and adjustments to levels of
hedging made as necessary The Group does not speculate inany
financial instruments

GOING CONCERN

A review of the Group s business activities together with the factors
likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are
set out within this Strategic Repert, including the risk management
section The financial posstion of the Group 1ts cash flows Lquidity
position and borrowing facilitres are shown in the balance sheet,
cash flow statement and accempanying notes to the Group

financial statemants

As descnbed in nate 1 to the Group financial statements in thair
consideration of going concern, the directors have reviewed the
future cash and profil forecasts of the Group which they consider
10 be based on prudent assumptions Based on these foracasts
the directors consider that 1t 1s appropriate to prepare the Group
frnancial statements on the going concern basis

Nrgel Langstaff Chief Financial Officer




Corporate responsibility

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

For 25 years, we have been connecting people, adapting and evolving the business

to add value for customers and shareholders.

Our corporate mission statement, 'We exist to make more lives better through
connected technology’, helps to define our role as a retailer in a unique position
to keep people connected and show them how connected technology can

change their lives

The Board 1s committed to operating a responsible
and ethical business We listen to our customers,
shareholders and employees, as well as local and
wider communities to understand their expectations
and ensure they are reflected in our business decisions

Our priorities are to engage employees with our visien

and values, to make a noticeable difference in the
communities in which we aperate, to minimise our
impact on the environment, and to work towards

a mare sustainable business for the future

HIGHLIGHTS 2013-14

During 2013-14 we set out to make even more lives
better through diverse aciviies New inthatives included

— headline spenscrship of the national Spring Cnline
campaign to tackle digital and social exclusian,
— the first Tablets for Scheols conference and

— a charity-driven fitness day to improve health
awarenass and raise funds for the Dallaglio
Foundation s Rugby for Change pragramme

Emma Soloron OBE, speaking at the National Digital Conference in June 2014

Lawrenca Dallaglio wilh youths involved in the Rugby for Change pregramme

Carphone Warehouse was the first company to get behind
our ife-enhancing Dallaglio Foundaiion s Rugby for Change
programme which aims to give young people the opporiunity
to make a mark en the werld by giving them the means and
inspiration to change thewr Lives for the better, engaging
them through the power of rugby and sport

Lawrence Dallaglio OBE, Rugby fer Change

Rt Hon David Btunkett MP and Andrew Harrison, Greup CEO of Earphone
Warehouse, at the (irst Tablets for Schoals conference in Novemnber 2013

We were delighted and privileged to have had

Carphone Warehouse s support for Spring Online 2013
Therr involvement was instrumental in enabling locat
organisations to provide digital learning opportunities for
communities Carphone Warehouse s in-store laster
events were a fantastic reitection of the organisatian s
vision of making people s lives better through technology

Emma Solomon O0BE, Managing Director, Digitat Unite
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Corporate responsibility conines

CHARITY

CONTRIBUTIONS TO GOOD CAUSES 2013-14

@ Get Connected
@ The Digital Unite Trust
Over ® Dallaglio Foundation
£850K ®via CPW Foundation
®via Give as You Earn

® Tablets for Schools

GET CONNECTED

This registered chanity 1s a free, confidential helpline for young
people under the age of 25 It provides a first point of contact for
those 1n need of help, emactional support or advice Volunteers are
trained to deal with young people in need using technology such
as text, emait, phene and webchat

As a charity partner, our direct support of Get Connected has helped

us indirectly touch the lives of thousands of young people through
the years During 2033-14 contributions from the business through
donatians, gifts-in-kind and fundraising events enabled Get Connected
to develop a unique service and significantly expand its reach with
a 53% increase In demand year-on-year The annual Get Connected
dinner and charity auction raised £217,000

FOR MORE INFORMATION
WWW.GETCONNECTED.ORG UK

Get Connected launched a new smartphone app dunng the year,
placing its service directly into the hands of young people in need

THE CARPHONE WAREHOUSE FOUNDATION

The Carphone Warehouse Foundation supports employees with
their own fundraising initratives Funded through our Take Back
handset recycling scheme the foundation matches employee
persanal fundraising efforts with grants of up to £200 per employae
perannum or up to £500 for employee team efforts

2 6 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014

DALLAGLIO FOUNDATION

In August we ran an event called Game Changing Day in support of
the Dallaglio Foundation s Rugby for Change chanty and its work
with disadvantaged young people Store colleagues were encouraged
to fundraise through teamn fun and games, and demonsirate fitness
apps and app-cessories to customers

As part of the event Carphone Warehouse executives held
a chanity tennis tournament at The Queens Club The event
raised a total of £66 000

Store colleagues on Game Changing Day

Support Centre colleagues on Game Changing Day

Senor executives taking part in a charity tenmis tournament at The Queen s Club




COMMUNITY

USING OUR

TECHNOLOGICAL
EXPERTISE

10 COMBAT DIGITAL
AND SOCIAL EXCLUSION

Our experts sharing technology tips during the Spring Online carnpaign

DIGITAL UNITE

CPW was the headline sponsor of Spring Online one of the
UK s largest digital inclusion campaigns and thereby played
arole in helping an estimated 20,000 people (maostly older
peoplel to use smartphones, tablets and the internet for the
first time Spring Online provided an engaging and innovative
opportunity o attract new customers and make a positive
impact on our communities Our spansorship fee went directly
to supporting dedicated digital taster events within communities
across the country Furthermore, our store colleagues
volunteered to host similar events in store, demanstrating

key functions such as how lo send an email or a text message
Our support of this initiative won a Carporate Engagement
2013 award for Best alignment with brand values through
partnership er collaboration as well as a Digital Impact
Sitver Award for community engagement

FOR MORE INFORMATION
WWW DIGITALUNIVE.GOM

The Tablets for Schocks conference in December was attended by over
400 school teachers from across the UK

TABLETS FOR SCHOOLS ("T4S")

T4S 1s a registered charity established by Carphone Warehouse
n partnership with Dixans Retail plc and other industry leaders
The charity 15 passionate about the positive effact of using tablets
in the classroorn and brings together teachers, industry teaders
and academics using robust and independent research on how
tablets can impact learning and attainment The T4S research and
expertise on how to set up and optimtse the use of tablets are
made freely available to teachers, schools and the Gavernmeant

, FOR MORE INFORMATION
WWW TABLETSFBRSCHOOLS ORG UK

SAFER INTERNET DAY

Organised by insafe Safer Internet Day is held once a year It aims
to promote safer and more responsible use of online technology
and mobile phones, especially amongst young peaple CPW helped
promote this important campaign, leveraging its relationships with
Get Connected and Tablets for Schools to help provide support for
young people against online threats such as cyber-bullying, harmful
online mevements and pornegraphy We also aim to support parents
and help them understand the risks that can be associated with
buying a child their first mobile phone, so as to help protact young
people from itlegal or anti-social activity In recent years we have
published our Guide to Mobile Salety , which is available on our
corporate website

NEIGHBOURLY

Carphone Warehouse i1s participating in the trial of the new sociat
netwark called Neighbourly, helping communsty projects and
charitable causes hughlight therr needs to comparies ready to help
financially or through volunteerning prograrnmes For 2013-14 we
pledged £25,000 and 2,500 volunteering hours to help support local
causes through Neighbourly

FOR MORE INFORMATION
WWW NEIGHBOURLY GOM
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STRATEGIC REPGRT
Corporate responsibility contnved

ENVIRONMENT
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS REPORTING

Recent reports have yet again highlighted the major impact cimate
change is expected {o have on our planet As a business we are fully
committed to mintmising the impact of our operations on the
environment During 2014 Carphone Warehouse was again awarded
the Carbon Saver Geld Standard for management and reduction

of carbon ermssions across the organisation

This year we report on greenhouse gas ermissions for the first time
in accerdance with the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Repert] Regulations 2013 Our greenhouse gas footprint
15 36,208 tonnes of COe Working closely with Energy Quote JHA,

our energy consultants, where practicabte and applicable, emisstons

include electricity, heat and cooling for cur use, aswell as
refrigerants use across our European territories

Reporting year 1 April 2013 - 29 March 2014

Baseline year The reporting year forms the baseline

for subsequent periods

Comparatives The current year 1s the {irst year to be
reported on using new methodology in
accordance with the mandatory reporting
requirements for greenhouse gas [ GHG )
emissions and as such there are no

comparatives for the current year

Methodology The methodclogy used io calculate
emissions 1s based on the Woarld
Business Council for Sustainabte
Development Greenhouse Gas

Protocol Standard Revised Edition

The operational control approach
was selected as the basis for
identifying ermissions that were
relevant fer reporting

Annual emissions assooated with the
Group s activities are expressed using
revenue as the intensity metnc

Intensity
metirc

Target &% raduction by March 2015
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SCOPE OF REPORTED EMISSIONS

As far as possible, emissions data has been reported for our
own stores and support centres in the United Kingdom, Spain,
the Netherlands, Germany, Portugal Sweden, Ireland and
France In line with the regulatory requirements, this report
includes emissions data for scope 1 and scope 2 only

TOTAL EMISSIONS BY TYPE

Farthe pertod 1 April 2013 - 29 March 2014 Tonnes of CO.e

— +Scopet 2 anﬂ
o
a2 Fuel combustion y
& and process
emissions
Total « Scope 2 33 4“8
36 208 Electricity, heat and y
¥ cooling purchased
TCO.e for own use
2 » [ntensity metric 14 I
Scope 2 Tonnes of CO,e =

per Lm of ravenue

USING TECHNOLOGY

TO MINIMISE
OUR IMPAGT

ON THE ENVIRONMENT

WASTE

Our bin free policy insupport and contact centres helps te ensure
that employees recycle their waste on site and 1s a contributing factor
to our 100% landhll-free status, which the bustness has maintained
since 2010 In respect of our retai portfolio according to waste
management and recycling specialist BIFFA, we have increased
racycling from 79% to an average of 85% year-cn-year

We are comnmited to recycling old handset components through
our Take Back handset recycting scheme Recycling bags are available
to customers purchasing a new handset, encouraging them to
send us their old handsets so that we can dispose of the handsets
responssbly During 2013-14 we recycled thousands of handsets, the
estimated value of which was donated to The Carphone Warehouse
Foundation As part of the Take Back scheme CPW s WEEE (Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment} compliant and committed to
recycling and reusing old components The business offers a trade-in
service whereby customers can trade in old devices for cash If the
device doesn t have a trade-in value it is recycled under the Take
Back scheme mentioned above




PEOPLE

We believe that the key to our success as a business is its exceptional group of colleagues who are innovative and
creative, customer focused, great at building retationships, achievement driven and who can strike the perfect balance

in the rnisks they take and the decisions they make

2013 saw the return of the CPW ball with circa 6,000 colleagues in attendance

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

Our people are the Company s greatest asset and thereiore s
biggest investment Altracting and retaining the night people by
ensuring they feel valued and rewarded 1s of the utmaost importance
We encourage two-way dialogue with colleagues, through a vanety
of communication channels

Our teams are central to delivering the strategy for the business
Qur annual OneTeam conference brings managers together to discuss
the strategy of the business and the plan for its implementation going
forward We also hold regular Town Hall meetings in our Acton
support centre with a follow-on cascade to the rest of the bustness

We use a balanced scorecard called Compass based on the belief
that engaged teams deliver great service which, in turn, delivers
results for the business Colleague objectives and rewards are aligned
to this scorecard We measure the people element of our scorecard
using a colteague engagement survey called Pulse, which runs
wice a year

Colleague feedback has tnfluenced some of our biggest people
initiatives over the last year including My Learning World , 2n online
learning platform has been designed to support our people by
providing relevant training and iools to help them carry out their
roles to the best of their abilities

During the year we launched a sharesave scheme giving employees the
chance to own a part of the cempany and share in its success Over 20%
of employees registered under either a three-year or five-year scheme

We want our people to enjoy working for the business We encourage
a range of sccial activities and last year saw the return of the Carphone
Warehouse Ball with circa 4 000 colleagues in aitendance

Colleagues taking time cut for yoga

HEALTH AND WELL-BEING

Healthy lving 1s promoted through a number of imitiatives and
facilittes including on-site gyms in Acton, Warrington and Prestan,
where we also provide on-site canteens offering a range of foeds
for a balanced diet

Last summaer, support centre employees took part in activities such
as touch rugby with the RFU, {ootball skills with Queens Park Rangers
football club, table tennis, golf, basketball gym workouts and yoga
as well as enjaying complimentary massages and healthy snacks

Support is offered in other ways too The Employee Assistance
Programme offers a 24/7 online and telephene helpline for all of
our employees, and an opportunity to speak to an independent,
inpartial third party

We are pleased to be the headline sponsor of the Race to the Stones
2014 This ultra-marathon challenge will be held over two days during
July 2014 Around 180 employees have registered to iake part inwhat
promises to be a fun and fit weekend for all We have nominated Get
Connected as the headline charily for this event helping to increase
awareness {or our charity partner To coincide with employee training
for the 2014 Carphone Warahouse Race to the Stones, a wider well-being
carnpaign Is being run to encourage employees to exercise and adopt
healthier lifestyles Raca to Fitness 1s a 25 week programme whare
employees exchange traiming tips, ask the experts and take part

in running clubs and local well-being imitiatives

Employees get in training as part of cur Race to Fitness campaign
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STRATEGIC REPORT
Corporate responsibility contned

EMPLOYEE POLICIES

Cur relationship with employees i1s two-way and one of mutual
dependency with moral duties arising frem both sides We have
developed a range of policies covering various areas of importance
such as employee conduct learning and development, parenting
payroll and performance managerment Our policies help to ensure
our peopte are treated fatrly and that 1ssues are resolved in a
timely manner Our dignity at work and grievance policies provide
formal and informal approaches to resolve workplace disputes
Informal medation 15 also available to assist colleagues in
constructively dealing with any workplace conflicts Our polices
underpin our relationship with cur pecple, as weil as the
relattonship between colleagues, and help safequard our
close-knit business and fun family environment

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The greatest importance is given to the health safety and
welfare of our colleagues, temporary colleagues, visitors and
rmembers of the public Our health and safety policy states our
intent to demonstrate an engoing and determined commitment
to improving health and safety throughout sur organisation

DIVERSITY

CPW 1s committed to equality and values diversity within its
workforce We welcome applications from all suitably qualified
candidates and momitor statistics to ensure our workiorce reflects
the diversity of the wider population Our attraction and selection
strategies are continually reviewed and evaluated to achieve this
aim We take talent management seriously ensuring we have the
skills needed to meet our growth strategies At CPW we also believe
In creating balanced, diverse teams and have particularly focused
on Increasing the number of female leaders in the business

ENHANCING THE

DIVERSITY

OF QUR BUSINESS
THROUGH TALENT GROWTH
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EMPLOYEE GENDER SPLIT 2013-14

Across the

14%, Board of directors
®Female 1
® Male [}

86%

Across senior
17% management

®Female B

® Male 38

83%

Across all employees
@Female 4614
® Mzle 6922

40%

50%

HUMAN RIGHTS

The Group respects human rights and 1s commiited to aveiding
anylhing that may infringe on the basic human rights of others

We welcome the implementation of the United Nations Guiding
Principles on Business and Human Rights and suppert the principles

Due to the nature of cur operations as a retailer, we bebieve that the
direct risk of exploiting human rights 1s relatively low However we
recognise that there 1s a risk associated with the operations of the
manufacturers we depend on for the products we sell The vast majority
of our manufacturers are large corporations Having conducted a
review during the year, we are satisfied that they have relevant and
necessary pclicies in place to address human rights 1ssues While
we have little control over their adherence to their own policies, we
obtain some comfort in that they are listed entities, answerable to
shareholders and aware of the repercussions adverse human rights
could have on their businesses We are not currently aware of any
adverse direct or indirect human rights impacts

THIS STRATEGIC REPORT

was approved by the Board on 25 June 2014 and 15 signed
on 1ts behalf by

Andrew Harrison Chief Executive Officer

Nigel Langstaff Chief Financizl Officer
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board of directors

SiR CHARLES DUNSTONE CHAIRMAN

Sir Charles 1s the founder of Carphone Warehouse and has been Chairman
since 28 January 2010 He was chief executive officer of Old Carphone Warehouse
from 1989 to 2010 where he {ed the growth of Carphone Warehouse both before
and after its flotation on the London Stock Exchange in 2000 to become Europe s
largest independent retailer of mobile phones Sir Charles was also appointed
chairman of TalkTalk in 2010 He was a non-executive director of The Daily Mail
and General Trust Plc from 2007 untit 2012 and a non-executive director of
independent Media Distribution Ple [now Independent Media Bistnibution Limited)
from 2002 until 2011 Sir Charles has been chairman of the Prince s Trust since
2009 and a mernber of its Council since 2000

ROGER TAYLOR DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Roger 1s Deputy Chairman end has been in his current role since 24 July 2013
From January 2010 to 24 July 2013 he was Chief Executive Officer of Carphone
During this time he was responsible for new business development, strategic
intiatives and (nvestor relations He was chief financial officer of Old Carphone
Warehouse from 2000 to 2010 where he played a key role in the growth of
Carphone Warehouse across Europe and the censtruction and completion of
the successful transactions with Best Buy He s also a director o1 Virgin Mobile
France and was non-executive deputy chairman of TatkTalk from 2010 until 2012

ANDREW HARRISON CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Andrew was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 24 July 2013 He has
worked for Carphone Warehouse for 18 years He was a member of the board
of O!d Carphane Warzhouse from 2006 to the formation of the joint venture with
Best Buy in 2008 Andrew was responsible for Carphone Warehouse and Phone
House operations within the Joint venture, befere being appointed chief executive
officer of the joint venture in 2010 Earlier roles include UK chief executive officer
and UK commercial director He began his career working for a management
consultancy business

NIGEL LANGSTAFF CHIEF FINANGIAL OFFICER

Nigel has been Chief Financial Officer since 28 January 2010 with responsibility
for the Group s finance functions He previously held roles within Carphone
Warehouse from 1997 to 2010, including UK finance director and group finance
director Prior to 1997, he spent four years with Arthur Andersen Nigel has
considerable experience and in-depth knawledge cf ali of the Group s businesses
and has played a key role in the growth of Carphone Warehouse to date

He 15 also a director of Virgin Mobile France
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JORN GILDERSLEEVE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

John s a non-executive director and joined the board on 28 January 2010 He was
non-executive deputy charrman prior to Roger Taylor s appointment as Deputy
Chairman in July 2013 He was a member of the board of Old Carphone Warehouse
from 2000 and was non-executive chairman between 2005 and 2010 He was appointed
a non-executive director of The British Land Company PLC in September 2008
and became Chairman in January 2013 He has been a non-executive director of
TalkTalk since January 2010 Previously he was an executive director of Tesco plc
until he retired In February 2004 He was appointed as an sndependent non-executive
director of Pick n Pay Stores Limited, with effect from 21 October 2013 John was
also appointed as non-executive deputy chairman and senior independent
director to Sprre Healthcare Group plc, on 25 June 2014

BARONESS MORGAN OF HUYTON NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Baroness Mongan joined the Board as a non-executive director on 28 January 2010
She was a non-executive director of Old Carphone Warehouse from 2005 to 2010
From November 2001 until May 2005, she was directer of government relations
at 10 Downing Street Prior to this, Baroness Morgan was political secretary to
the prime munister from 1997 to 2001 and was appointed Minister for Women
and Equaltties in 2001 1n 2006, she was appainted as a board member of the
Olympic Detivery Authority Baroness Morgan 1s an adviser to the board of the
chitdren s charity ARK and a member of the advisory commutiee of Virgin Group
Holdings Limited She was appointed chair of Ofsted in March 2011

JOHN ALLWOOD NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

John joined the Board as a non-executive director on 28 January 2010 Heisalso a
non-executive director of TalkTalk and chairman of Romanes Media Group Limited
He has spent his career in the telecoms and media sectors in a number of seniar
positions 1aciuding chief executive of Orange UK and chief executive and finance
direclor of Mirror Group plc He 1s a governor of Exeter University and a {ruslee
director of the Exeter University Retirement Benefit Scheme He s also a proposed
non-executive director of IMImobile plc which on 12 June 2014, announced its
intention to float on the AiM market of the Londan Stock Exchange

John Allwood 15 also the Senior Independent Director

R A R
R AR
R R
R R

GERRY MURPHY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Gerry 1s a former Deloitte LLP partner and was leader of its Professional
Practices Group with direct industry experience in consumer bustness retail
and techneclogy media and telecommunications He was a member of the
Deloitte board and chairman of its audit commuttee for a number of years and
also chairman of the Audit and Assurance Facully of the Institute of Chartered
Acceountanis in England and Wales

H Nomination Committee

A Audit Committee

R Remuneration Committee X Committee chairperson
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CORPORATE GOVERNAKCE
Chairman’s introduction

We have a reputation for our
entrepreneurial management style

and it 1s essential that we have the
necessary controls and procedures in
place to steer this entrepreneurial drive
and ambition The Board of directors is
ultimately responsible for the strategic
direction, management and control of the
Group's activities The Board recognises
the importance of achieving high standards
of corporate governance, to help facilitate
the success of the business

Sir Charles Dunstone Chairman

RESPONSIBILITIES

The overriding responsibility of the Board 1s to provide
clear, entrepreneurial and responsible leadership to the
Group within a framework of efficient and effective controts
50 a5 to allow the key issues and risks facing the
business to be assessed and managed

Specifically the Board

» determines the overall strategic direction
for the Group,

s manages the Group s Investments, including
reviewing their performance,

* reviews and challenges management performance,

« ensures that the necessary operational, financial
and human resourcas are In place to enable the
Group ta meet its objectives,

* develops an understanding of the views of major
shareholders about the Group and

* communicates with shareholders in conjunctian with
1ts dedicated internal investor relations department

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

SIR CHARLES DUNSTONE [CHAIRMAN}

ROGER TAYLOR {DEPUTY CHAIRMAN)

ANDREW HARRISON {CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER)
NIGEL LANGSTAFF [CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

JOHN GILDERSLEEVE

JOHN ALLWOOD

BARONESS MORGAN OF HUYTON

GERRY MURPHY [FROM 2 APRIL 2014)

Since 28 October 2013 the Company has held a premium listing

on the main market of the London Stock Exchange, and as such

1s reguired to camply with the UK Corporate Gavernance Code {the
Code ] published by the UK Financial Reporting Councit The Board

1s cormmitted to the highest standards of corporate governance and

in accordance with the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority

([ Listing Rules ] the Board confirms that, except to the extent stated

below, the Company has throughout the year and as at the date of

this annual report complied with the provisions set out in the Code

In accordance with the Listing Rules, the relevant parts of this Report

have been reviewed by the Company s auditors and their opinion

1s contained in the Independent auditars report an pages 57 to 59

PROPOSED MERGER WITH DIXONS RETAIL PLG

The Prospectus and Circular, which will be sent to our shareholders
in respect of the Merger with Dixons Retail plc, set out the proposed
changes to the Board of directors and to the Board Committees
should the Merger complete Other governance matters will alse be
changed accordingly Alt such changes will be set out in next year s
annual report if the Merger completes and therefore this Corporate
Governance Report should be considered by shareholders in this regard

INDEPENDENCE AND COMPLIANGE

The Board has eight members, {four of whom, excluding the Chairman
are considered to be independent non-executive directors These
directors are John Gildersleeve, John Allwood Baroness Margan
of Huyton and Gerry Murphy Therefere more than half of the directors
excluding the Chairman are considered to be independent Although
John Gildersleeve was a non-executive director of Old Carphone
Warehouse for more than nine years, the Board does not believe
this affects his independence given that he satisfies all of the other
tests of iIndependence set out in the Corporate Governance Code
and that Carphone 1s a company completely separate from

Old Carphaone

Executive directors and the Chairman have service contracts
that can be terminated by either the Company or the director
on 12 months notice

The non-executive directors have three-year periods of appointment,
the terms of which are substantially in the same format as suggested
by the Code, with three month notice periods and no compensation for
toss of office Further details on each director s remuneration and notice
period are set out 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 49 to 51

Each of the directors will stand for re-appointment at the Company s
annual general meeting




MEETINGS

The Board had ten formal meetings during the year as well as other
meetings as were appropriate far approving certain announcements
to shareholders and othar matters from time to ime All directors
attended each meeting with the exception of John Gildersteeve, who
was absent frem the Board call on 20 January 2014 to approve the
Q3 trading statement due to a pnior commitment

EXPERIENCE

The wide range of experience and expertise of the non-executive
directors, combined with the skills of the executive directors prowides
vast retailling, mobtle industry and general business expenience strong
personal skills and independence of thought and perspective

John Allwood Is the Senior Independent Directer and non-executive
director with relevant financial experience

GOMMITTEE MEMBERS

There are three key Board Commuttees Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination The Committees are provided with sufficient resources
via the Company Secretary and, where necessary, have direct access
to independent professicnal advisers to undertake their duties

Baroness
John Morgan of John Gerry
Gildersleeve Huyton Allwoad Murphy
Audit p38 M M C M
Remuneration p37 C M M M
Nomination p36 M C nfa n/a

C Char M Member

The Consurmer Regulatory and Compliance Committee was instituted
during the year, te monitor and cantrol the Group s cornpliance
respect of regulation affecting its customers primarily in relation
to Its insurance business and data protection The charr of the
Committee is Baroness Margan of Huyton and one meeting was
held during the year

RESERVED MATTERS

There are documented schedules of matters reserved to the Board
and matters delegated to Committees of the Board Such reserved
matters include

» approval of published financial statements,

» declaration of interim and final dvidends

* approval of budget and strategy,

« zppointment and remuneration of directors and auditors
« zpproval of major acquisitions and disposals,

* approval of authority levels for expenditure, and

« approval of treasury and risk management policies

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

The Board supports executive directors taking up non-executive
diractorships as part of their continuing development and the Beard
believes that this will ultimately benefit the Company Further details
are provided in the Remuneration Report on page 49

BOARD GOVERNANCE MATTERS

All Beard papers are sent out on a timely basis with sufficient
information for the directors to be able to discharge their duties
The Company Secretary ensures that all Board papers are sent to
non-attending directors and that, where possible, any comments
they have are receved beforehand so that they can be expressed
at the meeting

PERFORMANGE EVALUATION

The internal annual review of the batance of skills, knowledge and
experience of the directors was canducted as usual during the course
of the year In addition, the Code recornmends that the performance
of the Board be reviewed externally every three years The first external
review of the Company was carned out by NJMD Corporate Services
in May 2013, therefore the next external evaluation 1s due in 2016

Internally using the Higgs Report Suggestiens for Good Practice

as guidance, the individual directers completed separate questionnaires
and the Chairman, the Seniar Independent Director, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Board as a whole then collated and analysed the results
The areas covered included the roles of the executive and non-executive
directors, the Board Board Commuttees the Chairman, preparation
for and performance at meetings, the effectiveness cf each director
leadership, culture and corporate governance The results were
ithen considered by the Board as a specific item of business

The Chairman meets regularly with alt the non-executive directers
usually on an evening prior to a Beard meeting This provides the
oppertunity to raise any questions regarding the performance of
the executive directars or In respect of any other mattars

Following the results of the internal evaluation, the Chairman
confirms that all directors continue to be effective and demonsirate
a camrmtment to the role, including having bime to attend all
necessary meetings and to carry out other appropriate duties

Fhe Sermor Independent Director also met with the non-executive
directors 1n the absence of the Chairman, to assess the Chairmans
effectiveness, having first reviewed the results of a performance
evaluation guestionnaire completed by alt of the directors apart
from the Chairman The Board is of the opinion that the Chairman
had no cther significant cormmitments during the year that affected
his performance in his role

COMMUNICATION WITH INVESTORS

The Board believes that it 1s important tc explain business developments
and financial results tc the Company s shareholders and to understand
shareholder concerns The principal communication media used to
impart information to shareholders are news releases [including results
announcements}, investor presentations and Company publications

The Chief Executive Officer has lead respansibility for investor
relatichs He is supported by a dedicated investor relations department
that, amongst other matters organises presentations for anatysts and
institutional investors There s a full pregramme of regular dialogue
with major institutional shareholders and potential sharehelders as
well as setl-side analysts In all such dialogue, care 1s taken to ensure
that no price sensitive information 1s released The Chairman ensures
that the Board receives regular shareholder updates at Board meetings
The Board also receives periodic reports on investors views of the
performance of the Company The Chairman and atl the non-executive
directors, in particular the Senior Independent Director, are availlable
to meet with major sharehelders (f such meetings are required

The Company also communmicates with shareholders through the
annual general meeting at which the Chairman gives an account
of the progress of the businass cver the last year, a review of current
issues and provides the opportunity for shareholders to ask questions

Further firancizl and business information 1s avalable on the
Group s website, www cpwple com

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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CORPORATE GOVERNANECE
Board committees

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

36

MEMBERS

« Baroness Morgan of Huytan [chair]

« John Gildersleeve

MEETIRGS

» The Nomination Commuittee meets

as and when required

» The Normination Commitiee met once

during the year

John Gildersleave
Baroness Mergan of Huyton
@ Attended QO Did not attend

Carphone Warehouse Group plec
Annual Report 2014

Meetings
L]
L]

RESPONSIBILITIES

The principal respensibility of the Nomtnation Committee 15
to constder succession planning and appropriate appointments
to the Beard, and its duties include

overseeing the identification, selection and appointment
of directars,

reviewing the structure, size, composition and leadership needs
of the Board

considering other commitments of directors relative to the time
required for them to fulfil their duties,

evaluating the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board, and
making recommendations to the Board

The terms of reference of the Nomination Comrmittee ara available
on the Group s wehsite lwww cpwplc com) or on request from the
Company Secretary

During the year the Nomination Committee considered and approved

the appointment of Gerry Murphy as a non-executive director
The Company did not use an external search consultant as part
of this appointment




REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MEMBERS

« John Gildersleeve [chair]
+ John Allwood
* Baroness Morgan of Huyton

s Gerry Murphy (from 2 April 2014}

MEETINGS

The Remuneration Committee met three

times during the year

John Gitdersleeve

John Allwoed

Baroness Mergan of Huyton

@ Attended O D:d not attend

Meetings

RESPONSIBILITIES

Responsibility for the establishment of overall remuneration policy
for the Group lies with the Board The Remuneration Committee
has the following principal duties

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are

making recommendations to the Board on the Company s

framework of executive remuneration,

considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the executive directors and senior management
retative to performance and market data,

approving contracts of employment which exceed defined

thresholds of total remuneration or have unusual terms

or termination pEFIOdS.

considering and agreeing changes to remuneration policy

or major changes to employee benalit structures, and

approving employee share-based incentive schemes
and associated performance conditions and targets

avatlable on the Group s website [www cpwplc com] or on request

from the Company Secretary

OTHER GOVERNANCE MATTERS

MNone of the members of the Remuneration Commuttee has any
personal financial interest [other than as shareholders) in the

matters to be decided by the Remuneration Committee ner

potential conflicts of interest arising from cross-directorships

MNo directer or any person advising the Remuneration Commutiee
plays a part in any discussion about his or her own remuneration
All members are non-executive directors who have no day-to-day
involvement in running the Group s business

on pages 43 to 53

Carphene Warehouse Group ple
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A detailed description of the Remuneration Committee s wark
during the pericd 1s contained in the Remuneration report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Boa rd Com m |ttee5 continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE

38

MEMBERS

« John Allwood [chair]

s John Gildersleeve

= Baroness Morgan of Huyton

+ Gerry Murphytirom 2 Aprit 2014l
Biographies on the members of the Audit
Committee are set out on page 33 All four
members are regarded by the Board as
independent non-executive directors Their
collective skills, experience and knowledge
of the Group allows thern to futfil their duties
as Committee members and to provide
appropriate oversight of the Group s auditors

MEETINGS

The Audit Commmittee met three tmes
during the year All members attended each

of these meetings The Chief Financial Officer,

Head of Group Internal Audit other senior
management and representatives of the
Company s external auditors [Deloitte LLP)
attend the Audit Cornmittee meetings by
invitation of the Committee

Meetings
John Gildersleeve [ ) [ ] [
John Allwood [ ] ® [ ]
Baroness Morgan of Huyton [ ) [ ] L ]

® Attended O Did ot attend

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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ADVISORS

The Board makes funds available to the Audi Cormmuittee to enable
it to take independent legal, accounting or other advice when the
Audit Committee believes it necessary to do so

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Audit Committee has the following principal dutres

monitoring the integrity of the half-year and full year financrat .
statements and any formal announcements relating to the

Group s financial performance, I
adwvising the Board en whether, as a whele, the annual report

1s fair, balanced and understandable

reviewing significant financial reporting judgements,

reviewing the Group s financial controls and internal control

and risk management systems,

monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group s

internal control functions, including the findings of the internal

audit department and other sk management systems,

providing the Board with an independent assessment

aof the Group s accounting afiairs and financial position,

making recommendations to the Board 1n relation

to the appeintment of external auditors,

reviewing and monitoring the relationship with the external

auditors (ncluding their independence objectivity, effectiveness,
remuneration and terms of engagement, ‘
constdering arrangerments by which employees may rasse

concerns about possible impropriettes in matters of financial

reporting or other matters,

considering other topics, as defined by the Board, and

referring matters to the Board which, tn 1ts opinion
should be addressed at a meeting of the Board

The terms of reference of the Audit Commuttee are available
on the Group s wabsite fwww cpwple com] or on reguest from
the Company Secretary

OTHER GOVERNANCE MATTERS

The chairman of the Audit Committee updates the Board on
any significant (ssues that have arisen at the previous Audit
Commuttee meeting

External audstors have direct access to the Audit Committee
during formal meetings and time is set aside for them to have
private discussions with the Audit Committee, in the absence
of rmanagement




Audit Committee report

1. CONSIDERATION OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL » whether the annual report and accounts taken as a whole, 1s farr,

REPORTING MATTERS

The Committee I1s responsible for reviewing the appropriateness of
the half-year and annual financial statements in conjunction with both

balanced and understandable and provides sufficient information
necessary for shareholders and sther users of the accounts to
assess the Group s perfermance business model and strategy, and

sentor managemnent and the external auditors During the year ended  * updated accounting and corparate governance regulations

29 March 2014 consideration was given to the following matters including changes to the UK Corperate Governance Code
To assist with discharging these responsibilities, the Committee
¢+ the suitability of the Group s accounting policies and practices considers documents prepared by management and reports
« compliance with financial reporting and governance standards, received from the external auditors on the outcomes of their annual

» areas where significant levels of jJudgement have been applied
or items which have been discussed with tha external auditors,

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES
AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENT

Revenue recognition

Acquisition acceunting

Impatrment of acquisition-related
intangibles

audit procedures

The primary areas of jJudgement considered by the Committee
In relation to the 2013-14 financial statements, and how these
were addressed, are set out In the following table

HOW THE ISSUE WAS ADDRESSED BY THE COMMITTEE

As set out 1n note 1 to the Group financial statements, the Group assessed revenue
recognition as a critical accounting policy particularly in relation to the recognition
of netwark commissions recevable

The Committee assessed the accounting policies applied in relation to revenue recegnition
and concluded that they remain appropriate The Committee also assessed the key
Judgements made in respect of revenue recognition with reference to contractual terms,
the Group s historical experience of customer behaviour and information recewved from third
parties This involved challenging the assumptions used by management inits calculations,
whilst taking into consideration the guidance contained within IAS 18 Revenue

The Committee was satisfied with the methedolegy and assumptions used

The CPW Europe Acguisition required a comprehensive exercise to establish the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CPW Europe, as set out in note 23
to the Group financal statements

This valuation exercise included consideration of external valuations and calculations
which incorporated management judgement

The Committee challenged the methodologies used in the valuation of the net assets
acquired and the ottcomnes of these valuations and is comfortable with the fair values
that have been recognised

Following the comptetion of the CPW Europe Acquisition, the Group recogmised
separately identifiable intangible assets of £125m and goodwill of £4B4m

As set cut within the Group s accounting policies the carrying value of these assets Is
reviewed at least annually and more frequently if there 1s an indication of impairment

The Committee considered the judgements made in relation to the valuation model
inputs and the methodology used It also reviewed a sensitivity analysis regarding the
impact of reasonably pessible changes in the key assumptions appliad The Committee
was satisfied that the carrying value remains appropriate Key assumptions are set out
in note 10 to the Group financial statements
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CORPORATE GOYERNANCE
Audit Committee report continued

1. CONSIDERATION OF ACEOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING MATTERS CONTINUED

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES
AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENT

Closure of French operations

HOW THE ISSUE WAS ADDRESSED BY THE COMMITTEE

The closure of the Group s French cperations has required managerent judgement

i a number of areas, particularly in relation to the recognition of provisions for committed
closure costs The Committee reviewed management s assumptions when performing
these calcuiations and s comfortable that the amounts recognised up to 2% March 2014

appropriately reflect the costs incurred wp to. and labilities assumed as at, this date

Taxation The Group cperates across multiple tax jurisdictions, and the complex nature of tax
legislation in these jurisdictions necessitates the use of judgement additionally
rmanagement uses assurnptions and judgements to assess the likelihood of utilisation
of available tax {osses The Committee considered the matenal judgements made by
management, with reference to the assumptions made, progress made on matters
being discussed with tax authorities and advice provided by external advisers where
applicable The Committee was satisfied that the conclusions reached by management

were appropriate

Going concern

The Committee assessed the Group s available facilities, facility headroom, banking

covenants and the results of a sensitivity analysis pecformed The Commuittee also
reviewed managerment s analysis which was performed with reference to budgeted
revenue and earnings levels for the coming years and were satisfied that the going
concern basis of preparatian continues to be appropriate for the Group

2, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

A RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a risk management programme that
assists management to iIdentify assess and mitigate business, financial,
operational and compliance fisks The Board views risk management
as integral to good business practice and protecting the best interests
of shareholders Executive management of the Group has direct
responsibility for the nsk management programmes cf thewr businesses
The Board s focus 1s primarity on reviewing the effectiveness of these
pracesses more than involving itsetf in the processas themselves
Specific controls and processes are detailed further helow

The Group s nsk management framework aims to

» assist management to implement effective means of nsk
identtfication, assessment and mitigation

» nstil a nsk-based approach and awareness into the Greup s culture,

» encourage accountability for identifying and managing the nsks
specific to line managers respective areas of the business and

» create and implement risk management strategies which
address all types of rnisks

The Group maintains a nisk register and all senior managers within
the business are responsible fer managing and monitoring the risks
identibied within their areas, and identifying new risks as they anise

40 Carphone Warehouse Group ple
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The risk register is reviewed and updated at each of the tri-annual
meetings of the Committee, with informal tracking taking place every
two months Each rnisk identified 15 ranked according to a weighted
score based on the risk category, the likelihood of an event occurring
and its impact on the business should it occur due to either failure
or absence of mitigating cantrols Mitigating controls in place are
alsc documented

B INTERNAL CONTROL

As in any business, the Group faces a number of risks and uncertainties
on a dally basis, and a detailed internal control framework exisis so
as to mitigate these risks and protect the interests of sharehotders

The directors have overall responsibility for the Group s systems of

internal control and for reviewing effectiveness and they discharge

this responsibility by performing the following

* determining the Group s risk appetite and tolerance,
¢ overseeing the risk management strategy, and

« ensuning that management implements effective systems of risk
identificattion assessment and mitigation

The Board delegates to executive management the responsibility
for designing aperating and manitoring these systems The systems
are based cn a process of identifying, evaluating and managing
sigruficant risks and include the risk management processes

set out above




The systems of internal control described in this report were in place
throughout the year and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statements The effectiveness of these systems
1s periodically reviewed by the Audit Commuittee in accordance with
the UK Carporate Governance Code, Internal Control Guidance to
Directors {formerly known as the Turnbull Guidance] These systems
are also refined as necessary to meet changes in the Group s business
and associated nisks They can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses, fraud or
breaches of laws and regulations

The Company has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the systems of risk management and internal control in operation
during the year and up to the date of the approval of the annual
report and financial statements and this was approved by the

Audit Commuittee and the Board

At each of its meetings the Audit Commuttee reviewed and
considered reports on the status of the Group s risk management
systems, findings from reviews of internal controls and reports on
the status of any wezknesses in internal controls identified by the
internal or external auditors

C JOINTVENTURE CONTROL PROCESSES

The Board places reliance as far as possible on the risk managemeni
processes of the Yirgin Mobile France joint venture beard The risk
manzgement precesses of Virgin Mobile France have involved
assessments of sigmficant business risks which are wide-ranging,
covering rnisks arising from the regulatory environment, strategy
counterparties and organisational change associated with major
projects The output from each assessment is a list oi strateqic,
financial, operationat and compliance risks Associated action
ptans and controls to mitigate them are also put in place where
this i1s passible and to the extent considered appropriate, taking
account of costs and beneafits

Reports, act:on plans and any changes to the status of significant
risks and risk matrices are reported at each Audit Committee
rmeeting and at Board meetings where applicable During the year
the Board has not identifted or been advised of any significant
control fzilings

GOther controls in place for Virgin Mobile France are as follews

* Roger Tayler and Nigel Langstaif are directors of Virgin Mobiie
France Its board ordinarily meets monthly and has ultimate
responsibility for strategic, operational risk and compliance
matters for the business

* There Is frequent informal interaction between shareholders
and management on strategic and aperational matters

D INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has an internal audit department which conducts reviews
of selected business processes each year The internal audit programme
for the 2013-14 financial year consisted of reviews across a range of
areas documented and priontised in the Group s internal audit plan,
which was prepared and approved with input from management and
the Committee The plan is designed each year to test the robusiness
of ritigating controls and procedures are designed to identify any areas
of improvement Part of the approval process of this pian 1avolves the
Committee s consideration of abgnment of the proposed test plan with
the principal risks faced by the Group

The Committee receves and reviews reports from the internal audit
department detailing its material findings from testing performed
and any recommendations for improvement The progress and
implementation of enswing action plans are tracked to completion
by the internal audit department and areas where additional controls
have been put In place are subsequently re-tested to ensure the
pracess is fully complete

The Committee considered the effectiveness of the internal audit
department through holding discussions with management, considenng
the quality af reports submitted to the Committee, the timeliness of
the clearance of action points, and the perceved impartiality of the
audit team itself The Committee concluded that the internal audit
department has in all respecis been effective during the 2013-14
financial year

3. EXTERNAL AUDIT

The external auditors are appointed by shareholders to provide
an opinton on the financial statements and certain disclosures
prepared by Group management Deloitte LLP acted as the external
auditors to the Group throughout the year The Committee (s
responsible for oversight of the external auditors, including
approving the annual audit plan and all associated audit fees

A OVERSIGHT OF EXTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS

On an annual basis the Committee recewes a detailed audit plan
from Deloitte LLP, which autlines their assessment of the sigrificant
Group audit risks and how their audit procedures will address these
risks The Committee assesses the effectivenass of the audit process
through consideration of formal reports recewed from Delotte LLP
at the conclusion of the year-end auditt The Commuttee also obtains
feedback on the effectiveness of the audit process in addressing
areas of key audit risk Feedback 1s sought from employees who
have the most exposure to the external audit team such as the
financial management team at corporate and business levels the
Company Secretary and the tax and internal audit depariments

The following points are also considerad

¢ the external auditors progress against the agreed audit plan
and communication of changes to the plan

« the competence with which the external auditors handle key
accounting and audit judgements and the way in which these
matters are communicated to management and the Commuttee,

« the qualifications expertisz resources and compasition of the
audit team, and

 the cost effectiveness of the engagement, weighing up the extent
and quality of services received against agreed fees

The results of all of these considerations are subsequently reviewed
by the Committee

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Audit Committee report continued

3. EXTERNAL AUDIT CONTINUED

A OVERSIGHT OF EXTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS continued

The Audit Commuittee continues to be satisfied with the quality of
the audit The Committee halds private meetings with Deloitte LLP
to allow opportunity for epen dialogue and feedback without the
presence of management This allows the Committee to ensure
that rmanagement are acting appropriately in respense to significant
risks, that no audit procedures were hindered by management, and
that there were no compromises to auditor independence during
the audit process

in Light of the assessments and review undertaken, the Audit
Commuttee recommended to the Board that Deloitte LLP be retained
as auditors of the Company This recommendation was endorsed
by the Board

B CONSIDERATION OF AUDITOR APPOINTMENT

AND INDEPENDENCE

On an ongoing basis the Committee considers the appropriateness
of the re-appointment of the external auditors, including rotation
aof the audit partner Matters considered during these deliberations
include the deemed effectiveness of audit procedures performed,
and the independence of the external auditers The Group has a number
of policies n place to help safeguard the independence of external
auditors For example, the external auditors are not permitted

to perform any work which they may subsequently need ta audit

or which rnught create a conflict of interest The Commutlee s
consideration of non-audit services provided by Deloitte LLP

has been sel out separately below

Recent changes to the UK Corporate Governance Code include

a naw provision that FTSE 350 companies put the external audii
contract out to tender at least every ten years Guidance issued by the
Financial Reporting Council suggests that for ease of transition it

1s acceptable for a formal audit tender to be delayed if necessary

to the end of the current lead audit partner s tenure Deloitte LLP
has been the external auditor since the Group s formation in 2010
[following the demerger of Old Carphone Warehouse nto the Group
and TalkTalk Groupl), and was alsa the external auditor prior to this
of Old Carphane Warehouse The current lead audit partner has been
in place {or three years [partner rotation 1s required an a five-yearly
basis] The Commuttee has recommended to the Board that Deloitte LLP
be retained for the 2014-15 financial year and a resolution proposing
the re-appaintment wiil be put to shareholders at the Company s
forthcoming annual general meeting The Committee will continue
to consider the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and also recent proposals by the Competitton Commission and the
European Unton on audit tendering and rotation, and will make

a decision at the appropriate time to tender the audst once these
propasals are finabised, 0 erder to ensure compliance with the
relevant regulations
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C CONSIDERATION OF NON-AUDIT SERVICES

To safeguard the objectmty and independence of the external audtors,
the Committee has established a formal policy regarding the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditors The policy specifies
the types of work from which the external auditors are excluded, those
which do not require referral to the Audit Commuittee and instances
where a case-by-case decision is required Having undertaken a
review of the nen-audit related work, the Audit Committee has satisfied
itsetf that the services undertaken during the year did not prejudice
the external auditors independence The non-audit services performed
by the external auditors during the year involved assignments which
were closely related to the annual audit or work of such a nature
that a detailed understanding of the Group was necessary As such
it was considered appropriate that these services be performed

by Deloiite LLP

D FEES PAID

A statement of fees paid or accrued for services from the external
auditors during the year 1s set out below The ratio of non-audit fees
to audst fees 1s monitered by the Audit Committee within an overall
rmit set by the Beard on the recommendation of the Audit Committee

2014 2013

£m £m

Audit services - statutory audit 14 01
Tax advisory services 05 -
Tax compliance services 02 -
Other assurance services 06 -
Total 27 01

The Group s share of the externat auditors statutory audit fees for
joint ventures was £0 1m [2013 £0 5ml and the Group s share of
their fees for tax and other services was £0 1m (2013 £0 2m)

Fees paid in relation to non-audit services primarily related to the
CPW Europe Acquisition, In respect of which the external auditors
acted as reporting accountant

The Committee approved the fees proposed for audit services for
2013-14 following a review of the level of work to be performed by
Deloitte LLP including the impact of significant one-off transactions
which tocok place during the year

John Allwaod Chairman, Audit Committtee




Remuneration report

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Over the past 12 months Carphone Warehouse has continued

to deliver solid perforrance in its core business whilst autkining

a compelling growth strategy for the future It has also seen the
business re-enter the FTSE 250 as a company with a premium
listing on the London Stotk Exchange and managed the smooth
transition of senior level Board changes with Roger Taylor moving
from Chief Executve Officer to Deputy Chairman and Andrew Harnson
Jjoining the Board as Chief Executive Officer

We have used this opportunity to review our approach to remuneration
to ensure it 1s aligned to our strategic direction appropriate for a
FTSE company and focused on driving superior shareholder returns

As a result we have made a number of changes this year including
the introduction of new teng-term incentive plans that align the
interests of our sentor managers with our shareholders providing
the opportunity for them to earn significant value but only if superior
returns are delivered to our shareholders We were pleased to see
this new plan receive 96% support from our shareholders at the
general meeting on 24 June 2013

We have also taken the opportunity to bring our executive directors
salary and notice periods in Line with the market and nermat
practice for a FTSE 250 business

No changes are proposed to the basic salaries of the executive
directors as part of the annual pay review process Bonus payments
will be at slightly above target levels No long-term incentives
vested during the year

In relation to our other remuneration policies we have maintained
our approach of providing a strong link between our overall reward
packages and perfermance and the delivery of our strategic priorities
which we have stated as continuing to grow our core business,
creating parinerships acress Mainland Europe and developing
Connected World Services

We are also acutely aware that our success 15 largely down to the
dedication and hard work of all our employees and that 1t 15 vital that
they continue to feel fairly and appropriately rewarded and that they
are able to share in the success of the business We are therefore
very pteased this year to have been able to reintroduce a sharesave
plan for all UK employees, which has enjoyed a good take-up rate

if the Merger 1s completed the Group s remuneration policy

will be changed accordingly In parucular this will reflect changes
in remuneration far executive directors and changes te their
participation 1n our long-term incentive plans with the intention to
have consistent alignment between existing executives and those
who join the Group as part of the Merger The Prospectus and
Circular also set out detadls in respect of the existing incentive
schemes of Dixons Retail plc and how these will be affected by the
Merger The new policy will be set out In next year s annual report
and put to shareholders for approvat at next year s annual general
meeting The current remuneration report and policy should
therefore be constdered by shareholders in this context

John Gildersleeve Chairman, Remuneration Cammittee

REMUNERATION POLICY REPORT

The Remuneration Policy set out 1n this report will be put te
shareholders for approval in a binding vote at the annual general
meeting on 23 July 2014 and the policy will be effective from that
date Shareholders will be asked to approve the policy for a perod
of three years starting from the effective date of the policy

REMUNERATION STRATEGY
Put simply, our aim 1s to generate superior returns for our
shareholders and the key to achieving this is our people

Our remuneration strategy 1s underpinned by remuneration
packages that are designed to motivate high-performing people
to deliver our strateqy The remuneration packages

* are transparent and demonstrably aligned with the interests
ot shareholders,

« areweighted to variable pay that incentivises outperformance
over the short and long term

s arestructured to ensure that superior rewards are only paid
for exceptional performance against challenging targets,

« are consistently applied across the Group to promote alignment
and teamwork

* recognise the importance of delivering across a balanced set
of metrics to ensure the right behaviours are adoptad and the
long-term health of the business 15 protected, and

* encourage management to have a significant personal stake
in the long-term success of the business
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Remuneration report contiaued

REMUNERATION POLICY REPORT CONTINUED

REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE

The individual elements of the remuneration packages offered to executive directors are summarised in the following table

PURPOSE AND
ELEMENT LINKTO STRATEGY
Base salary (fixed) To aid the

recruitment,
retention and
motivation of
high-performing
people

To reflect their
experience and
importance to
the business

In line with the
Companys

strategy to keep
remuneration
weighted to variable
pay that incentivises
outperformance,

a maodest range of
benefits 1s provided

Benefits [fixed)

Pension [fixed) A modest pension

1s provided which

Is conststent with
that provided to
managers across
the Group and in line
with our strategy to
keep remuneration
weighted to variable
pay that incentivises
outperformance

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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OPERATION

Reviewed annually with effect from 1 July

The review reflects a range of factors
including ment tevels, internal relativity and
cost Typically increases for executive
directors will be in line with Increases
across the Group Increases beyond those
granted across the Group may be awarded in
certain circumstances such as changes

in responsibilities progression in the rale
and sigrificant increases in the size,
complexity or value of the Group

QOur overall policy having due regard to the
factors noted 1s normally to target salaries
up to the median level

Salaries for new appointments as executive
directors will be set in accordance with the
Recruitment Policy set out on page 47 of the
Rernuneration Policy Report

Directors are entitled to a combination of
benefits which, with the exception of the car
allowance, are provided to all UK-based
employees They include

«» car allowance,

» subsidised private medical cover,
¢ long-term incapacity cover,

* life assurance,

s holday and sick pay, and

« eligrbility to participate in employee
Save As You Earn schemes

Should an executive director be recruited
from or in a non-UK location, benefits may
be determined by those typically provided
In the normal country of residence

The Company makes a modest contribution
to defined contribution pension schemes
or self-invested pensien plans

Executive directors may chose to receve a
cash allowance in Lieu of pension contrbution

ASSESSMENT OF

OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE

Salaries are
reviewed annually
by the Commuttee
at the appropriate
meeting having
due regard to the
faciors noted in
the Remuneration
Policy

No changes to the
base salaries of the
executive directors
are proposed for
the coming year

Salary levels for
current incumbents
are as follows

- Chief Executive
Officer £475,000

- Chief Financial
Officer £350,000

The cost to the
Group of providing
such benefits will
vary from year to
year in accordance
with the cost of
providing sizch
benefits

Not applicable

Executive directors
typically recetve a
pension contrbution
or allowance of

5% of salary,
however a greater
contributian of up
to 20% of salary
may be made
where necessary to
recruit or retain an -
executive director

Not applicable




ELEMENT

Annual
performance
bonus [short-term
variable]

Mid-term
incentive plan

PURPOSE AND

LINKTO STRATEGY

Annual performance

bonuses are in place
to incentwise the
delivery of stretching
near-term business
targets based on our
business strategy

These bonuses
provide a strong link
hetween reward and

perfarmance and drive
the creation of further

sharehelder value

The principles and
approach are
consistently applied
across the Group
ensuring alignment
to a common vision
and strategy

They are based on 2
balanced approach
ensuring approprate
behaviours are
adopted and
encouraging a
longer-term focus

This incentwe
plan will onty be
implemented
should the Merger
complete

The purpose
would be to
motwaie salected
key indnaduals to
deliver specific
objectives relating
ta the Merger

and reward them
for doing so

OPERATION OPPORTUNITY

Maximum annual
benus potential
of 200% of salary

No boenus I1s payable
if the mimmum profit
gate is not achieved

All measures and targets are reviewed
and set by the Commuttee at the beginning
of the financial year

The bonus scheme has targets based on
financial measures inctuding profit and cash
and a balanced scorecard The balanced
scorecard may include financial employee,
customer and strategic measures The
weighting of measures will be determined by
the Commuittee each year Financial measures
le g profit) will represent the majority of the
bonus, with other measures representing
the balance

Bonus payments are subject to a minimum
profit gate being achieved before payment
1s due against any objectives achieved

The annual bonus i1s typically paid in June
based on the audited performance over the
previous financial year

With effect from the 2014-15 financral year
clawback and/or malus provisions will be
introduced to the Group s annual bonus
scheme enabling perfermance adjustments
and/or recovery of sums already paid

The Chairman, Deputy Chairman and
non-executive directors do not receive
an annual performance bonus

The Cammittee retains the discretion to
establish additional bonus schemes and
to set stretching targets focused on the
delivery of specific business strategies In
the event of substantial business change

Maxtmum bonus
potental of up to
200% of salary

Executive directors and selected other key
indmviduals would be eligible to participate
1n this schema

Pay-outs under this scheme will be made
only if participants debver excepticnal
performance aver and above the
business plan

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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ASSESSMENT OF
PERFORMANGE

Performance 1s
reviewed by the
Commuttee using
its Judgement
where necessary
to assess the
achievernent

of 1argets

The Committee
retains the
discretion to adjust
downwards banus
payments where
achievement of
targets would
result in @ payment
of a bonus ata
level which would
not be consistent
with the interests
of the Company
and its
shareholders

Clawback andfor
malus provistons
will be intreduced
with effect from the
2014-15 financial
year

The performance
conditions for this
scheme would be
based on the
achievement of
specific objectives
relating to the
successful
implementation
of the Merger and
integration of the
businesses such
as the delivery of
targeted levels

of synergies

It1s intended that
performance
conditions
applicable to this
scheme will be set
at a stretching level
with separate and
incremental targets
to those rewarded
by the annual
bonus plan
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Remuneration report contnued

REMUNERATION POLIEY REPORT CONTINUED

REMUNERATION POLICY TABLE continued

ELEMENT

Mid-term
incentive plan
continued

Long-term
Incentive schemes
(long-term
variable)

Save As You Earn

PURPOSE AND

LINKTO STRATEGY OPERATION

Leng-term
incentive schemes
are transparent
and demonstrably
aligned with the
tnterests of
shareholders over
the long term

The schemes
reward execulion
of our strategy only
when they have
delivered superior
value to
shareholders

Encourages
employees te make
a long-term
investment in the
Company s shares
and therefore be
aligned to the
leng-term success
of the Company
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The executive directors participate in the
Carphone Warehouse Share Plan approved
by shareholders in June 2013

New executive directors appointed

fram time to ime may partictpate In

the Carghone Warehouse Share Plan

(or a comparable plan implernented with
shareholder approval) or the Carphone
Warehouse Share Scheme approved by
sharehelders in 2010 and amended in June
2013 Maximum returns for executive
directors [excluding any buy-out
arrangements provided for in the
Recrintment Policy] will be consistent with
existing executive directors and the Umits
set out In this Policy Table

Further detatls of the Carphone Warehouse
Share Plan and Carphone Warehouse
Share Scheme are provided on page 47

Execulive directors are eligible to
participate in all employee share plans

An HMRC approved Save As You Earn
scheme was introduced in the UK )n
December 2013 and a comparable scheme
wilt be launched in lreland in due course

OPPORTUNITY

The total vool for
distribution to
participanis is
subject to a cap of
4% of the totalissued
share capital of the
Cempany on the
measurement date

The Chief Executive
Officer allocation 1s
7% of the total pool and
Chief Financial Officer
allocation 15 6%

Grants under the
Carphone Warehouse
Share Scheme are
subject to overall
ditution Limits and

a maximum grant
per participant In
any financial year
of a market vatue of
300% of basic salary

Participants can
save up to £250 per
rmenth for either three
or five years This
ltrmit may be increased
for future schemes in
accordance with the
statutory limits in place
from time to time

At the end of the
savings pertod
participants can
purchase shares n
the Company based
on a discounted share
price determined at
the commencement
of the scheme

ASSESSMENT OF
PERFORMANCE

Since the
implementation of
this arrangement 1s
contingent on the
completion of the
Merger, the Committee
has not yet finalised
the measures and
targets Further details
on the performance
conditions will be
disclosed to
sharehelders in next
year s annual repert
if the arrangement 1s
implemented fallowing
the completion of
the Marger

Performance will be
determined by the
Committee against
the stretching
targets agreed by
shareholders in
June 2013

The performance of
the scheme will be
determined by the
share price of the
Company at the end
of the relevant
savings period




PURPOSE AND

ELEMENT LINKTO STRATEGY OPERATION

Provides close
alignment between
the longer-term
interests of executive
drrectors and
shareholders in
terms of the
Company s growth
and performance

Share ownership
guidelines

We recognise that senior employees should
hold a minimum level of shares in the Company
and we currently believe the number of shares
held by cur executive directors as set out in
this report satisfies this requirement without
the need currently to specify a precise mimimum
number However, this policy will be regutarly
reviewed by the Commuittee n particularin
Light of the Merger, and any proposed changes

will be set out in next year s report

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

CARPHONE WAREHOUSE SHARE PLAN

Under the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan participants share 10%
of the incremental value created in CPW in excess of an opening
valuation {assessed over a three manth period prior to approval

by shareholders in June 2013} and beyond an annual rate of return
af 7% onnvested capital The plan 1s underpinned by a minimum
annual compeound TSR grawth of 5% and outperformance of the
median TSR of the FTSE 250

Participants acquired at market vatue participation shares in a
subsidiary company that holds the Company s interests in CPW
Europe The Group granted loans to particspants at a commercial
rate of Interest to acquire the shares Loans are ordinarily
repayable in full if performanca conditions are met

The performance of the scheme will erdinarily be measured in or
around June 2017, when 60% of the shares vest with 40% deferred for
a further year When the awards vest the value of the shares held
by participants will be based an the incramental value (if any] of
CPW n excess of the opening valuation together with the mintmum
return on invested capital These shares will then be purchased by
the Company for cash andfor the Company s ordinary shares

A bad leaver will be required to transfer the participation shares
to such party as the Company designates for an amount equal to
the total amount outstanding under the loan If the market value of
the shares Is less than the amount of the outstanding loan [and any
accrued interest] then the participant may be required to repay 20%
of the shortfall out of their own resources

A participant shall only be a good leaver at the scle discretion
of the Remuneration Committee and may be perrmitted to retain
an award notwithstanding the termination of thair employment

The mechanics of the plan may be varied by the Remuneration
Commuttee If necessary to ensure that participants are neither
advantaged nor disadvantaged by a vaniation of the share capitat
of the Company bona fide merger, reconstruction or similar
reorganisation As part of the Merger, proposals to amend

the plan are set out In the Prospectus and Circular

CARPHONE WAREHOUSE SHARE SCHEME

The Carphone Warehouse Shara Scheme allows nil-priced

and market-priced options to be offered to senior empleyaes
wha are not participants in the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan

Options granted in January 2014 are subject to continuing
employment and are subject to performance conditions based
on a combination of absolute TSR performance and relatva TSR
performance against the FTSE 250

ASSESSMENT OF
OPPORTUNITY PERFORMANCE
Not applicable Not applicable
RECRUITMENT POLICY

On appointment base salary levels will be set taking into account
a range of factors including market levels experience internal
relativities and cost If an individual 1s appointed on a base salary
below the desired market pasitioning the Commuitee retains the
discretion to re-align base salary over one to three years, contingent
on individual performance which may result in an exceptional rate
of annualised increase above ordinary levels If the Commuttee intends
to rely on this discretion, it will be noted in the first remunaration
report following an individual s appointment Other elements of
annual remuneration will be in line with the policy set out in the
Policy Table As such, short-term variable remuneratien will be
capped as set out in the Policy Table

The following exceptions will apply

¢ In the event that aninternal appointment 1s made or an executive
director joins as a result of a transfer of an undertaking, merger,
reconstruction or similar reergasisation the Committee retains
the discretion to continue with existing rermuneration provisions
relating to pensions and benelits,

+ as deemed necessary and appropriate to secure an appaintment
the Commiuttee retains the discretion to make additional payments
linked to relocation, and

s the Committee retains the discretion ta provide an immediate
interest in Company performance by making a leng-term incentive
award on recruitment In accordance with the Policy Table under
its existing long-term incentwve schemes or such future schemes as
are introduced by the Companywith the approval of its shareholders
The Commuttee will determine the tevel of the award, the performance
conditiens and iime horizon that would apply te such awards at
the time of award, taking into account the strategy and business
circurnstances of the Company

Service contracts witl be eniered into on terms similar to those

for the existing executive directors, surnmarised in the Recruitment
Table, however, the Commitiee may authanise the payment of a
relocation and/or repatriation allowance, as well as other associated
international mobility terms and benefits, such as tax equalisation
and financial advice

In addition to the annual remuneration elements noted ahove

the Committee may consider buying out honuses and/or incentive
awards that an (ndwidual forfeits in accepting the appointment The
Comnuttee witl have the authonty to rely on Listing Rule 9 4 2(2) or
exceptional bmits within the existing shareholder approved share
and share option plans to make awards If made, the Committee will
be informed by the structure time honizons, value and periormance
targets associated vath any forfetted aweards while retaining the discretion
ta make any payment or award deemed necessary and aprropriate
The Cammittee may also require the appointea to purchase shares
In the Company in accordance vath its shareholding palicy

Carphone Warehouse Greup plc
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Remuneration report continved

REMUNERATION POLICY REPORT CONTINUED

RECRUITMENT POLICY continued

With respect to the appointment of 2 new Chairman or non-executive
director, contractual terms will be consistent with those currently
adopted Variable pay will not be constdered and as such no maximum
applies Whth respect to non-executive directors, fees will be consistent
with policy at the time of appointment If necessary, to secure the

RECRUITMENT TABLE

AREA FEATURE

Service contract and
incentive plan provisions

Notice period

Entitlements on termination

Restrictive covenants

Variable elements

Annual remuneration Salary

Salary progression

Pension

Benefits and allowances

Variable pay

48 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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appointment of a new Chairman not based in the UK payments
relating to relocation and/or housing can be considered

Elements of remuneration on appointment are set out in the
Recruitment Table

A timely announcement with respect to any director s appointment
and remuneration wilt be made to the regulatory news services and
posted on the Company s website

POLICY

* Up to 12 months from either side

s Assummarised in the Policy on Loss of Office
« Provisions for mitigation and payment in Lieu of notice

¢ Gardening leave provisions

+ Non-compete, non-solicitation non-dealing
and confidentiality provisions

* The Committee has the discretion to determine whether
an indmdual shall participate 1n any incentive in the year
of appointment

« The Cammittee shall have the discretion to determine
approgriate bonus performance targets if participating
in the year of appointment

¢ To be determined on appcintment, taking into acceunt
factors including market levels, experience internal
relativities and cost

» |f appointed at below market levels salary may be re-aligned
over the subsequent one to three years subject to performance
in role In this situation, the Commultee reserves the
discretion to make increases abave ordinary levels

» This initial market positioning and intention to increase pay
above the standard rate of increase in the Policy Table
(subject 1o performance] will be disclosed in the first
remuneration repert following appotntment

+ In line with the Policy Table

= |n line with the Policy Table

¢ The Commuttee retains the discretion to provide additional
benefits as reasonably required These may include, but are
rot restricted to, relocation payments, housing allowances
and cost of Living allowances

* [n line with the Policy Table




POLICY ON LOSS OF OFFICE

Notice provisions in service contracts will be on terms similar
to those for the existing executive directors and shall be up to
12 maonths on either side

The Company shall have a right to make a payment n lieu of notice
In respect of bastc salary, private medical contributions and pension
contributions only for the director s contractual period of notice or,

if termination 1s part way through the notice pertod, the amount
relating to any unexpired notice to the date of termination There 1s
an obligation on directors to mitigate any loss which they may suffer
if the Company terminates their service contract The Committee
will take such mitigation obligation inte account when determining
the amount and timing of 2ny compensation payable to any
departing directer

A director shall also be entitled to a payment tn respect of accrued
but untaken holiday and any statutory entitlements cn termination
No compensation is paid for surmmary dismissal, save for any
statutory entitlements

A director shall be entitled to receve a redundancy payment in
circumstances where in the judgement of the Commuittee they satisfy
the statutory tests governing redundancy payments Any redundancy
payment shall be calculated by reference to the redundancy payments
policy in force for alt employees 1n the UK at the time of the redundancy

If a director s employment termunates prior to the relevant annual bonus
payment date, ordinanly no bonus 15 payable for that financial year

The Remuneration Committee shall retain discretion to make

a pro rated bonus paymeant and/or payment of a retention bonus
In circumstances where it would be appropriate to do so having
regard to the contribution of the director during the financial year,
the circumstances of the departure and the best interests

of the Company

Any entitlernents under long-term incentive schemes operated by
the Company shall be determined based on the rules of the relevant
scheme The default position under the Carphone Warehouse Share
Plan s that awards will lapse on the termination of employment
unless the Commuttee exercises the discretion set out in the schemne
rules The Committee retains the discretion to prevent awards {rom
lapsing depending on the circumstances of the departure and the best
interests of the Company

The Committee shall be entitled to exercise its judgement with regard
to settlerment of potential claims, including but not imited to wrongful
dismussal unfair dismissal breach of contract and discrimination,
where 1t 1s appropriate to do so In the interests of the Company

and its shareholders

In the event that any payment 1s made in relation to termination
for an executive director this will be fully disclosed in the following
rermuneration report

A timely announcerment with respect to the termination of any
directer s appointment will be made to the regulatory news services
and posted on the Company s websiie

REMUNERATION DETAILS

Deloitte LLP has audited the following items in the Remuneration
Report as stipulated in the regulations

« the single total figure of remuneration
* the directors nterests in shares, and

« the disclosure of directors interests in the Carphone Warehouse
Share Plan on page 46

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

The Board supports executve directors taking non-executive
directorships as a part of their continuing development, and has
also agreed that the executive directors may retain therr fees from
such appomtments The Board has reviewed all such appointments
and conctuded that there are no appointments that require
disclosure pursuant to the Code

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

The following table summarises key terms from service contracis
in place with directors, other terms are as set out in the
Recruitment Table

Date of

cantract/
latter of Notice
appointment period
Sir Charles Bunstone 28 January 2010 12 months
Andrew Harrison 2% October 2013 12 months
Nigel Langstaff 20 June 2014 12 months
Roger Tayler 28 January 2010 & maonths
John Allwood 28 January 2010 3 months
John Gildersleeve 28 January 2010 3 months
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 28 January 2010 3 months
Gerry Murphy 13 Novernber 2013 3 months

Andrew Harrison was appainted to the Beard in August 2013 under
a new service agreement The notice periods for Andrew Harrison
and MNigel Langstafi have been increased from six months to 12 menths
reflecting standard market practice Gerry Murphy was appocinted

to the Board on 2 Apnit 2014 There were no other changes to these
service contracts during the financial year

Each of the non-executive directors has a letter of appoiniment
substantially in the form suggested by the Code The Company
has na age lmt for directors

Any changes to service contracts and appointment letiers including
fees, following the Merger will te set out In next year s annual report

Carphone Warehouse Group ple
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Remuneration report continued

REMUNERATION DETAILS CONTINUED
SCENARIO CHARTS

The charts below provide estimates of the potential future remuneration for each executive director based on the total opportunity available
for the 2014-15 finanoial year including an annualised share of the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan

ANDREW HARRISON, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
£ 000

£2,885
47%
£2,198
42%
£1,240 5%
18% 5%,
£51 1% » Long-term incentive'?
100% 41% 299, 18% + Annual variable
* Fixed
Super
Mirimuem Strateh! stretch! Maximnam?

NIGEL LANGSTAFF, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

£ 000
£2,288
51%
£1,727
45%
€939 o
20% 33% 33%
€376 40% » Long-term incentive?®
o A § bl
100%  40% 21% 16% nawatvanante
» Fixed
Super
Minimum Stretch! stretch’ Maximum?

Fixed remuneralion comprises basic salary committed taxable benefiis and penston contributions

2 Annual variable remuneration represents the annual bonus entillement No bonus 1s assumed at the mimimuem performance level Stretch performance
assumes 50% of the maxsrmum pay-out super stretch assumes 75% of the maximum pay-out while maxumum assumes 100% of the maximum pay-out

3 Long-term incentives relate to the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan inwhich the execulive directors participate This incentive scheme vests in 2017 and 2018

and the tatzal value of scheme has been annualised over a period of five years

No reward 1s assumed at the minimum level of perfarmance Stretch performance reflects the generation of shareholder returns of £0 Sbn over the term
of the scheme, while super stretch performance reflects the generation of £1bn ofincremental returns on the same basis

Maximum performance 1s fixed at the point at which the dilulion cap of 4% associated with the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan 1s expected to apply being £1 3bn

of incremental shareholder returns over the term of the scheme

CONSIDERATION OF EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE
IN THE GROUP

With the exception of the salary increases reflecting the Company s
increased profile following the CPW Europe Acguisttion, no increase to
the remuneration of the executive directors is proposed In arriving at
this conclusten the Remuneration Committee was mindiul that on
average, the pay increase for other UK employees 1s approximately
2% Whilst employees were not formally consulted on executive
remuneration a number of them are shareholders and as such are able
to exercise their influence we also moniter cur employee discussion
hoards and employee forums to ensure employee feedback in generat
is considered in all our strategy execution

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION

CONSIDERATION OF SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

IN DEVELGPING POLICY

In 2013 we undertook an extensive consultation exercise with our
shareholders to seek their views on the Carghone Warehouse Share
Plan As a result of this feedback a number of changes were made to the
scheme design including the introduction of a cap, greater transparency
regarding the opening value calculatien and the introduction

of shareholding guidelines

Basic salary/ Taxable Pension Annual Total

fees benefits contributions bonuses 2014

2014 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Sir Charles Dunstone 240 - — — 240
Andrew Harrison* 317 8 15 339 679
Roger Taylor 293 5 7 — 305
Nigel Langstaff 325 10 16 375 726
John Allwood 74 — - - 74
John Gildersleeve 81 — — — 81
Baroness Margan of Huyton &0 — - — &0

Gerry Murphy

* Andrew Harrison joined the board on 1 August 2013 His remuneration presented above 1s for the period for which he was a director
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Basic salary/ Taxabte Pension Annual Tatat

fees henefits contributions bonuses 203

013 £000 €000 EGOOD £000 €000
Sir Charles Dunstene 240 — — — 240
Roger Taylor 440 12 22 484 958
Nigel Langstaif 275 10 14 303 602
Jahn Atlwaod 62 - — - 42
John Gildersleeve 79 - - - 79
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 55 - - — 55

Mo long-term Incentive schemes vested during the year The share schemes approved by sharehotders i June 2013 vest 1n 2017 (60%)
and 2018 (40%)] Loans of £0 4m and £0 3m were granted to Andrew Harrison and Nigel Langstaff respectively to enable them to subscribe

for shares under those schemes as described on page 47

No payments were made to former directors and no payments for loss of office were made during the year

ANNUAL BONUS PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND AWARDS FOR

As a percentage
of maximum

FINANCIAL YEAR 2013-14

Measure borus apportumty Threshold Maximum Actual Pay-out
Pro forma Headline EBIT [Em]! 50% €£140m £170m €151m 3%
Reduction in average net deht? 20% £25m £100m Missed -
MNumber of markets achieving 75% 5 or more As threshold Missed —
a stretching emplayee markets out of 7

engagement target

Number of markets 75% 5 ar more As threshold Achieved 75%
achieving a stretching markets cut of 7

customer NPS target

Personal targets based on 5% Discretionary Discretionary Maximum 15%

the delivery of key atements
of business strategy

1 Excludes Virgin Mobile France

2 Reduchion (n average net debt after applying adjustments in relation to the CPW Eurcpe Acquisition and other one-off iterns at the discretion of the Commuttee

A sliding scale of targets for each objective was set at the start of the financial year, apart from the customer and employze engagement

objectives which are either achieved or not met

FEES FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees for the independent non-executive directors are determined
by the Board [excluding non-executive directors] after considering
external market research and are reviewed en an annual basis
Factors taken into consideration include the required time commitment,
specific experience and/or qualifications A base fee is payable and
additional fees are paid for chairing and membership of committees

Non-executive directors receive no variable pay and recewve
no additional benefits

Sir Charles Dunstene and Roger Taylor are employed by the
Company and their pay is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
as part of the executive director pay review

For the 2014-15 financial year, independent non-executive directors
will recewve a basic fee of £45 000 {2014 £43 000) and additional fees
for chairing or membership of commuttees The increase in fees
paid to non-executive direciors reflects the increased profile

of the Company following the CPW Europe Acquisition

2014 2013

£690 EQoO
Chair of Audit Commuttee 15 15
Member of Audit Committee 5 4
Chair of Nomination Committee 8 5
Member of Nermination Committee S 4
Chair of Remuneration Committee 10 10
Member of Remuneration Committee 5 4
Chair of Cansumer Regulatery
and Compliance Commitiee 3 —

John Gildersleeve will also recewve an additional fee consistent with
the years to March 2014 and March 2013, of £17,000 in recognition
of his serving part of the period as deputy chairman and for additional
services he carned out duning the period 1n his capacity as a non-executive
director John Allwood will atso recewve an additional fee of £15,000
In his capacity as Senior Independent Directar continuing the
arrangement since his appoiniment to that role

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

Sharehotders aporaved bwo new incentive schernes during the year
infermation on which 1s provided on page 47 Details of the Carphone
Warehouse Share Plan and Carphone Warehouse Share Scheme and
tha grants made to Andrew Harrison and Niget Eangstaff are set out
in the Policy Tabla

Carphone Warehouse Group ple
Annuak Report 2014

FINVHYIA0D LVHOLHOD



CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

Remuneration report contnued

REMUNERATION DETAILS CONTINUED

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION
The percentage change in remuneration in the 2013-14 financial
year compared with the prior year for the Company s Chief Executive

The following table sets out the voting results mn relation to the
resolution to approve the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan
at the general meeting in June 2013

Votes cast Number %
Officer and for all UK head office-based employees 1s shown below
Changes in salary relating to changes in roles and/or respensibilities For 395.813.705 960
have been excluded from the increase presented for the wider group Against 16,663,325 40
in order to provide a like-far-like companison Total 412,477,030
Chief Chosen group
Exe:utllje * of cther Withheld 16,650
Qfficer employees
Salary and fees 5% 2%  The fotlowing table sets out the voting results in retation to the
Taxable benefis* nfa nfa Remuneration Report at the annual general meeting in July 2013
Annual bonuses (28%} [16%)  Votes cast Number %
For 413,724 142 64
* Taxable benefiis have not been separalely measured since there have been no
material changes in Group benefits year-on-year Against 15,371 547 36
Total 429,095,689
To ensure comparability the Chiei Executive Officers salary in the
Withheld 6 216 641

table above excludes long-term incentive schemes

RELATIVE IMPCRTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The following table sets out both the total cost of remuneration
for the Group compared with pro forma Headline EBIT and profits
distributed for the 2013-14 financtal year and the prior year

354 35

132 151

23 30 = 2014
* 2013

Tatal Praforma Ordinary
employee pay Headtina EBIT dvidends paid
] Ipence) [Em)

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIRECTORS OF MATTERS RELATING
TO REMUNERATION

The Committee retained Towers Watson throughout 2013-14 as
independent advisers Towers Watson 1s engaged to provide advice
to the Committee and to work with the directors on matters relating
to the Group s executive remuneration and its long-term incentives
Towers Watson 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group
and operates under its code of conduct In relation to the provision of
executive rermuneration advice in the UK Towers Watson has confirmed
that it adhered to the Code throughout 2013-14 for all remuneration
services provided to the Group Towers Watson received fees of
£84,000 in relatton to the provision of those services The Committee
may also take external legal advice where required, to assist it in
carrying out its duties

STATEMENT OF VOTING AT SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

This Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance

with the Regulations, the relevant Listing Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority and the Code The constitution and operation of
the Remuneration Commitiee are in compliznce with the Code In
framing its Remuneration Palicy the Remuneration Commutize has
gwen full consideration to the matters set out in Schedule A of the
Coda The Company i1s commutted to angoing sharehotder dialogue
in respect of directors remuneration and takes an active interest
In veting outcomes Where there are substantial voles against
resolutions, explanatory reasons will be sought and any actions

In respensa will be communicated to shareholders

Carphone Warehouse Group ple
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ANNUAL BONUS PERFORMANCE MEASURE FOR FINANCIAL
YEAR 2014-15

The annual benus for the 2014-15 financial year witl operate on a
similar basis as for the 2013-14 financial year and will be consistent
with the policy detailed in the Remuneration Policy section of this report
The measures have been selected to reflect our key strateqic objectives
and are aligned to our Group batanced scorecard, with a minimum
profit gate that must be achieved befere any bonus is paid out

The performance measures and weighting will be as follows

As a percentage
of maximum

Measure bonus opportunity
Headline EBIT 50%
Reduced net debt 20%
Customer NPS 75%
Employee engagement 75%

Personal targets focused on delivery
of busingss strateqgy 15%

The proposed target levels for financial year 2014-15 have been set
to be challenging relative to the business plan The targets themselves,
as they relate to the 2014-15 financial year are deemed to be
commercially sensitive However, retrospective disclosure of the
targets and performance against them will be provided in next

year s Remuneration Report to the extent that they do not

rernain cormnmercially sensiive at that time




PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The graph shows the Group s performance measured through TSR

compared with the FTSE 250 ndex, since 29 March 2010 when the

Company was first admutted to the London Stock Exchange following

the Demerger The FTSE 250 Index was selected as i1t 1s a broad

market which includes competitors of the Company
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE PAY

The following table shows the Chief Executive Officer s stngle total
figure of remuneration, the amount of bonus earnad as a percentage
of the maximum remuneration possible, and the vesting of long-term
awards as a percentage of the maximum number of shares that
could have vested where applicable

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES

Details of directors interests in shares of the Company

at 31 March 2014 are shown in the iollowing table

Ordinary shares

2014 2013
Sir Charles Dunstone 135,083,481 132,833 481
Andrew Harrison* 5,000,000 nfa
Nigel Langstaff* 3,654,130 3 609,180
Roger Taylor 2,808,554 9.693,554
Joha Allwood 10,000 10,000
John Gildersleeve 122,568 123,000
Baroness Morgan of Huyton 991 991
Gerry Murphy — -

Long-term

Annual incentive

bonus vesting

CEO single pay-out ratesagainst

total figure of aganst maximum

remuneration’ maximum  epportunity

Year o000 %
2014 Andrew Harrison 479 54% nfa
Roger Taylor® 159 n/a n/a

Totat 845 n/a

2013 Roger Taylor 958 55% n/a
2012 Roger Taylor 474 (%2 n/a
20n Reger Taylor 1.193 82% nfa

Excludes remuneration received from leng-termincentive schemes
established by Old Carphone Warehouse prior lo the Demerger because

that company s not part of the current Group Details of remunerauon associated
wath 01d Carphone Warehouse mcentive schemes were provided in the Company s
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012 Future reperts willinclude
long-term incentives cperated by the current Group when they have vested
Future reports will also reflect any necessary changes if the Merger completes

N

In 2012 Rogar Taylor waived a bonus ef 25% of maximum polential and instead
chose for it to be pai! directly to charity

W

The amount gueted relates only to remuneration recewed whilst Roger Taylor
held the pesition of Chief Executive Officer

* In order to participate in the Carphene Warehouse Share Plan Andrew Harrison
and Nigel Langstaff have atso subscribed for 700 and 600 participation shares
respectively in New CPW Limited

We recognise that senior employees should hold a minimum tevel
of shares in the Company and we currently believe the number of
shares held by our executwe directors as set out in this report satisfies
this requirement without the need currently to specify a precise
minimum number However this policy will be regularly reviewed by
the Commuttee n particular n Light of the Merger and any proposed
changes will be set aut In next year s Remuneration Repori

COMPLIANCE

As required by the Regulations, a resolution to apprave this
Remuneration Report will be proposed at the annual general
meeting to be held on 23 July 2014

This report was appraved by the Board on 25 June 2014

John Gildersleeve Chairman, Remuneration Committee

Carphone Warehouse Greup plc
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CORPDRATE GOVERNANCE
Other statutory information

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group places significant emnphasis on its employees nvelverment
in the business at all levels Managers are remunerated according to
results wherever possible and employees are kept informed of 1ssues
affecting the Group through formal and informal meetings and
through the Group s internal publications The management team
regularly communicates matters of current interest and concern
with employees Further infarmation on employee engagement is
included in the report on corporate responsibility on pages 25te 30

EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PEOPLE

It 1s the Group s policy to encourage applicatton for ermnployment
from disabled people and to assist with their training and career
development, having regard to particular aptitudes and abilities
Every endeavour 1s made to find suitable alternative employrnent
and to re-train any employee who becomes disabled while
serving tha Group

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

The Group s policy 1s te agree terms of transactions including
payment terms, with suppliers and provided that suppliers perform
in accordance with the agreed terms, 1t 15 the Group s normal
practice that payment 1s made accordingly The average credit
period taken on trade payables, calculated by reference to the
amounts owed at the year end as a proportion of the amounts
invaiced by suppliers in the year, adjusted to take account of the
timing of acquisitians, was 59 days Trade payables were not
material at 31 March 2013

DONATIONS

Information on the Group s charitable activities and donations 1s
included in the report on corpeorate respensibility on pages 25 te 30
No political donations were made during erther year by the Group
or Its joint venture businesses

INFORMATICN SECURITY

The Group is committed to protecting both electronic and physical
informatton from unauthorised access, processing modification or
destruction There are a number of pieces of legislation relevant to
information security to which the Group must adhere, including the
Data Protection Act 1998 and EU s Data Protection Directive $5/46/EC
The Group has a dedicated information secunity team Secunity controls
and awareness remain an area of significant focus fer the Board

DATA PROTECTION

The Group has a responsibility to ensure that all infarmation 1s
collected stored, processed and disposed of 1n a secure way In
the UK tt 1s required to adhere to the UK Data Protection Act 1998
This legislation was enacted to bring UK 1law in line with the EU
Data Protection Directive [the Directive |, which i1s aoplicable to the
rest of the Group s European markets The European Comermission
has recently unveiled 1ts draft European Data Protection Regulation
which will supersede the Directive Ahead of the adoption of the new
regulation the business i1s engaged to prepare for changes in this
area The Group 1s commuitted to the ongoing monitoring of its

data protection policies and procedures, and the implementation
of iImprovernents where necessary

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions
{as defined in the Compamies Act 2004 for the benefit of its directors
during the year these provisions remain in force at the date

of this report

54 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of the movements inissued share capital during the year
are provided in nate 20 io the Group financial statements Ordinary
shares of the Company carry the right to one vote at a general
meeting of the Company and have no night to fixed income

Details of employee share schemes are provided in note 5 to the
Group financial statements The Group s ESQT held 4 9m shares on
29 March 2014 (2013 0 04m] and has waived its right to receve dividends

The shareholder agreement of Virgin Mobile France includes a
change of control clause, whereby If there 1s a change of control
event in relation to the Company the other shareholders have the
optian to acquire the Company s ownership of Virgin Mobile France,
or require the Company to acquire the other shareholders interests

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 11
to the Greup financtal statements In the opinion of the directors the
current open market value of the Group s interests in freehold land
and buildings exceeds the book value by £4m at 29 March 2014

SIGNIFICANT SHAREHOLDINGS

At 25 June 2014, the Company had been notified 1n accerdance with
Chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the UK
Financial Conduct Authority, of the fotlowing interests of over 3%

of issued share capital of 576,067,769 ardinary shares

Percentage

Number af share

Name of shares capital
D P JRoss 56,388,699 979%
M&G Investment Management Ltd 37 398,599 & 49%
Odey Asset Management LLP 34132735 593%
Kames Capital 29793129 517%
BlackRock Inc 27,011,835 4 69%
Newton Investment Management Ltd 22,329.216 388%
Camtal World Investors 22,195,000 385%
Aviva Investors 20,754,999 360%

Directors interests in the Company s shares and the movements
thereon are detailed 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 43 to 53

AUDITORS

Each director at the date of approval of this annual report
confirms that

+ 5o far as the director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company s auditers are unaware, and

+ the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit informaticn and to establish that the Company s
auditors are aware of that infermation

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance
with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed therr withingness to continue 1n office
as auditors and a resolution to re-appoint them will be proposed
at the forthcoming annuzal general meeting

By order of the Board on 25 June 2014

Tim Marrnis Company Secretary




Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The direciors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the
financial statements 1n aceardance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the directors are required to
prepare the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
IFRS and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare
the Company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP
Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts
unkess they are satisfied that they gwe a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and Group and of the profit or loss
of the Company and Group for that period

In preparing the Company financial statements, the directors
are required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

+ state whether applicable UK GAAP has been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explamned in the financial
statements and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going cancern basis
unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

In preparing the consolidated financial statements 1AS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements requires that directors

= properly select and apply accounting policies

» present nformation, ncluding accounting policies
tn @ manner that provides relevant, reliable comparable
and understandable informatian,

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions other events and conditions
on the Group s financial position and financial performance, and

» make an assessment of the Group s ability to continue
as a gaing concern

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the
financial position of the Company and Group and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Cempany and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the Group s wehsite
Legistation in the Unuted Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation

in other jurisdictions

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

We confirm that to the best of cur knowledge

» the financial statements preparedin accerdance with the relevant
financial reporting framewark, give a true and fair view of the assets,
Labilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,

+ the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole together with a description of the prnincipal risks and
uncertainties that they face and

« the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole
are fair, balancad and understandable and provide the informatian
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s performance
business model and strategy

By order of the Board on 25 June 2014

Andrew Harrison Chief Executive Officer

Nigel Langstaff Chuef Financial Oificer
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Independent auditors’ report

OPENION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CARPHONE
WAREHOUSE GROUP PLC
In our opimion

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group s and of the Company s affairs as at 29 March 2014
and of the Group s profit for the year then ended,

— the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRS

— the Company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with UK GAAP, and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Campantes Act 2006 and as regards the
Group financial stalements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulatien

The financial statements compnise the consclidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensve income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equtty, the consolidated balance sheet

the consolidated cash flow statement, and the related notes 1to 29
and the Company balance sheet and the related notes 110 12

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements 1s applicable law

and IFRS The finanaal reparting framewaork that has been applied

in the preparatian of the Company financial statements 1s applicable
law and UK GAAP

GOING CONCERN

As required by the Listing Rules we have rewiewed the directors
statement contained on page 24 of the Stratagic Report that the
Group is a going cencern Wa confirm that

— we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
1s appropriate, and

— we have not iIdentified materal uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group s ability
to continue as a going concern

However, because not all future events or conditions can be pred:cted,
this statement 1s not a guarantee as to the Group s ability to continue
as a going concern

The assessed risks of maternial misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on cur audit strategy, the allocation
of resources 1n the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

Risk

How the scope of sur audit respanded to ihe risk

Revenue recognition

Commisston receivable for certain transactions i1s dependent on
customer behaviour beyond the point of sate Management s therefore
required to exercise judgement in respect of the level of customer
default within the contract period, expected levels of customer
spend and customer behaviour beyond the imtial contract period
The key judgements and estimates involved are described in more
detail on page 69

We evaluated the design and implementation of both the manual
and automated controls over the revenue recegnition process

in respect of commissions recevable In addition we tested that
these contrels were operating effectively throughout the year

We have tested the valuation of revenue recognised through review
of the Group s contractual arrangements substantive tesiing of
management assumptions to third party network data and testing
of subsequent cash receipts We have also assessed the vahidity

of those jJudgements made in prior years against actual outcomes

Acquisition accounting

The identification and the determination of the fair value of intangible
assets ansing from the CPW Europe Acquisition and the recognition
of fair value adjustments through the associated purchase price
allocation process involves complex accounting cansiderations
The intangible asset identification process requires management
judgement tn respect of estimates of future cash flows and associated
discount rates in addition to economic lives Management engaged
external valuation experts in relation to this process Fairvalue
adjustments, 1n particutar those arising from property plant and
equipment, pre-existing intangible assets and property operating
leases, require significant judgement in relation to fair value at the
date of acquisition, for which management also engaged external
valuatton experts

We tested the design and implementation of the controls around
management s process for both the identification of intangible
assets and fair value adjustments We used our internal valuation
specialists to consider the appropriateness of methodology applied
and to test the inputs ta the valuation models used to determine the
value of the intangible assets, including the discount rates, growth
rates and useful economic lives through comparing these agamnst
industry benchmarks on similar assets and cur understanding of the
future prospects of the business We also challenged and tested the
appropriateness of the cash flow projections used in the valuations
For the other significant fair value adjustments, we used our internal
valuation specialists to beachmark the assumptions against relevant
industry data 1o assess the appropriateness of the adjustments

Impairment of acquisition-related intangible assets

The Group s assessment of impairment of acquisition-related
intangible assets, including goodwill primaniy arising from the
CPW Europe Acquisition, 1s a Judgemental pracess which requires
estimates concerning the future cash flows and associated discount
rates and growth rates based on management s view of future
business prospects

We assessed the assumptions used by management in the
impairment modet for goodwill and acquisition-related intangible
assets Including the allocation to cash generating units described
in note 10 to the Group financial statements and more speciiically
the cash flow projections, discount rates and long-term growth
rates used against our understanding of the future prospects of the
husiness and the prevailing Group cost of capital at the year end
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Independent auditors’ report connued

OUR ASSESSMENT OF RiSKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT continued

Risk

How the scope of our audit respanded to the risk

Closure of French operations

The Group announced its planned exit from the French retail
market in April 2013 As part of this exst the Group has completed
necessary restructuring activities and a disposal programme in
respect of its store portfolio for which consideration of onerous
lease contracts and asset impairment was required As this process
Is angaing this requures significant judgement and use of assumptions
by management In respect of the quantum of the associated provisions

We tested the design and implementation of the controls operating
around the accounting for the closure We reviewed the associated
contractual agreements as part of this disposal as well as substantively
testing a samptle of costs incurred through the year For those
provisions remaining at year end, we have compared management
assumptions to contractual agreements and recent market data

Taxation

The Group operates in a number of different tax junisdictions
The nature of the Group s operations and related transactions
can give rise to uncertain tax treatments including with respect
to transfer pricing, thereby requiring the use of estimates and
assumptions which may be subsequently chatlenged by the
relevant tax authorities

We used our internal tax specialists to evaluate and test
management s assumptions in respect of tax-related provisiens,-
including assessment against local tax legislalion and review

of supporting documentation

The Audit Commuttee s cansideration of these risks 1s set out an page 3%

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed m the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and not
to express an opinion on Individual accounts or disclosures Qur
opinion on the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to
any of the risks described above, and we do not express an opinton
on these individual matters

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

We define materiality as the magmitude of misstatement in the
finanecial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed
orinfluenced We use materiality both in planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

We determined matenality for the Group to be £6m, which s below 5%
of Headline profit before tax, and below 2% of equity In using Headline
profit before tax, we have followed the Group s definition of Headline
and non-Headline results on page 68 We have assessed the use

of a Headline measure to be appropriate as this continues ta be a
key driver of business value 1s a critical cornponent of the financial
statements and the main measure which management uses

to manitar the performance of the business and communicate

this to shareholders

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report 1o the
Commuttee all audit differences identified in excess of £120,000 as
well as differences below that threshold that, in our view warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds We also reported to the Audit
Committee on disclesure matters that we identiited when assessing
the overall presentation of the financial statements

AN OVERYIEW OF THESCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of

the Group and its environment including Group-wide controls

and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group
leve! Based on that assessment, we focused our Group audit scope
primarily on audit work at eight {ocations, being the retail operations
in the UK, France Spain, Germany, the Netherlands, Ireland and
Portugal and the insurance operations in Ireland Each of these
components requires a local statutory audrt Inaddition a full scope
audit was completed on the Group s joint venture, Virgin Mobite France
These e:ght lacations, and Virgin Mobile France, represent the principal
business units and account for appraximately 95% of the Group s
revenue Theywere also selected to provide an appropriate basis for
undertaking audit work to address the nisks of material misstatement
identified abave Our audit work at the eight locations was executed
at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity which
were lower than Group mateniality
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At the Company level we also tested the consolidation process
and carrted out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion
that there were no significant risks of material misstatement

in the agaregated financial iInformation of the remaining
components not subject to audit

The Group audit team s directly responsible for the audit of the UK
component, which is the largest In addition, the Group audit team
continued to follow a pregramme of planned visits to overseas
components that has been designed so that a senior member of
the Group audit team visits the most significant locations each year
In the year ended 29 March 2014, the three largest averseas component
locations were wvisited by a senior member of the Group audit team
In years when we do not visit a particular significant component we will
include the component audit team in our team briefing discuss therr
risk assessment, and review documentation of the findings from
thewr work

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2005
In our optnion

— the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

— the information given in the Strategic Report and the Other
Statutory Information on page 54 for the hinancal year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT

BY EXCEPTION

ADEQUACY OF EXPLANATIONS RECEIVED

AND ACCOUNTING RECCGRDS

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to you If,
In our opINion

— we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company,
or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visited by us or

— the Company financial statements are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters




MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORY

BY EXCEPTION continued

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Under the Companies Act 20046 we are also required to repert If In
eur opimion certain disclosures of directors remuneration have not
been made or the part of the Remuneration Report ta be audited 1s
not In agreement with the accounting records and returns We have
nothing to report ansing from these matters

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company s
compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code We have nothing to report arising from our review

CGUR DUTY TO READ OTHER INFORMATION

IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

Under International Standards on Auditing [UK and Ireland] we are
required to report to you If, 1n our opinien, information in the annual
repart |5

— matenally tnconsistent with the infarmation in the audited
financial statements, or

— apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group acquired
in the course of performing our audit or

— otherwise misleading

In particular, we are reguired to consider whether we have identified
any incensistencies between our knowledge acquired during the
auditand the directars statement that they consider the annual
report s fauwr, balanced and understandable and whether the annuatl
report apprepriately discloses those matters that we communicated
to the Audit Committee which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have not identified any such
inconsistencies or rmisleading statements

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsibitities
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial

statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance wilh applicable taw and International
Standards en Auditing [UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethicat Standards for
Auditors We also comply with Internationsl Standard on Quality
Controt 1 [UK and freland] Our audit methodology and tools aim to
ensure that our quality control procedures are effective understood
and applied Gur quality controls and systems include our dedicated
professionat standards review team and independent partner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Cornpanies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company s members those matters we are required to state to
them 1n an auditors report and {or no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company s members
as a body for our audit work, far this repart or for tha opiniens

we have fermead

SCOPE QF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence ahout the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes
an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Group s and the Company s circurnstances and have been
consistenily applied and adegquately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the
overall presentztion of the financial statements In addition, we read
all the financial and non-financial information +n the annual report
to identify materal inconsistencies with the audited financiat
statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become
aware of any apparent material misstatements or Inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report

John Adam [Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

25 June 2014
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated income statement

for the years ended 29 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

Restated* Restated* Restated*”
Headline Non-Headlne*  Statutory Headline  Nen Heacline® Statutory
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
Notes £m £m £m £m Em fm
Continuing operations
Revenue 2.4 2,505 71 2,576 1 — 1A
Cost of sales 4 (1,864) (48] (1,912) - - —
Gross profit 641 23 664 1 — 1
Operating expenses 4 (508} (60 (568) (8] - {8)
Profit [loss} frem operations before share of results 133 (371 96 3 — 3
of joint ventures
Share of results of joint ventures 2 4 24 3 (23) (20) 48 (50} (2)
Profit [loss) before interest and taxation 3 136 (50) 76 51 (50)
Interest income 5 B — 8 2 — 2
Interest expense & (17} — 17l - — —
Profit (toss] before taxation 127 (60) 67 53 (50) 3
Taxation 4,7 (25) ) (19) i1} - m
Profit [loss] from continuing operations 102 (54) 48 52 (50
Profit [loss} from discontinued operations 24 — — — 3 (1)
Net profit {loss] for the year 102 (54) 48 55 (51)
Earnings per share
Basic
Continuing operaticns 9 18 4p 8 ép 109p 0 3p
Discontinued operations g 00p 00p 07p 0 6p
Total g 18 4p 8 6p 11 4p 09
Diluted
Continuing operations g 181p 8 5p 10 8p 03p
Ciscontinued operations g 0 0p 00p 07p 06p
Total 9 181p 85p 1 5p D%p

= Neon-Headline items comprise exceptional items, amortisation of acquisition intangibles and the resulis of the Group s retail operations in France whichare in
the process of closure [see note 4] Prior year comparatives have been restated to classify the results of the French business as non-Headline and to classify the
results of Virgin Mobile France as discontinued operations Areconcibation of Headline results to statutery results 1s provided in note 8

The accompanying netes are an integrat part of this consolidated income statement
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the years ended 29 March 2014 and 3t March 2013

2014 2013
£m fm
Net profit for the year 48 4
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (8] 2
QOther foretgn exchange differences (31 -
Movements in relation to interest rate hedges 2 —
Total recognised income and expenses for the year 39 6
The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 29 March 2014
Share Capital
Share premiurn Accumylated  Translation Demerger redemption
capitak reserve profits reserve reserve reserve Tetal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At the beginning of the year 1 170 1,238 2 (750) — 661
Net profit for the year —_ _ 48 -— — — 48
Gther comprehensive income expensel - - 2 (1 - — (93
issue of shares -— 113 103 — — — 216
Net purchase of awn shares — — (12] - — — (12)
Equity dividends —_ — (30 — — - (30
Tax an ems recognised directly through reserves —_— — [ - — - -]
At the end of the year 1 283 1,355 (9] (750) - 880
for the year ended 31 March 2013
Share Caputal
Share premium Accumulated  Translation Demerger redemplion
capstal reserve profits reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m Em [ 2] €m frmn £m
At the beginning of the year 34 170 697 - {750) 557 708
Net profit for the year - - 4 - - — 4
Other comprehensive income — - - 2 - - 2
Redemption of shares (33l - (33} — — 33 (33)
Equily dividends - - {23) - - - {23]
Capital reduction — — 590 - - (590} -
Share of other reserve movements of joint veniures - — 3 — - — 3
At the end of the year 1 170 1238 2 (750] — 661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement of changes in equity
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 29 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

2014 2013
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 481 —
Intangible assets 10 1346 -
Property, plant and equipment 1 90 27
Trade and other receivables 4 191 -
Interests 1n joint ventures 24 — 537
Deferred tax assets 7 54 )
952 545
Current assets
Stock 13 240 -
Trade and other receivables 14 821 3
Assels held for sale 24 1" -
Cash and cash equivalents 15 283 17
1,355 120
Total assets 2,307 685
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (869] f171
Deferred consideration 17 [25) —
Provisions 18 {50} (7
Corporation tax liabilities (36) —
Finance lease obligatians 19 (1} —
(981) (24)
Non-current liabitities
Trade and other payables 16 {113) —
Deferred consideration 17 [25) -
Deferred tax Liabilities 7 (18] -
Loans and other borrowings 19 i290) —
(444) -
Total abilities (1,427) (24]
Net assets 880 661
Equity
Share capital 20,21 1 i
Share premum reserve 21 283 170
Accumulated profits il 1,355 1,238
Translation reserve 21 9 2
Demerger reserve 21 1750) {750)
Funds attributable tc equity shareholders 880 661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet

The consolidated financial statements of the Company on pages 60 to 96 were approved by the Board on 25 June 2014 and signed on its

behalf by

Andrew Harrison Chief Executwe Gfiicer Nigel Langstaff Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement

for the years ended 29 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

Restated
2014 2m3
Notes £m Em
Operating activities
Profit before interest and taxation 76 1
Adjustments for non-cash items
Share-based payments 4 -
MNen-cash movements on joint ventures 19 2
Depreciation of property plantand equipment 18 1
Amortisation of acquisitien intangibles 16 -
Amortisation of other intangibles 16 -
Impairment of property, plant and equ:pment - 1
Profit on disposat of property, plant and equipment - (3
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 149 2
Decrease in trade and cther recevables 107 19
Decrease n stock 97 -
Increase in trade and other payables 125 7
Decrease in provisions (20) i3
Cash flows from operating activities 458 25
Taxation paid (18 "
Net cash flows from operating activities L4&2 24
Investing activities
Interest received 2 2
Net cash outflow arising from CPW Europe Acquisition 23 (3171 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 10 40
Proceeds on sale of current investments 5 —
Acguisition of property, plant and equipment (18) -
Acguisition of intangible assets (42] -
Net receipts from joint ventures 2 &
Cash flows from investing activities (358]) 46
Financing activities
Settlement of financial instruments 3 —
Interest pad (14) —
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (2} —
Net purchase of own shares t12) —
Equity dividends paid 22 {30] [23)
Net drawdown of borrowings 19 19 —
Facility arrangement fees pad (6 -
Issue of shares 124 -
Shares redeemed 22 — (33)
Cash flows from financing activities a2 (56}
Met ncrease in cash and cash equivalents 166 14
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 17 103
Cash and cash equivalents ai the end of the year 15 283 117

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated cash flow statement
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

al BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company 1s incorporated (n England and Wales The financtal statements of the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis
In accardance with IFRS as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation
The financtat slatements have been presented in UK Sterling, the functional currency of tha Company, on the historical cost basis except for
the revaluation of certain financial instruments, as explained below All amounts have been rounded to the nearest one million pounds,
unless otherwise stated The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

On 26 June 2013 the Group completed the CPW Europa Acquisition for a net censideration of £471m, at which point CPW Europe became
a 100% owned subsidiary of the Group inthese financial statements, CPW Europe 1s treated as a joint venture prior ta 24 June 2013
and a wholly swned subsidiary from 26 June 2013 onwards

In prior periods the Group reported to a financial year end of 31 March CPW Europe reports ta a retail calendar, whereby 1is year-end date 15
normally the Saturday closest to 31 March Following the CPW Europe Acquisition the Group is reporting to the same retail calendar as CPW
Europe and has consequently prepared financial statements for the period from 1 April 2013 to 29 March 2004 (the year ended 29 March 20147

GOING CONCERN
Note 25 to the financial statements includes the Group s policies and processes for managing its exposure ta iquidity rnisk

In their consideration of going concern the directors have reviewed the Group s future cash forecasts and profit projections which are based
on market data and past experience This review cansidered the implications of the CPW Europe Acquisttion during the year, including the effect
on forecast cash flows and changes to the Group s financing facilittes The directors are of the opimion that the Group s forecasts and projections
which take into account reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group 1s able to operate within its current facilities
and comply with its banking covenants for the foreseeable future In arriving at their conclusion that the Group has adequate financial resources,
the directors were mindful that the Group has a robust policy towards Liquidity and cash flow management and that 1t is financed through facilities,
excluding overdrafts repayabla on demand, totalling a maximum of £650m [of which £360m was undrawn at 29 March 2014) committed to
April 2017 The Group s operations are financed by these committed facilities [further described in note 19}, retainad profits and equity

Accordingly the diractors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operatien for
the foreseeable future and consequently the directors continue to apply the going concern basis (n the preparation ef the financial statements

JOINT VENTURES
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the Group s joint vantures to bring accounting pelicies used into line
with those used by the Group The accounting policies below also relate to those applied to the Group s joint ventures

bl BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statemenis incorparate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

(its subsidiartes] Control 15 achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financtal and aperating policies of an investea entrty
50 as to obtain benefits from its activibies

The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures acquired or sotd during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidianes to bring the accounting policies used into Line with those used by the Group Intercompany transactions and
balances between subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation

¢] FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION AND TRANSACTIONS

Material transactions in foreign currencies are hedged using forward purchases or sales of the relevant currencies and are recognised in the
financial statements at the exchange rates thus obtamed Unhedged transactions are recorded at the exchange rate on the date of the transaction
Material monetary assets and babilities denominated in foretgn currencies are hedged, mainly using forward foreign exchange contratts to create
matching liabiities and assets and are retranslated at each balance sheet date Hedge accounting as defined by IAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement has been applied by marking to market the relevant financial instruments at the balance sheet date and
recognising the gain or loss in reserves In respect of cash flow hedges and through prefit or loss in respect of fair value hedges

The results of overseas cperations are translated at the average foreign exchange rates for the year, and their balance sheets are translated at
the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date Goodwill is held in the currency of the operation to which it relates Exchange differences arising on
the translation of net assets, goodwill and results of overseas operations are recogrused in the translatron reserve Al other exchange differences
are included in profit or loss in the year 1n which they arise except as follows

— where the Group designates financial instruments held fer the purpose of hedging the foraign currency exposures that result from material
transactions undertaken in foreign currencies as cash flow hedges hedge accounting as defined by 145 39 Financial Instruments Recegnuticn
and Measurement 1s applied The effective portion of changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are designated as cash flow
hedges 15 recognised in other comprehensive income The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised in profit or loss

In the event that a foreign operation is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal recogrused in profit or loss ts determined after taking into
account the cumulative currency translaticn differences that are attributable to the operation
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
c] FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION AND TRANSACTIONS continued
The principat exchange rates against UK Sterbing used n these financial statements are as follows

Average Clesing
2014 2013 2014 2013
Euro 119 122 121 19
Swedish Krona 10 35 10 56 10.82 991

d) REVENUE
All revenue 15 stated net of VAT and other sales-related taxes The following accounting policies are applied to the various
revenue-generating activities in which the Group 1s engaged

— revenue ansing en the sale of mobile and other products and services 1s recognised when the relevant products or services are provided,

— commission recevable on sales, being commuission which is contractually committed and for which there are no ongoing performance
criteria 1s recogmised when the sales to which the commission relates are made net of any provisien for promotional offers and network
operator performance penalties Commission includes a share of customer airtime spend, to the extent that it can be reliably measured
and there are no ongoing service obligations [see Use of critical accounting estimates and assumptions (n note Tul Where the time
value of money has a material impact, an appropriate discount is applied such that revenue 1s recognised at an ameunt equal to the
present value of the future consideration received

— other ongoing revenue 1s recognised as it 1s earned over the lives of the relevant customers,
— volume bonuses receivable from network operators are recognised when the conditions on which they are earned have been met

— volume bonuses receved from suppliers of products are recegnised as an offset to product cost when the conditions on which they are earned
have been met and are recognised within cost of sales when the products to which the velume bonuses relate have been sald,

— Insurance premiums are typically paid either menthly or quarterly in advance Sales commussion paid by third parties is recognised when
the insurance policies o which 1t relates are sold, to the extent that it can be reliably measured and there are no ongoing service obligations
Insurance premiumn income for the prowision of ongoing insurance services 1s recognised over the Lives of the relevant policies

— revenue from the sale of prepaid credits is deferred until the customer uses the airime or the credit expires,

— revenue generated from the provision of fixed and mabite network services Is recognised as it 15 earned over the lives of the relevant
custormers

— rentat income from investment property is recogrused on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
— consultancy income 1s recognised as the services are provided, and
— all other revenue 1s recagrised when the relevant goods or services are provided

e] SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant and expensed over the vesting period,
based on an estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest

Fair value is measured by use of a Binormial model for share-based payments with internal performance criteria (such as EPS targeis]
and a Monte Carlo model for those with external performance critena [such as TSR targets]

For schemes with internal performance critena, the number of options expected to vest is recalculated at each balance sheet date, based
on expectations of performance against target and of leavers prior to vesting The movement in cumulative expense since the previous
batance sheet date 1s recogrised in the income statement, with a corresponding entry n reserves

For schemes with external performance criteria, the number of optiens expected to vest is adjusted only for expectations of teavers
prior to vesting The movement in cumulate expanse since the previous balance sheet date 1s recognisad in the income statement,
with & corresponding entry in reserves

If a share-based payment scheme is cancelled, any remaining part of the fair value of the scheme 1s expensed through the income
statement 1§ a share-based paymenl scheme s forfeited, no further expense 1s recogrised and any charges previously recogmsed through
the incorne statement are reversed

Charges also 2nise on loans that are provided to employees to fund the purchase of shares as part of long-term incentive plans
to the extent to which the loans are not In certamn circumstances, repayable the cost of the relevant part of such loans is expensed
over the course of the relavant incentive plans
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continues

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

f]l PENSIONS

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the Income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the schemes

g) DIVIDENDS
Dividend 1ncome is recognised when payment has been received Final dividend distributions are recogmised as a liability in the financial
statements in the year inwhich they are approved by shareholders Interim and other dividends are recognised in the year in which they are pad

h] LEASES
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Rental tncome from operating leases Is recognised on a straight-lLine basis over the term of the relevant lease [nitial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their farr value or, if lower, at the present value of mimmum
lease payments, each determined at the incephion of the lease The corresponding liability to the lessor s included in the balance sheet
as a finance lease obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liabilty Finance expenses are recognised immediately in the income statement, untess they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group s general policy on borrowing
costs [see note Tr] Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred

Rental payments under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-ling basis over the pened of the lease except
where ancther more systematic basis 1s more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the lease assetare
consumed Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense In the period in which they are incurred

tn the event that lease Incentves and rent-free periods are recewed to enter into aperating leases such incentives are amortised through
the income staternent over the pericd of the tease

1) TAXATION
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and cverseas tax Is provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates
and {aws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s provided in full on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or biability in the batance sheet
and Its tax base

Deferred tax Liabilities represent tax payable m future periods in respect of taxable ternporary differences Deferred tax assets represent

tax recoverable in future periods in respect of deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax losses and credits
Deferred tax 15 determined using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the deferred tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax liability 1s settled

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utiised Current and deferred tax 1s recognised in the Income statement except where 1t relates to an item recognised directly
in reserves In which case 1t 1s recegnised directly in reserves

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset where there 1s a legal right to do so in the relevant jurisdictions

1) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL

Goodwitl arising on the acquisiticn of substdiary undertakings and businesses, representing the excess of the fair value of the consideration
gwen aver the fair value of the identifiable assets and Liabibities acquired, 1s recognised initially as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated imoatrment losses At the acquisition date, goodwiil is allocated to each of the CGUs expected to
benefit from the combination and held in the currency of the operations to which the goodwill relates Goodwill s reviewed at least annually for
impairment, or more frequently where there 1s an indication that goodwill may be iImpaired Impairment is determined by assessing the future
cash flows of the CGUs to which the goodwill relates Where the future cash flows are less than the carrying value of goodwill, an impairment
charge 1s recognised in the income statement

On dispesal of subsidiary undertakings and businesses, the relevant goodwill 1s included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

1} GOCDWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS continved

SOFTWARE AND LICENCES

Software and licences includes internal infrastructure and design costs incurred in the development of software for internal use Internally
generated software Is recognised as an intangible asset only If it can be separately identified, 1t 1s probable that the asset will generate future
economic benefits and the development cost can be measured relizbly Where these conditions are not met, development expenditure 1s
recognised as an expense in the year in which it 1s incurred Software and licences are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful economic lives of up to eight years

KEY MONEY

Key money paid to enter a property Is stated at cost, net of amortisation and any provision for impairment Amortisation 1s provided on key
money at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over ten years or the lease term if less

ACQUISITION INTANGIBLES

Acquisttion intangibles include customer relationstups and brands aristng on the CPW Europe Acguisition These intangible assets are
amoartised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of up to eight years for customer relationships and up to ten years for
brands The value attributed to such assels is based on the future economic benefit that 1s expected ta be derived from them, calculated
as the present value of future cash flows after a deduction for contributory assets

k] PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment 1s measured at cost less accumutated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses Any gain
or loss on dispasal of an iter of property plant and equipment 1s recognised in profit or loss

Depreciation 1s provided for on atl property plant and equipment [excluding tand] at rates calculated so as to write off the cost, less
tha esttmated residual value, of each asset on a straight-line basis over Its expected useful lsfe from the date it 1s brought inte use
Rates applied to different classes of property, plant and equipment are as follows

Shori leasehold costs 10% per annum or the lease term if less
Network equipment and computer hardware 12 5-50% per annum
Fixtures and fittings 20-25% per annum

tnvestment property [property held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation} 1s stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and provisions for impairment Depreciation is applied at 2-4% per annum

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted If appropriate

L) RECOVERABLE AMOUNT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there i1s any indication that an asset may be impaired Where an indicator of impairment
exists, the Group makes a formal estimate of the asset s recoverable amount Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount the asset I1s considered ta be impared and 1s written down to its recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel s
or CGU s fair value less costs to sell and its value 1n use, and 15 determined for an individual asset, unless the asset dees not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset [or CGU] 1s increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised immediately
In the iIngome statement

mi INVESTMENTS

Investments other than subsidiaries and joint ventures, are Intially recognised at cost being the fair value of the consideration given plus
any transaction cosis associated with the acquisition investments are categorised as available-for-sale and are then recorded at fair value
Changes in fair value, together with any related taxation, are taken directly 1o reserves and recycled ta the income statement when the
investment is sold or determined to be impaired

n) INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Interasts in joint ventures are acceuntad for using the equity method The consclidated income statement includes the Group s shara of the
post-tax profits or losses of the joint ventures based on their financial statements for the year Inthe consclidated balance sheet, the Group s
interests In joint ventures are shown as a non-current asset in the balance sheet, representing the Group s investment in the share capital

of the joint ventures as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group s share of the net assets or Liabilities less provision for any impairment

Any associated goodwill 1s included within the carrying value of the investment and is assessed for impawrment as part of that investment

Whare a joint vanture has net liabilities, any loans advanced to 1t are included in the Group s equity-accaunted investment 1in it Where a joint
venture has net assets, any loans advanced to 1t are shown separately i the balance sheet, as a recewable to the Group

o) ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sale if it 1s highly probable that they will be recovered primanily through
sale rather than through continuing use This condition is regarded as met only when the sake 1s highly probable and the assets or disposal
group 1s available for immediate sale i its present condition Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to gualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification Such assets, or disposal greups, are generally measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs o sell Any impairment loss on a non-current asset or disposal group 1s allocated
first to goodwitl and then to the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss 1s booked to siock financial assets
deferred tax assets, employee benefits assets ar investment property, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group s other
accounting policies Impairment tosses on Initizl classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortised
or depreciated and any equity-accounted investee 1s no longer equity sccounted
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements conunued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

pl STOCK

Stock Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost, net of discounts and volume bonuses from product suppliers [see note
1d), includes all direct costs incurred in bringing stock to its present location and condition and represents finished goods and goods for
resale Net realisable value Is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to disposal Provision is made
for obsolete, slow moving or defective items where appropriate

q) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equwvalents represent cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly lguid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash

r) LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Loans and other borrowings in the Group s batance sheet represent committed and uncomrmutted bank loans Loans and other borrowings
in the balance sheets of joint ventures represent committed and uncommutted bank loans and toans from shareholders other than the Group

Bank fees and legal costs associated with the securing of external financing are ordinarily capitalised and amortised over the term of the
relevant facility Borrowing costs associated with qualifying assets are included in the cost of the asset All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the income statement 1n the period in which they are incurred

s) PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when a legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events and it 1s prebable that an cutflow
of resources will be required to seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation Provisions
are discounted where the time value of money Is considered to be material

Pravisions fall into the following categones

SALES

Sales provisians relate to cash-back and simitar promoetions, product warranties, product returns, and network operator performance
penzlttes The anticipated costs of these items are assessed by reference to historical trends and any other information that is considered
to be relevant

REORGANISATION

Reorganisation provisions retate principally to redundancy costs, the costs of onerous teases and other onerous contracts, and are orly
recognised where plans are demenstrably committed and where appropriate communication to those affected has been undertaken

at the balance sheet date Prowvisions are not recognised in respect of future operating losses

OTHER

Other provisions retate to warranties provided in relation to the Best Buy Joint Venture Transaction dilapidations and similar property
costs, and all ather prowisions, principally being tha anticipated costs of unresolved tax 1ssues and tegal disputes the expected costs
aof Insurance ¢laims, and costs associated with onerous contracts All such provisions are assessed by reference to the best avarlable
infermation at the balance sheet date

t] HEADLINE RESULTS

Headline results are stated before the results of discontinued businesses, including those within joint ventures, any exceptional items that
are considered to be one-off and so matenal that they require separate disclosure to aveid distortion of underlying performance and the
amortisation of acquistion intangibles

u) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and assumplions used 1n the preparation of the financial statements are continually reviewed and revised as necessary
Whilst avery effort Is made to ensure that such estimates and assumptions are reasonable, by therr nature they are uncertain, and as such
changes in estimates and assumptions may have a materal impact

The principal items in the financial statements where changes in estimates and assumptions may have a material impact are as follows

RECOVERABLE AMOUNT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

All non-current assets, including goodwill and other intangible assets, are reviewed for potential impairment using estimates of the future

economic benefits attributabte to them Any estimates of future economuc benefits made in relation to non-current assets may differ from

the benefits that ultimately arise and materally affect the recaverable value of the asset Further details an the key assumptions utiised

1n assessing the carrying value are provided 1n note 10 I

ACQUISITION ACCOUNTING

Accounting for the CPW Europe Acquisition involved the use of assumptions in relation to the future cash flows associated with acguisition
intangibles, and the use of valuation technigues in order to arrive at the fair value of the other non-current assets and liabilities acquired
The assumptions applied were based on the best informatien available to management and valuatien techniques were supparted by third
party valuation experts Nevertheless, the actual performance of these assets and lisbilities may differ from the valuations derived through
this exercise
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1 ACCOUNT{NG POLICIES continued

ul CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY continued

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Provisions for irrecoverable recevables are based on extensive historical evidence and the best available information in relation to specific
1Issues, but are unavordably dependent on future events

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Comnussion recevable on sales depends for ceriain transactions on customer behaviour after the point of sale Assurmnptions are therefore
required, particularly in relation to levels of customer default within the contract period, expected levels of customer spend and customer
behaviour beyond the inthial contract period Such assumptions are based on extensive histarical evidence, and provision 1s made for the nisk of
potential changes tn custormer behaviour, but they are nonetheless inherently uncertain Changes in estimates recognised as an increase to
revenue may be made, where for example more reliable information is available, and any such changes are required to be recogaised in the
income statement Changes of estimates during the year ended 29 March 2014 in relation to commussion recevable after the inibial contract term
for sales originating 1n previous years totalled £18m [2013 £21m] The total value of ongotng revenues recevable at 29 March 2014 was £525m
The value of angoing revenues receivable within CPW Europe at 21 March 2013 was £550m

CURRENT TAXATION
The complex nature of tax legislation across the tax jurisdictions in which the Group and its jaint venturas operate necessitates the use
of many eshimates and assumptions where the outcome may differ from that assumed

DEFERRED TAXATION
The extent to which tax losses ¢an be utitised depends cn the extent to which taxable profits are generated in the relevant junisdictions
in the foreseeable future, and on the tax legislation then in force, and as such the value of associated deferrad tax assetis 1s uncertam

PROVISIONS
The Group s provisions are based on the best information available to management at the balanca sheet date However the future costs
assumed are inevitably only estimates, which may differ from those ultimately incurred

SINIWILVLS TWIONYNIS

Prowisions relating to the disposal of excess property necessitate assumptions in respect of the period ta dispesal and exit costs, which
may differ from the vltimate cost of disposal

v] RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS

tn the current year the Group has applied for the first time certain new standards and interpretations, with only IFRS 13 and Amendments
to I1AS 1 affecting the Group The impact of the application of these standards 1s as follows

— IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - provides guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements
IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be receved to selt an asset or paid to transfer a Uability in an arderly transaction in the
principal [or most advantageous| market under current market conditions Other than the additional disclosures, the application of IFRS 13
has not had any matenial impact on the amounts recognised i the consolidated financial staterments

— |AS 1{amanded] Presentation of liems of Other Comprehensive [ncome - requires certain groupings of items presented in the
statement of comprehensive income Items that will be reclassified [or recycled) to profit or loss in the future are presented separately
from itemns that witl never be reclassified

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations which have not been applied In these
financial statements were In 1ssue but not yet effective, and in scme cases had not yet been adopted by the EU

— [AS 34 [amended] Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financizl Assets

— 1AS 39 [amended] Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hadge Accounting

— IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments

— IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27 [amendad] Investment Entities

— IFRS 15 Revenue from Cantracts wiih Customers

— IFRIC 21 Levies

A detailed review of the impact of the adoptien of these standards amendments or interpretations will be performed in due course,
however the directors do not currently expect that they will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements contnued

2 OPERATING SEGMENTS

a)l BASIS FOR SEGMENTATION

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires that operating segmenis mirror the segments that are routinely reviewed by the Board, and which
are used to manage performance and allocate resources

Following the acquisition of CPW Europe the Group s wholly owned operations consist of two segments, being the UK and Ireland and
Mainland Europe {comprising operations in France, Germany, the Netherlands Portugal, Spain and Sweden] This classification is consistent
wiih the management struclure of the Group, and the way in which infarmation 15 reported to the Board Connected World Services, our B2B
business, is not considered to be a separate segment since its operations are currently integrated with those of our retail business in each
market and are therefore not separable Virgin Mcbile France has previously been reported separately as it has a distinct and separate
management team and discrete financtal information n light of the Group s Intention to sell this business, Virgin Mobile France i1s now reported
as a discontinued operation and its resulls are therefore excluded from the segmental results analysis below Details of its profits and losses
are provided in note 24

The Group s reportable segments under !FRS 8 are as follows

Reportable segment Operations

UK and Ireland Retail, distribution, insurance and telecorns services in the UK and Ireland

Mainland Europe Retail, distribution, insurance and telecoms services in Mainland Europe

CPW Europe Retail distribution, insurance and telecoms services when held by the Group as a joint venture
Virgin Mobile France MVNO

b] SEGMENTAL RESULTS

Segmental results for continuing operations are analysed as follows
Jaintventures

cPw [seanote 24|
CPW

Europa Virgin

UK and Mamtand  [to 28 June Mabile
Ireland Europe 20131 France Unallocated® Total
014 £m £m £m €m £m £m
Headline revenue** 1,470 1,035 —_ — _— 2,505
Headline EBIT before share of results of joint ventures 126 7 — —_ - 133
Share of Headline results of joint ventures {post-tax] - — 3 - - 3
Headline EBIT 126 7 3 — - 136
Exceptional items*** (11} 4) —_ — - (15)
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles*** (10) (8] — — — (18}
French operations lin process of closure)*** - (s} {23) — - (29)
Statutory EBIT [segment results) 105 %) {20 — — 76
Assets 1,841 458 —_ 11 — 2,307
Liabilities [a28] (309) — — f290} (1,427)
Net assets 1.013 146 — 1 1299) 880
Capital expenditure 50 8 — — -— 68

* Unallocated Liabilities reftect tha loans and other berrowings of the Group
** Non-Headline revenue of £71m {2013 rul) refates to aperalions in France
***See note 4 for further details

ncluded within UK and fretand and Mainland Europe revenue 1s income from two MNOs of approximately £450m and £400m respectivaly
No other customners or MNOs represent more than 10% of the Group s revenue
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2 OPERATING SEGMENTS continued
b) SEGMENTAL RESULTS continued

Jointventures

CPW Isee note 24]
Virgin
UK and CPw Mobile
Irelznd Europe France Total
2013 Irestated) £m £m £m Em
Revenue " - - 1
Headline EBIT before share of results of joint ventures 3 - - 3
Share of Headline results of joint ventures [post-tax} - 48 — 48
Headline EBIT 3 48 — 51
Share of joint venture exceptional items [post-taxj* — (sl - (s
French cperations [in process of closure)* — 145] — (45)
Statutory EBIT [segment results) 3 2 — 1
Assets 148 524 13 685
Liabilities {24]) - - (24]
Net assets 124 524 13 461
Capital expenditure - - - -
* See note 4 for further details
Transactions between segments are on an arm s length basis
¢) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
The geographical infarmation below further analyses lhe Group s revenue and non-current assets Revenue and non-current assets
are allocated based on the lacation of customers and assets
2014 2013
1] Headline revenue* £m Em
Umnited Kingdom 1,402 11
Netherlands 127 —
Spain 384 -
Germany 395 —
Other 198 —
2,505 N
* Non Headhine revenue of £71m (2013 nill relates to French retaii operations which are in the process of closure
2014 2013
) Non-current assets £m £m
United Kingdom 779 552
Netherlands 40 -
Spain 50 -
Germany 26 -
Other 27 13
952 545
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FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements continued

3 PROFIT [LOSS} BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION
Profit [loss) before interest and taxation is stated after charging [crediting] the following

2014 2013
£m £m
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment 18 1
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles 16 —
Amortisation of other intangibles 16 —
Impairment of property, plant and equipment — 1
Impairment of trade receivables 19 -
Impairment of stock a8 —
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - {3
Investment property rentalincome 2] {6]
Cost of stock recognised as an expense 1,782 —
Net rental expense 88 -
Share-based payments expense 4 —
Other employee costs {see note 5) 284 5
Auditors remuneration comprises the following
2014 2013
£m Em
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 4.1 g1
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and their associates for their audit of the Company s subsidiaries 13 —
Tax advisery services 05 -
Tax compliance services 0.2 —
Other assurance services 06 -
27 01

The Group s share of audit fees in the year for joint ventures was £0 1m (2013 £0 5m) and the Group s share of fees for their tax and other
services was £0 1m (2013 £0 2m) Other assurance services for tha year ended 29 March 2014 relate primarily to the CPW Europe Acquisition,
in respect of which the external auditors acted as reporting accountant

7 2 Carphone Warehouse Group ple
Annual Report 2014




4 NON-HEADLINE ITEMS
Non-Headline items comprise

1] French operations

— The results, including closure provisions, of the Group s French retail business which 1s in the pracess of closure

) CPW Europe Acquisition

— Exceptional iterns associated with the transaction

] CPW Europe Reorganisation

— Exceptional items incurred i the prior year in relation to restructuring actmvity within CPW Europe

w) Amortisation of acquisitton ntangtbles

— Amortisation of acquisition intangibles, relating principally to the CPW Eurepe Acquisition

The tems above have affected the results of both the wholly owned Group and the Groug s joint ventures and are analysed as follows

Restated =
2014 2013 =
Notes £m Em ;
=
Continuing operaticns =
Revenue. g
French operations 1) x| — TE"
Costof sales: @
French operations 1) (48] -
Operating expenses.
French operatians ] (291 -
CPW Europe Acquisition nl (15] -
Amortisation of acquisitton intangsbles v) (18] -
{601 —
Share of results of joint ventures [post-tax]
French operations i (231 (45]
CPW Europe Reorgamisation n - (s}
23] (50)
Taxation:
CPW Europe Acquisition ul 3 -
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles w) 3 —
Loss for the year from continuing operations [54] (50)
Discentinued operations
Amortisatien of joint venture acquisition intangibles —_ (1]
Loss for the year {54] {51
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Group financial statements contnued

4 NON-HEADLINE ITEMS continued

1] FRENCH OPERATIONS

In bight of an ncreasingly challenging market context CPW Europe commenced an exit from the French retail market 0 Apnil 2013 The exit costs
and resuits of this business during this process have been excluded from Headline earnings with comparatives restated on the same basis

During the year ended 31 March 2013, a pre-tax charge of £7m was heoked in relation to redundancies, lease exit costs and other cash
restructuring costs relating to approximately 75 stores which the business had commutted to exit at the year end In addition the goodwill
associated with the French business was written off dusing the same period, alongside various other non-current assets in the business
Together with asset write-downs associated with store closures that were committed during the year, total non-cash asset write-downs of
£94m were baoked 1n the year A tax credit of £5m was booked against these charges, pnincipally reflecting the de-recognition of deferred
tax Liabilittes

CPW Furope s French operations recorded an EBIT of £8m in the year ended 31 March 2013, against which a tax charge of £1m was recognised
The Group s past-tax share of these restructuring costs, asset write-downs and operating results was £45m

In the year ended 2 March 2014, prior ta the CPW Europe Acquisition and in light of the commitmant to exit the business, CPW Europe
recarded further non-cash asset write-downs of £8m, and provided £32m for estimated future exit costs, principally covering redundancies
and lease axit costs Operating losses of £10m were incurred prior to the CPW Europe Acquisition resulting from the chalienging environment
that prompted the decision to exit the French market tegether with the effects of the announcement of this decision A tax credit of £3m was
recogmised against these items The Group s post-tax share of these restructuning costs asset write-downs and operating results was £23m

Since the CPW Europe Acquisition, the French business incurred further EBIT losses of £6m, representing gross margin of £23m and operating
expenses of £29m

Following our imitial decision to exit the French retail market, 1t has become apparent that there 1s an opportunity to develop a new
Connected World Services business in France focusing initially on leveraging our French insurance business, as we did following our exit
from retail operations in Belgium Since the year end, we have put in place a team to develop this business, which has already secured its
first two third party clients and Is actively engaged in tenders for other business While the value of the run-off base, in the absence of the
retail infrastructure to support it, is ctearly uncertain, we will aim to use it to grow the Connected World Services business as part of
continuing eperaticns going forward and witl present this within Headline results

i) CPW EURGOPE ACQUISITION
The CPW Europe Acquisition gave rise te a number of exceptional items

Operating expenses include banking and professionat fees of £7m in relation to the transaction Additionally, as a result of the transaction,
a number of incentive schemes could not be maintained in their existing form, and they were either allowed to vest early or were replaced
during the year This resulted in cash costs of £8m and an acceleration of non-cash accounting charges of £3m A tax credit of £3m has
been recognised in respect of these costs

The CPW Europe Acquisition required the Group to fair value its existing 50% interest in CPW Europe which was censidered to be equal
to the £500m gross consideraticn for Best Buy s 50% interest, giving rise to a non-cash gain of £1m

Arrangements with Best Buy allowed the Group to manage the disposal of the Consideration Shares issued to Best Buy and to benefit from
any gain on disposal above a share price of £1 90 The Consideration Sharas were placed at a price of £2 44, resulting 1n a net cash gain of £22m

for the Group The gain implied by comparing the share price at completion being £2 38, and £1 90 1s treated as an adjustment ta consideration

{see note 23] and the remaining gain of £2m 1s recorded in the iIncome statement

i) CPW EUROPE REORGANISATION

During the prior year, CPW Eurcope undertook a review of its UK and group operations with a view to simplifying group functions and giving
more autonomy and accountability te individual business units CPW Europe also initiated plans to reduce its store portfolio and operating
cost base across certain Mainland European markets As a result of this exercise, the business booked an exceptional charge of £18m in
relation to redundancies, lease exit costs and other cash restructuring costs

A tax credit of E7m was recagnised against these charges, principally in respect of relief anticipated on cash reorganisation costs and the
de-recognition of deferred tax Liabilities

The Group s post-tax share of these charges was £5m

] AMORTISATION OF ACQUISITION INTANGIBLES
A charge of £16m arose during the year in relation to acquisition intangsbles arising on the CPW Europe Acquisition, against which a tax
credit of £3m has been recognised

Amortisation in the prior year within discontinued operations relates to acquisition intangibles within Virgin Mobile France which arose
on the acquisition of Tele2 France in Decernber 2009
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5 EMPLOYEE COSTS AND SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
a) EMPLOYEE CO5TS
The aggregate remuneration recognised In the income statement 1n each year 1s as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
Salarnes and performance bonuses 246 4
Social security costs 34 1
Other pension costs 4 —
284 5
Share-based payments 4 -
288 5
The average number of employees lincluding directors] during tha year anded 29 March 2014 was ote ot
Adrninistration 1,464 22
Sales and customer management 7,243 —
8,707 22

Compensation earned by key management, comprising the Board of directors and senior executives, was as follows
Salaries 4 2
Performance bonuses 4 1
Social security costs 2 —
Share-based payments 1 -
1" 3

During the year loans were advanced {o key management to cover the tax ansing on the exercise of share options that vested as part of the
CPW Eurcpe Acquisition In addition loans were advanced to members of key management in retation to the Carphone Warehouse Share

Plan At 29 March 2014 loans to key management in relation to these schemes totalled £10m (2013 £1m] Interest s charged on leans at market
rates and interest of £0 3m [2013 nil) has been recagnised during the year ended 29 March 2014

b) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

1) CARPHONE WAREHOUSE SHARE PLAN

During the year the Group introduced the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan which allows participants te share 10% of the incremental value
created in CPW In excess of an opening value [assessed over a three month period prior to approval by shareholders in June 2013) and beyond
an annual rate of return of 7% on invested capital The plan 15 underpinned by a minimum annual compeound TSR growth of 5% and
putperformance of the median TSR of the FTSE 250

Participants acquired at market value parlicipation shares in a subsidiary company that holds the Company s interests in CPW Europe The
Group granted loans to participants at a commercial rate of interest to acquire the shares Loans are ordinarily repayable in futl if performance
conditions are met

The performance of the scheme will ordinanly be measured in or around June 2017, when 60% of the shares vest, with 40% deferrad for a
further year When the awards vest, ihe value of the shares held by participants will be based on the incremental value (if anyl of CPW in
excess of the opemng valuation together with the munimum return on invested capital These shares will then be purchased by the Company
for cash and/or the Company s ordinary shares

A bad leaver will be required to transfer the particypation shares to such party as the Company designates for an amount equal to the total
amount outstanding under the loan If the market value of the shares Is less than the amount of the outstanding loan {and any accrued
interest] then the participant may be required to repay 20% of the shortfall aut of their ewn resources

A participant shalt be a good leaver at the scle discretion of the Remuneration Committee and may be permutted to retain an award
notwithstanding the termination of their employment

The mechanics of the plan may be varied by the Remuneration Comrmittee if necessary to ensure that participants are neither advantaged
nor disadvantaged by a variation of the share capital of the Company bona fide merger, reconstruction or simitar reorganisaiicn
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FINAKCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

5 EMPLOYEE COSTS AND SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

bl SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

n} SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year the Group introduced the Carphone Warehouse Share Scheme which allows nil-priced options to be offered to senior

employees who are not participants in the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan |

Options were first granted under the scheme in January 204 The options are subject to continuing employment and are subject to performance |
conditions based on a combination of absolute TSR performance and relative TSR performance against the FTSE 250

Prior to the CPW Europe Acquisition, CPW Europe had a share option scheme, under which participants received options aver A shares in
New CPW and each of Best Buy and the Company had an obligation to acquire 50% of these shares at a value based on the Headline PBT of
CPW Europe over the vesting period The pool was based on earnings in excess of minimum growth targets agamnst the earnings for the year
ended 31 March 2009 The Cornpany and Best Buy agreed a minimum value of the pool, 1n recogmition of the value that had already accrued

In the scheme In relation to Best Buy Mobile

In order to align the interests of participants with those of the Company, the value of the A shares in New CPW were assessed at defined points
during the vesting period and nil-priced options over shares in the Company were granted to participants through the Participation Plan to
match this value, so that participants benefited from any growth in the market capitalisation of the Company during the vesting period

Further to the CPW Europe Acguisition the Remuneration Committee allowed the scheme to vest based on performance achieved to 31 March 2013
In addition to the Group s obligations under the scheme the Group also agreed to satisfy Best Buy s obligations under the scheme The Company
1ssued 14m shares n relation to these obligations

The following table summarises the number and weighted average exercise price | WAEP ) of share options for these schemes

2014 2013

Number WAEP Number WAEP

mmllion € milhion £

Outstanding at the begmning of the year 5 - — -

Granted during the year 18 — 7 -

Lapsed during the year - - 12 -

Exercised during the year (14} —_ — —
Outstanding at the end of the year ? — 5 - ‘
|
|

Exercisable at the end of the year —_ —_ — —

Options exercisad duning the year were exercised at a waighted average market price of £2 48
All options outstanding at the end of the year were nil-priced and had a weighted average remaining contractual tife of 9 8 years

) SAVE AS YOU EARN SCHEME

During the year the Group introduced a Save As You Earn scheme which allows parlicipants to save up to £250 per ronth for aither three
or five years At the end of the savings period participants can purchase shares in the Corpany based on a discounted share price determined
at the commencement of the scheme The following table summarises the number and WAEP of share options for these schemes

2014 2013
Number WAEP Number WAEP
million £ million t
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year — — — -
Granted during the year 3 224 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 3 224 — -

Exercisable at the end of the year - - — — |

All options outstanding at the end of the year had an exercise price of £2 24 Opticns outstanding at the end af the year had & weighted
average remaining contractual life of 3 9 years

iv] JOINT VENTURE INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Virgin Mobile France has 1ssued market-priced and mil-priced share options in Virgin Mobile France to certain employees of the business
These options vest over periods of two to four years

v] FAIR VALUE MODEL

The fair value of options with external performance largets was estimated at the date of grant using a Monte Carlo model The model
combines the market price of a share at the date of grant with the probability of meeting performance cnteria, based on the hisiorical
performance of Carphone Warehouse and Old Carphone Warehouse shares

vi) CHARGE TO INCOME STATEMENT AND ENTRIES iN RESERVES

During the year endad 29 March 2014, the Group recognised a non-cash accounting charge to prafit and loss of ££m {2013 nill in respect of
equity settled share-based payments, which 1s offset by an entry through reserves This entry 1s offset in reserves by the non-recourse
element of loans provided to participants in the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan
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5 EMPLOYEE COSTS AND SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

¢] EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP TRUST

The Group has an ESOT, which hald 4 9m shares in the Company at 29 March 20t [2013 0 04m for the benefit of the employees of the Group
The maximum number of shares held by the Group s ESOT during the year was 4 9m, from July 2013 to March 2014 (2013 0 Zim, frorm April 2012
to August 2012], which represented 0 9% (2013 0 G4%l of the Company s 1ssued share capital The ESOT has waived its rights to receive dividands

and its shares have not been allocated to specific schemes At 29 March 2014 the shares had a market value of £14 3m (2013 £0 1m!

4 INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE
Interest income 1s analysed as follows

2014 2013
£Em Em
Interest on cash and cash equivalents 1 1
Interest and other finance income from joint ventures 1 1
Unwind of discounts on trade recelvables 6 —
8 2
Interest expense is analysed as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Interest on bank overdrafts and leans (111 -
Interest on deferred constderation (1 -
Other interest expense (5) —
{17 —
7 CORPORATION TAX
al AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS
The corporation tax charge comprises
2014 203
£m Em
Currenttax
UK corporation tax 10 —
Gverseas tax 3 -
13 -
Adjustments made in respect of prior years
UK corporation tax 1 —
Overseas tax [6) -
{51 -
Total current tax 8 —
Deferred tax
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 18 -
Adjustments in respect of prior years (7} 1
Total deferred tax 1 1
Total tax charge 19 1

The standard rata of corporation tax reduced fram 24% to 23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 in accardance with the Financa Act 2012 In addition,
the Finance Act 2013 was substantively enacted on 2 July 2013, further reducing tha standard rate of UK corporation tax from 23% to 21% with

effect from 1 April 2014 and from 21% to 20% from 1 April 2015 The reduced rates have been reflected n ihe calculation of deferred tax
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements contned

7 CORPORATION TAX continued
b] RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

The Group s effective rate of tax before nan-Headline items for the year ended 29 March 2014 1s 20% The principal differences between the
total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 23% (2013 24%)] to profit (loss)

before taxation are as follows

Restated
Naon- Restated Non- Restated
Headline Headline Statutory Headline Headline Statutory
2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013
€m Em €m £m Em Em
Profit (loss] before taxation 127 (6@ 67 53 (50 3
Income tax expense at 23% (2013 24%)] 29 (14] 15 13 (12) 1
Adjustments in respect of prior years )] (3) (12 1 - 1
lterns attracting no tax relief or Liability 2 1 13 (13] 12 11
Movermnent in unprovided deferred tax ]| - ] — - —
Exceptional write-off of tax assets and Liabilities — 1 1 - — -
Change in tax rate 4 n 3 — — —
Total tax charge [credit) 25 {81 19 1 — 1

Items attracting no tax relief or Liabibity in the current year relate primarily to French operations, while tems attracting no relief or Liability in the
prior year relate primanly to results of joint ventures, the Group s share of which 1s reported within profit before taxation on a post-tax basis

¢ MOVEMENTS ON DEFERRED TAX BALANCES

Deferred tax balances recogmsed by the Group and movements thereon during the year are as follows

CPW Recognised Recognised

Opemng Europs drractly in n profitar Closing

balance Acguisition equity loss halance

2014 £m £m £m £m £m

Temporary differences on capitalised costs — 27 — (&) 21

Carried forward tax losses —_ 3 - _ 3

Other temporary differences 1 14 (5] 12

Deferred tax assets [Labilities) 1 44 2 i1 34

Recognised

Opening i profit or Closing

balance loss balance

2013 £m Em £m

Temporary differences on capitalised costs - - -

Carried forward tax losses - - —

Other temporary differences (1 1

Deferred tax assets [habilities] 2 (1] 1
Deferred tax comprises the following balances

2014 2013

£m £m

Deferred tax asseis 54 1

Deferred tax Liabilities (18] -

35 1

d) UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AL 29 March 2014, the Group had appraoximately £69m {2013 £24m] of unusad tax losses available for offset aganst future taxable profits
The majority of these losses are within CPW Europe, which were acquirad through the CPW Europea Acquisition A deferred tax assel of
£3m (2013 nill has been recognised In respect of thase unused losses No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
losses due to lack of cerlainty regarding the availabiity of future taxable profits Such losses are only recogrised in the financial statements

to the extent that 1t +s considered more likely than not that sufficient future taxable prafits will be availlable for offset

There were no temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities had not been

recognised at the end of either year
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8 RECONCILIATION OF HEADLINE RESULTS TO STATUTORY RESULTS

Profit {lass) Profitllessl  Profit [loss]
before  Prefit [loss) from from Het
interest and before tontinuing discontinued  profit (tosst
taxation taxation  operatrons  operations fortheyear
2014 £€m £m £m £m £m
Headline results 136 127 102 -— 102
Exceptional items* (15} (15] {12} — 12}
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles* (18) (18] (131 — 13l
French operations [in process of closure)* (291 (291 (29) - {29)
Statutary results 74 &7 48 — 48
* See note 4 for further detaits
Profit [loss) Profit loss)  Profit (loss)
befare Protit [loss) from from Net
interest and before continuing discontinyed probit [loss)
taxation taxation operations operations for the year
2013 [restatad] £m £m Em £m Em
Headline results 9] 53 52 3 55
Share of joint venture excepticnal items [post-tax)* (5] (5] (5) - (5)
French operations [in process of closure}* (45) (45) {45 - {45)
Share of discontinued joint venture amortisation of acquisition intangibles® - — — {1 ]
Statutory results 1 3 2 2 4

*See note 4 for furlher details
Headline information 1s provided because the directors consider that it prowides assistance in understanding the Group s underlying perfarmance

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
al PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS
The calculation of both basic and dituted earnings per share 1s based on the following profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

Restated
2014 2013
£m fm
Headline earnings
Continuing operations 102 52
Discontinued operations —_ 3
Total 102 55
Statutory earnings
Continuing operations 48
Discontinued operations -
Total 48 4

b) WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 1s based on the following weighted average number of ordinary shares with the
number of shares used for the dlduted calculation being adjusted for the dilutive effect of share options and other incentive schemes

2014 2013
mithon million

Weighted average number of shares
Average shares in 1ssue 558 473
Less average hotding by Group ESGT 3l -
For basic earnings per share 555 473
Dilutive effect of share options and other incentive schemes 7 &
For diluted earnings per share 562 479

The average rnarket value of the Company s shzres for the purpose of calculating the dilutive effect of share options was based on quoted
market prices for the year during which the options were outstanding

The number af shares (n 1ssue at 2 March 2014 was 576m, of which 5rm were held by the Group s ESOT
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FINANCIAL STATEMEKTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE continued

c) BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earmings per share

{pence) [pence)
2014 2013 2014 2013
Headline earnings
Continuing operations 18 4p 109p 181p 10 8p
Discontinued operations 00p 07p 00p 0%
Total 18 4p 11 ép 181p 11 5p
Statutory earmings
Continuing cperaticns 8 ép 03p 85p 03p
Discontinued operations 00p 0ép 00p 0 ép
Total 8 &p 09%p 8 5p 0%
10 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software Customer Intangible
and Licences relationships Brands assets Goodwill
Cost €m Em £m £m £m
Balance at 1 April 2013 — - — — —
CPW Europe Acquisition 54 56 10 120 484
Additions 48 — — 48 —_
Foreign exchange —_ - - — 3)
Balance at 29 March 2014 102 96 10 148 481
Software Customer Intangible
and licences relationships Brands assels Goodwill
Accumulated amortisation and impawrment losses £m £m £m Em £m
Balance at 1 April 2013 — — — _ -_—
Amortisation (&) {14) (2 (32} -
Balance at 29 March 2014 (1&) (14) (2] (32) -
Software Customer Intangible
apd licences relationships Brands assets Goodwll
Carrying amounts £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2013 — - - - -
At 29 March 2014 86 42 8 136 481

Software and licences include assets with a cost of £14m [2013 mill on which amortisation has not been charged as the assets have nctyet been

brought into use
1) ALLOCAT!ON OF GOODWILL T0 CGUs

The goodwill arising on the CPW Europe Acquisition was allocated to the Group s cash generating units [ CGUs ] which were expected
to benefit from the acquisition, based on value in use calculations At 29 March 2014 goodwill was allocated to CGUs as follows

Em

UK 406
MNethertands 34
Spamin 31
Ireland 8
481
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10 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

1) GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT TESTING

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value i use calculations or fair market value as appropriate The Group prepared

cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent financial budgets and long-term plans approved by management and extrapolated cash flows in
perpetuity based on country-specific growih rates The cash flow forecasts reflect management s expeclations of EBITDA capital expenditure

and working capital, all of which are based en historical patlerns and expectations of juture market developments

Other key assumptions for the value In use calculations are growth rates and discount rates Growth rates used were between 1 0% ta 19%
[2013 15% to 4 5% and are determined based an third party long-term growth rate forecasts for the regions in which the CGUs operate
This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets The pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast cash
flows reflect current market assessments of the bme value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs, and ranged between 9 3% and

11 9% (2013 77% to 10 2%

The carrying value of goodwill s tested for impairment on an annual basis, or more freguently if there are (ndicatars that goodwill might
be impaired, In accordance with the requirements of IFRS

As explained in note lu, expected future cash flows are inherently uncertain and may differ from the cash flows that ultrrnately anse which may
affect the recoverable value of the CBU The Group conducted a sensitvity analysis on the impairment tests of CGUs The directors consider that
the Netherlands 1s the only CGU for which a reasonably possible change in key assumptions during the next year would cause the recoverable amount
of the CGU ta fall below its carrying amount At 29 March 2014, the recoverable amaunt exceeded the carrying value by £7m in the Natherlands,
Incorporating a long-term growth rate of 12% and a pre-tax discount rate of 93% as key assumptions If the pre-tax discount rate increased above
10 1% or forecast EBITDA reduced by more than 7% the recoverable amount 1n the Netharlands would fall below its carrying amount

) INTANGIBLES ACQUIRED BURING THE YEAR AS PART OF CPW EUROPE ACQUISITION
al Acquisition intangibles included customer relationships and brands Each class of intangible asset was independently valued by experts
using appropriate valuation techniques

b) Software and licences were independently valued using an amortised replacement cost method Amortisation commences from the
point at which the software comes into use

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Shaort

Freehold land teaseheld Fixtures Computer

and buildings costs  and fitings hardware Total
Cost Em Em £m Em Em
Batance at 1 April 2012 72 - - —_ 72
Disposals (42) - - — [42)
Balance at 31 March 2013 30 - — — 30
CPW Europe Acgquisition - 27 24 21 72
Additions — 2 " 7 20
Disposals (12} - -_ - 2)
Forewn exchange - - i1l — (1
Balance at 2% March 2014 18 29 34 28 109

Short

Freehold tand leasehold Fixtures Computer

and buildings costs  and fittings hardware Total
Accumutated depreciation and impairment [psses £m £m £m Em £m
Balance at 1 April 2012 (¢) - — — [&)
Depreciation (m - - - K]
Imparment (1) - - — )]
Disposals 5 - — - 5
Balance at 31 March 2013 (3} - - — {31
Disposals 2 e —_ -_— 2
Depreciation f1) (5} (N 151 (18}
Balance at 29 March 2014 2] {51 (71 (5} nyl
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FINANCIAL STATEMENKTS

Notes to the Group financial statements contined

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continved

Short
Freeheld land leasehold Fixtures Camputer
and buildings costs  and fittings hardware Total
Carrying amaunts £m Em £m £m £m
At 31 March 2013 27 — - - 27
At 29 March 2014 16 24 27 23 90

Freehold land and buildings comprisa the Group s investment property The fair value of investment property as at 2% March 2014 was
determined by an external, independent property valuation expart as £22m (2013 €31m] The valuation expert has appropriate recognised
professional qualifications as well as recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued The valuation of
properties was performed by reference to appropriate yield rates and market evidence of recent transactions

Future minimum lease payments in respect of the Group 5 1nvestment properties are detailed in note 28

12 PRINCIPAL COMPANY INVESTMENTS

The Company has investmnents in the following subsidiary undertakings, which, alangside joint ventures, principally affected the profits or
losses or net assets of the Group To avotd a statement of excessive length, detatls of investments which are not significant have been omitted
All holdings are in equity share capital and give the Group an effective holding of 100% on caonselidation

Name

Country of incorporation
or registration

Nature of business

The Carphone Warehouse Limtted
The Phone House SpainS LU

The Phone House Deutschland GmbH
The Phene House Telecom GmbH
The Phone House Netherlands B V
GEAEB The Phone House AB

The Carphone Warehouse Limited
The Phone House Coamercia e Aluguer de bens e Servigos Lda
New Technology Insurance

ISE-Net Solutions Linnted

New CPW Limited*

Carphone Warehouse Europe Limited

England and Wales
Spain

Germany

Germany
Netherlands
Sweden

Ireland

Portugal

Ireland

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Distribution
Distribution
Distribution
Distribution
Distribution
Distribution
Distribution
Destribution
Insurance
T

Holtding company

Holding company

* Held directly by the Company

The following subsidianes all of which ara incorporated in England and Wales, are exempt frorn the requirements of the UK Companies Act 2006

relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479A of that Act

Company

ragistration

Name number

CPW Tulketh Mill Limited 05585719

CPW Irlam Limited 05825842

CPW Brands 2 Limited 07135355

The Carphone Warehouse {Digital] Limited 03966947

CPW Acton Five Limited 05738735

CPW Censultancy Limited 07881879

CWIAB Limited 02441554

The Carphone Warehouse UK Limited 03827277

CPW CP Limited 06585457
13STOCK

2014 2013

£m Em

Finished goods and goeds fer resale 240 -

240 —
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2014 2013

£m Em

Trade receivables 9386 -

Less provision for impairment (201 —

Trade receivables net of provision for impairment 215 —

Prepayments and other receivables 90 3

Accrued income 5 -

Derivative financial assets 2 -

1,012 3

Non-current kAl -
Current 821

1,012 3

Non-current recevables represents commission recevable on sales which 1s due after more than one year Trade and other recevables
are discounted using discount ratas which reflect the relevant costs of financing when the recewvable 15 recogrised where the time value

of money 1s constdered to be matenal

The Group s gross trade recewables are denominated in the following currencies

2014 2013
£m Ern
Sterting 498 -
Euro 229 —
Other 8 -
935 -
The ageing of gross trade recevables 1s as follows

2014 2003
£m Em
Not yet due 795 -
Under 2 months L9 _
2 to 4 months 39 —
Over 4 menths 52 —
935 —

The ageing of pravisions for impairment of trade recewables 1s as follows
2014 013
Em Em
Mot yet due (21 -
Under 2 months (3 -
2 to 4 months m -
Over 4 months (14l -
(20] -
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Notes to the Group financial statements continue

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued
Movements in provisions for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

2014 2013
£m Em

Opening balance — -
CPW Europe Acquisstion (23) -
Charged to the income statement 191 —
Recewvables written off as irrecoverable 22 —
Closing balance (20) -~

As at 29 March 2014, trade receivables of £122m {2013 nil) were past due but not impaired The Group made provision based an historical
rates of recoverability and all unprovided amounts are considered to be recoverable The ageing analys:s of these trade receivables 1s
as follows

2014 2013
£€m £
Under 2 months 46 -
2to 4 months 38 -
Over 4 months ki:} —
122 —

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2014 2013
£m £m
Cash at bank and on deposit 283 17

Cash and cash equivalents include short-terr bank deposits which ara available on demand Within cash and cash equivalents, £25m [2013 rul]
15 held by the Group s insurance business to cover regulatary reserve requirements As such these funds are not available to offset zgainst
other Group barrowings A further £1m 1s held to cover abligations on third party insurance accounts

Loans and other borrowings are set out in note 19
16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2014 2013
£m Em
Current

Trade payables 565 i
Accruals 166 15
Deferred income " 1
Other taxes and social security amounts payable 127 -
869 17

Non-current
Trade and other payables 113 -
Total trade and other payables 982 17

Non-current trade and other payables relate principally to property leases that are deemed to be over-rented These liabilities are unwound
over the period of the relevant lease, of up to 22 years
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156 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES continued
The Group s gross trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies

2014 2013
£m Em
Sterling 655 17
Euro 313 —
Other 14 -
982 17
17 DEFERRED CONSIDERATION
2014 2013
£m Em
Current 25 -
Non-current 25 _
50 -
Deferred consideration arase on the CPW Europe Acquisition and 1s payable to Best Buy in two equal instalments of £25m due in Juna 2014
and June 2015 These amounts bear interest at 2 5% per annum
18 PROVISIONS
Rearganisation Sales Other Total
£m Em Em im
Batance at 1 April 2012 - - 9 9
Released in the year - - (2] 12)
Balance at 31 March 2013 — -— 7 7
CPW Europe Acquisition 35 " 17 43
Charge in profitor loss — 3 4 7
Released in the year - - {2l {3}
Utlised in the year {13) (4 (7 (24}
Balance at 29 March 2014 22 10 18 50
19 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS
“tntm
Current habilities
Finance lease opligations {1 -
Non-current Labilities
Loans and other berrowings (290] -
(291 —
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Notes to the Group financial statements continued

19 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS continued

a) LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
1] COMMITTED FACILITIES

The Group has a £650m multi-currency term and revalving credit facility which matures in April 2017 This facility 1s split inta two tranches
a £400m revolving tranche and a term loan tranche of £250m, which amortises by £25m on 30 June 2015 and by a further £50m on 30 June 2016

The rate of interest payahle on borrowings is the aggregate of the applicable margin which depends en performance against one of the
facibity s financial covenants and LIBOR [or an equivalent benchmark rate for other currenciesl Commutment and utilisation {ees are also

payable under the terms of the facility

n) BANK OVERDRAFTS AND UNCOMMITTED FACILITIES

The Group has overdraft and uncommitied money market facilities tatailing approximately £95m {2013 £3m)

b) FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIGNS
Finance lease Labitities are payable as follows

Future minimum

Present value of mimimum

lease payments Interest lease payments
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
£m Em £m £m £€m £m
LLess than one year 1 - _ — 1 —
1 — — — 1 —

¢} ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FUNDS (DEBT)

At1Aprnl CPWEurope Cash 29 MarcAI:
2013 Acquisitien flows 2014
Em £m £m £m
Cash and cash eguivalents 117 —_ 166 283
117 — 166 283
Loans and other borrowings - (271) (191 t290}
Finance lease obligations - (31 2 i1
- (274) (17} 291
Met funds {debt) 117 [274) 149 (81

8 6 Carphone Warehouse Group plc
Annual Report 2014




19 LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS continued
c) ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FUNDS [DEBTI continued

At

At 1 April Cash 31 March

2012 flows 20:3

Em £m £m

Cash and cash eguvalents 103 14 17

Net funds 103 14 117
20 SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013 2014 203

million millian £m Em

Allotted called-up and futly paid ordinary shares of 0 1p each 576 473 1 1

201 2013 2014 2013

mullien mithion €m Em

Ordinary shares in1ssue at the beginning of the year 473 473 1 1

Issued for cash 47 — — -

Exercise of share cptions 14 — —_ _

lssue of Consideration Shares 42 - - —

Ordinary shares tn 1ssue at the end of the year 576 473 1 i

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared frem time to ime and are entitled to one vete per share at general meetings
of the Company On 30 April 2013 the Group placed 47 2m ordinary shares at 222 pence per share raising net proceeds of £103m which were
used to fund part of the cons:deration for the CPW Europa Acquisition On 25 June 2013 the Group 1ssued 42 tm Consideration Shares to Best Buy
Best Buy agreed to wawve rights to dividends payable on these shares for the period in which they were in their ownership The Consideration
Shares were placed by the Group i July 2013 and from this point held the same rights as other ordinary shares
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21 RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED PROFITS

Share Capital
Share premium Accumutated Translation Demerger redemption
capital reserve prohts reserve reservae reserve Total
2014 €m €m Em £€m Em €m £m
At the beginning of the year 1 170 1,238 2 (750] - 661
Net profit for the year - -_ 48 - — — 48
Other comprehensive Income [expense) — — 2 (Wh]] - - ]|
Issue of shares _ 13 103 —_ — —_ 216
Net purchase of own shares — - i12) - - - (12]
Equity dividends — - (30) - - - (30
Tax on items recognised directly through reserves — - ] — - —_— 6
At the end of the year 1 283 1,355 [9] [750) — 880
Share Capnal
Share premium Accumulated  Translation Demerger redemption
capal reserve profits reserve reserve reserve Tatal
2013 £m Em £m E£m £m tm Em
At the beginning of the year 34 170 697 - (750 557 708
Net profit for the year - - 4 - — — 4
Other comprehensive income - - - 2 — - 2
Redemption of shares (33] - {33 - — 33 (33
Equity dividends — - (23] — - - (23)
Capital reduction - — 590 - - (5901 -
Share of other reserve movements of joint ventures - - 3 - — — 3
At the end of the year 1 170 1,238 2 {750) - 6561
22 EQUITY DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS
The following dividends and distributions were paid during the year
2014 2013
£m Em
Redemption of 172p per B share through the B/C Share Scheme — 33
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of 3 25p per ordinary share — 15
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of 1 75p per ordinary share -_ 8
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of 3 25p per ordinary share 19 -
Intertm dividend for the year ended 29 March 2014 of 2 00p per ordinary share " -
30 56
The following distribution 1s proposed but had not been effected at 2% March 2014
£m
Final dividend for the year ended 2% March 2014 of 4 00p per ordinary share 23

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 29 March 2014 1s subject to shareholders approval at the forthcorming annual general

meeting and has not been included as a Liability in these financial statements
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23 CPW EUROPE ACQUISITION

On 26 June 2013 the Group completed the CPW Europe Acquisition for a gross consideration of £500m bringing the Group s ownership interest
t0 100% CPW Europe 1s ane ef the targest independent telecommunications specialists in Europe, operating retail stores principally under the
Carphane Warehouse and Phone House brands together with well-developed ontine propositions CPW Europe 15 also increasingly fecused
an leveraging its assets and expertise to provide services to third parties through its Connected World Services business

The primary reasons for the acquisition were to bring a simplified ownership structure making day-to-day management easier and
the strategic decision-making process more streamlined, and enabling the Group to better leverage CPW Europe s asset base and
know-how

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of CPW Europe as at the acquisition date were as follows

Notes Em
Intangible assets 20
Property, plant and equipment 72
Deferred tax assets 44
Stock 343
Trade and other recevables ahl 1,112
Net cash and cash equivalents 53
Current asset iInvestments 5
Trade and other payables [836)
Corporation tax Liabitities 148)
Provisions alu} {63)
Loans and other berrowings (271
Finance lease obligations (3]
identifiable net assets 528
Goodwill al ) 484
Totak consideration 1,012
Satisfied by

Fair value of existing joint venture investment b)) 500
Cash b] 1) 3710
Deferred consideration ol ) 50
Equity b) v} 13
Dervative asset b) ] (21}
1,012

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 370
Less net cash and cash equivalents acquired (53
37

aj NET ASSETS ACQUIRED

1] Thefair value of trade and ather receivables represents gross cantractual amounts recewvable of £1,135m, less amounts not considered
collectable of £23m

u)  Provisions include the recognition of contingent liabiliies of £8m in relaiton to legal claims and other potential exposures I1s expected
thal any costs associated with these contingant liabilites witl be incurred over the next four years

) The goodwill of E484m arising on the acquisition reflects the fact that CPW Europe s value is based an its cash generating potenbial
rather than its existing assets, and the fact that many of its key strengihs, such as its scale and expertise, do not represent intangible
assets as defined by IFRS None of the goodwitt s expected to be deductible for income tax purposes
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Notes to the Group financial statements conunved

23 CPW EUROPE ACQUISITION continued
b] CONSIDERATION
i} IFRS 3 Business Combinations requires that the Group s existing 50% interest in CPW Europe be revalued ta its fair value as part
of the acquisition accounting process The fair value of this interest 1s considered to be equal to the gross considerat:on af £500m
pad by the Group 1o acquire Best Buy s 50% interest in CPW Europe As the carrying value of the Group s investment in CPW Europe
was £499m at the acquisition date, a gain of £1m was recognised In non-Headline operating expenses in respect of this revaluation

u] Gross cash constderation of £370m was settted on completion, offset by payments fram Best Buy of £29m in respect of the prepayment
or termination of the Group s other mterests with Best Buy

m} The £50m of deferred cash consideration, which bears interest at 2 5% per annum Is payable to Best Buy in two equal instalmentis
of £25m in June 2014 and June 2015

vl A further £80m of consideration was provided through the issue on completion of 42 1m shares to Best Buy. at a price of £1 90 per share
The Group had the right to place the Consideration Shares on Best Buy s behalf duning the 12 menth periad to June 2014, and to retain
any upside on disposal The value of the Consideration Shares on completion was £101m based on a share price at that date of £2 38,
and this value 1s recorded as censideration, with the value associated with the nght to place the Consideration Shares recognised as
a dervative financial asset of £21m The Consideration Shares were placed in July 2013 at an average price of £2 44, resulting in a net
cash gamn of £23m for the Graup The difference between the disposal proceeds and the value of the derwvative financial asset has
been recogmsed as a gain of £2m n non-Headline operating expenses

As part of the transaction, the Group agreed to satisfy Best Buy s obligatiens in relation to certain incentive schemes Shares with
a value of £12m were 1ssued n respect of Best Buy s abligations and have been included in consideration

¢) OTHER INFORMATION

The results of CPW Europe have been consolidated into the Group s income staterent from 26 June 2013, cantributing £2.561m of revenue
and a profit bafore tax of €41m in the peried to 29 March 2014 [f the acquisition had completed on 1 April 2013, baing the first day of the
financial year, the Group s revenue would have been £3,402m and the Group s profit before tax would have been £46m

Transactien-related charges of £18m comprising banking and professional fees of £7m and cash and non-cash charges relating
to incentive schames af £11m have been included in non-Headline eperating expenses

24 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Interests in joint ventures are as follows

Country of 2014 2013
Business Principal actities incorporation nterest Interest
CPW Europe Retail distribution, Insurance telecoms services England and Wales n/a 50 0%
Virgin Mohile France MVND England and Wales 46 3% 46 3%

The Group acquired Best Buy s 50% interest in CPW Europe on 26 June 2013, following which the Group s joint venture interest in CPW
Europe was derecognised and the Group consalidated the resulls of CPW Europe Refer to note 23 for further details

Managernant of Virgin Mobile France hold share eptions in the business as explained in nate 5b In additton to share options management
of Virgin Mobile France hold warrants that give them the right to acquire new shares at a price based on the value of existing sharehclder
funding and an additional amount which increases wath the quantity of shares being acquered The maximum potential ditution to the Group s
stake If all existing share oplions and warrants were exercised 1s approximately 5 0%, although the value of this dilution would be partially
offset by cash inflows in relation to the proceeds on exercise

On 16 May 2014 the Group announced that it had entered into an exclusivity agreement for the sale of Virgin Mobite France [see note 29)
The results af Virgin Mobile France are therefora presented within discontinued operations and the Group s interest in that business
is presented as an asset held for sale
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24 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE continued
al GROUP BALANCE SHEET INTERESTS
The Group s interests in joint ventures are analysed as follows

Netassels

{Lrabataties] Goodwill Loans Totatl
2014 £m €m £m £m
Opening balance 414 103 20 537
Share of results (20 - - {201
Loans repaid [net) - — (2} ¥i]
Revaluation of interest in CPW Europe 1 — - 1
Disposal of interest in CPW Europe (3971 (103] - (5000
Reclassification of Virgin Mobile France to assets held for sale 7 - (18} (1
Foreign exchange ]] - - {51
Closing balance — - — -
CPW Europe - —_ - —
Virgin Mobile France - - — -
Closing balance - — — -_—

Net assets

[habilitest Goodwill teans Totat
03 Em Em Em Em
Opening balance 409 103 24 534
Share of results - - — -
Loans repaid [net) - — (4) {4
Share of other reserve movements 3 - - 3
Foreign exchange 2 - — 2
Closing balance 414 103 20 337
CPW Europe 423 103 — 524
Virgin Mobile France ] — 20 13
Closing balance 414 103 20 537
b) ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
The Group s assets held for sale are analysed as follows

2014 203

Virgim Mabile France £m Em
Share of net Liabilities (71 -
Loans 18 —
Assets held for sale 11 ~

Loans are provided to Virgin Mobile France under a sharehaldar agreement funding requirements are zgreed beiween the shareholders on a
regular basis and are provided in proportion to each party s shareholding Virgin Mobite France also has an overdrait facility and a third party

threa-year financing arrangement to pravide funding up to €25m in respact of capital expenditure
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FINARCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements continued

24 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE continued
c) ANALYSIS OF PROFITS AND LOSSES

The Group s share of the results of its joint ventures within continuing operations Is as follows
Period ended

26 June Restated

2013 2013

CPW Europe £m Em
Headline revenue* 777 3.337
Headline EBIT** 12 129
Net interest expense (2) (9
Taxation on Headline results (s) (25)
Headline profit after taxation 5 95
Group share of Headline profit after taxation 3 48
Group share of French operatians [in pracess of closurel [post-tax) (23] {45]
Group share of exceptional items [post-tax] — {5}
Group share of less after taxation (20) (2]

* Prior year comparatives have been restated to classify the resuits of the Group s operations in France as non-Headline Revenue associated weth this business
prior to the CPW Europe Acguisition was £45m {2013 £357m] Reported revenue on a statutory basis s £826m (2013 £3 6%4m)

** Headline EBIT includes the unwinding of discounts for the time value ¢f maney on network commissions receivable over the life of the customer This unwind
has a vailue of £3m for the period ended 26 June 2013 [year ended 31 March 2013 E£9m) and (s treated as interest income in the joint venture s statutory results

The Group s share of the resulls of its joint ventures within discontinued operations 1s analysed as follows

2014 2013
Virgin Mobile France £m £m
Revenue* 346 385
Headline EBIT 3 12
Net interest expense t1) (1l
Taxation on Headline results m 14]
Headline profit after taxation 1 7
Group share of Headline profit after taxation - 3
Group share of amortisation of acquisition intangibles {post-tax] —_ (1]
Group share of profit after taxation - 2

* Revenue excludes contributions towards subscriber acquisihon ¢osts from network operators and customers as the directors consider that this provides a better
representation of underlying performance These items which have a value of £48mn the year ended 29 March 2014 {2013 £74mj are netted off against acquisition
costs within Headline EBIT Reported revenue on a statutory basis for the year ended 29 March 2014 1s £394m (2013 £459m)

d] ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The Group s share of the assets and liabilities of CPW Eurcpe 1s as follows

2014 2013

£m fm

Non-current assets — 548
Cash and overdrafts [net] — 124
Other borrowings — {31
Other assets and labilities [net) —_ 172
Net assets — 841
Group share of net assets —_ 421
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24 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE continued
d} ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES continued
The Group s share of the assets and Liabilities of Virgin Mobile France 1s as follows

2014 2013
Em E£m

Non-current asseis 98 100
Cash and overdrafts [net) 2 2
Loans from the Group (18) (20
Other borrowings (34) (22]
Otherassets and labilities [net) (62) [75)
Net liabiities {14) [15)
Group share of net Liabibities (7 (7

There are no material centingent liabiltties in relation to Virgin Mobile France, which had no capital commiiments at the end of either year

2014 2013
Em fm
Total Group share of net {Liabilities] assets of joint ventures 7N 4

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Frnancial instruments that are measured at fair value in the financial statements require disclosure of fair value measurernents by level
based on the follewing fair value measurement hiararchy

— Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets far identtcal assets and habilitias

— Leval 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Leval { that are observable for the asset or hability either directly
(that s, as prices) or indirectly [that 1s derived from pricesl and

— Level 3 - inputs for the asset or Liabslity that are not based on observable market data [that 1s unobservable inputs}
The signtficant inputs required to fair value all of the Group s financial instruments are observable The Group enly holds Level 2 financial
instruments There have also been no transfers of assets or liahilities between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Fair values have been arrived at by discounting future cash flows, assuming no early redemption, or by revaluing forward currency
contracts to year-end market rates as appropriate to the instrument

The directors consider that the baok value of financial assets and Labilities recorded at amortised cost and their fair value are
approximately equal

The book value and fair value of the Group s financial assets babilities and derwvative financial instruments 1s as follows

2014 2013

£m Em

Cash and cash equivalents 283 17
Trade and other receivables excluding derivative financial assets 1.010 3
Derwative financial assets 2 -
Loans to Virgin Mobile France [see note 24) 18 20
Trade and other payables 869) 17}
Finance leases () -
Deferred consideration (s0) —
Loans and other borrowings (290l —

a) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Group s activities expose tt to certain financial nisks inctuding market risk [such as foregn exchange risk and interest rate nsk] credit
nisk and liquidity nisk The Group s treasury function which operates under approved treasury policies, uses certan financial instruments
to mitigate potentrally adverse effects on the Group s financial performance from these nsks These financial iInstruments consist of bank
loans and deposits spot and forward foreign exchange contracts foreign exchange swaps and interest rate swaps

b) FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group undertakes certawn transactions that are denominated (n foreign currencies and as a consequence has exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations These exposures pnmarily anise from stock purchases, with most of the Group s exposure being to Euro fluctuations The Group
uses spot and forward currency contracts to mitigate these exposures The translation nisk on converting overseas currency profits or losses
1S not hedged and such profits or losses are converted nto Sterling at average exchange rates throughaut the year Hedge accounting 1s not
apphied to other outstanding currency contracts and gains and losses are therefore recogrused directly n profit or loss

No coniracts with embedded denivatives have been identified and, accordingly no such derivatives have been accounted for separately
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FINANGIAL STATEMEKTS
Notes to the Group financial statements conunued

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

b) FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK continued
At 29 March 2014, the total notional principal amount of outstanding currency contracts was £68m (2013 £20m| Currency loans and foreign

exchange contracts are sensitive to movements In foreign exchange rates This sensitivity can be analysed (n comparison to year-end rates
(assurning all other variables remain constant] as follows

2014 2013

Intome Income

statement slatement

movement movermnent

£m £m

10% movement in the Sterling/Euro exchange rate 6 -
10% movement in the Sterling/Swedish Krena exchange rate 1 -

c) INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group s interest rate risk arises primarily on cash, cash equivalents and loans and ather barrowings, all of which are at fleating rates
of interest and which therefore expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk These floating rates are linked to LIBOR and other interest
rate bases as appropriate to the instrument and currency Future cash flows arising from these financial instruments depend on interest
rates and periods agreed at the time of rollover Group policy permits the use of long-term interest rate derwvatives in managing the risks
associated with movements in interest rates

The effect an the income statement and equity of 1% movements in the interest rate for the currencies in which most Group cash, cash
equivalents, loans and cther barrowings are denominated and on which the valuation of most derivative financial instruments s based
1s as follows, assuming that the year-end positions prevail throughout the year

2014 2013

Income lncome

statement staterment

movement movermnent

£m £m

1% movermentin the Sterling interest rate 4 i
1% movement in the Euro interest rate — —

d} LIQUIDITY RISK

Liqusdity risk 1s the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial Liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset The Group manages its exposure to liquidity risk by regularly reviewing the leng-term
and short-term cash flow projections for the business against the rescurces avalable to 1t

n order to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongoing and future developments, the Group has committed bank facilities,
excluding overdrafis repayable on demand totaling £650m (2013 nill In the prior year CPW Europe had a commutted £400m revolving
credit facility which was due to expire in July 2015 and which was replaced as part of the CPW Europe Acguisition by the £650m term and
revolving credit faciiity described in note 19

The table below analyses the Group s financiat assets and Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows assuming that interest rates remain constant and that borrowings are paid in full in the year
of maturity

<1year 1-2years 2-3years >3 years Total
20%4 £m £m £m £m £m
Finance leases 1] — — - m
Derwvative financial instruments — payable
Forward foreign exchange contracts {68) - - - (s8]
Interest rate swaps m — — - (1}
Dervative financtzl instruments - recevable
Forward foreign exchange contracts 68 — - —_ 48
Interest rate swaps - 1 3 — 4
Loans and other barrowings (8] (321 (56) [215) {311]
Deferred consideration {25} i25) — - (500
Trade and other payables (869] — — - (8691
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
d) LIQUIDITY RISK continued

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3years >3 years Fotal
2013 Em Em Em £m Em
Trade and other payables (17 - - - nn

e) CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparly to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and anises principally from the Group s receivables from customers The Group s exposure to credit risk is regutarly monitored
and the Group s policy 1s updated as appropriate

The large majonty of the Group s trade recewvables are balances due from MNOs, which are generally major multi-national enterprises
with whom the Group has well-established relationships and are consequently not considered to add significantly ta the Group s credit nisk
exposure The Group s trade recewvables also include balances due from equipment manufacturers, dealer customers and Cannected
World Services custemers Where it 1s considered appropriate, the Group obtains credit insurance on accounts receivable Provision s
made for any recewables that are considered 1o be irrecoverable Details of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are
provided 1n note 14

The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents and derwvative financial instruments are closely monitored and credit ratings are used
in determining maximum counterparty credit risk

The Group s funding 1s reliant on its £650m bank facilites which ara provided by nine banks these institutions are considered to be
adequately capitalised to continue to meet their obligations under the facitity

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which s net of impairment losses, represents the Group s
maximum exposure o credit risk

fi CAPITAL RISK

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to continue as going concerns, whilst maximising the
return to shareholders through a suitable mix of debt and equity The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents,
loans and other borrowings and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company compnising 1ssued capital, reserves and accumulated
profits Except In relation 1o mimirmum capital requirements in iis insurance business, the Group 1s not subject to any externatly imposed
capital reguirements The Group moniters its capital structure on an ongoing basis, including assessing the risks associated with each
class of capial

246 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year the Group had the follawing transactions and balances requiring disclosure with iis joint ventures [see also note 24)

Yirgin Yirgin

CPW Mahite CPW Mobile

Europe France Europe France

2014 2014 2013 03

£€m £m Em E£m

Revenue for services provided - 1 4 -
Net interest and other finance income — 1 — 1
Loans owed to the Group —_ 18 — 20
Other amounts owed to the Group -_ - i —
Other amounts owed by the Group - — (&) —

Revenue for services provided in the prier year relates to investment property rental income

Revenue for services provided to Virgin Mobile France in the current year relates to commissions on sales of Virgin Mobile France
connections by the Group s wholly owned operations in France

All transactions entered into with related parties were cormpleted on an arm s length basis

27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2014 ma3

Expenditure coniracted, but not provided for in the financial statements — —
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FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group financial statements coninued

28 OPERATING LEASES

a) LEASES AS LESSEE

The Group leases a number of retail units and offices under aperating leases The leases have varying terms, purchase optiens, escalation
clauses and renewal rights

1} FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS
At 29 March 2014, the Group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-canceilable operating leases
which fall due over the following periods

2014 2013

€m £m

Less than one year 9?3 —
Between one and five years 249 —
More than five years 130 —
472 —

The Group has some leases that inctude revenue-retated rental payments that are centingent on store performance The analysis above
includes only the mimimum rental cornponent

The total amaunt of future mimimum sub-lease payments expected to be recewed under non-cancellable sub-leases 15 £39m (2013 nil]
n) AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS

2014 2013
£m Em
Fixed rent expense 89 -
Sub-lease income m —
88 -
h] LEASES AS LESSOR
The Group has investment properties which are let to third parties on long-term leases
1} FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE RECEIPTS
At 29 March 2014, the Group had non-cancellable oparating leases which provided for receipts over the following periods
2014 2013
£m tm
Within one year 2 2
In two to five years 8 8
After five years 12 14
22 24

n) AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS
During the year ended 29 March 2014, the Group recorded £2m [2013 £6ml of investment property rental Income within revenue

29 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 15 May 2014, the Company announced that it had reached agreement on the terms for an all-share merger with Dixons Retail plc

{the "Merger | Under the terms of the Merger, ordinary shareholders in Dixons Retail ptc will for each of their shares in Dixons Retail ple
receive 0 155 shares in the Company, which will be renamed Dixans Carphone ple The Board considers that the Merger will deliver
significant value to Carphone shareholders through a combination of enhanced commercial opportunities and operating synergies which
are expected lo deliver recurring annual benefits of at least £80m by the 2017-18 financial year The Merger 1s expecied to be effected by
way of a scherne of arrangement and 1s condtional on the appreval of the ordinary shareholders of both the Company and Dixons Retail ple
and the sanction of the court

On 16 May 2014 the Company annauncad that alongside the other shareholders in the business 1t had entered into an exclusivity agreement
in respact of the proposed sale of Virgin Mobite France to Numericabla Group for an enterprise value of £325m DBuring the exclusivity periad
the parties have carred out the necessary consultations with emnployee work councils, and the transaction is subject to the approval of the
French competition authority
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Five-year record (unaudited)

HEADLINE RESULTS ~ CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Restated Restated Restated Restated
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
£&m £m Em fm Em
Group
Revenue 2,505 1 3 6 6
Share of results of CPW Europe 3 48 44 43 36
Other 99 4 3 [ {2)
Net profit 102 52 49 42 34
Earnings per share
- Basic 18 4 109 107 23 75
- Diluted 181 08 102 89 74
CPW proforma results*
Revenue 3,282 3,348 2,983 3,227 3.269
EBITDA 201 208 208 198 193
EBIT 151 132 128 118 106
Interest (18] i7l [14) 1 [18)
Taxation (301 (24) (19) (22) (191
Profit zfter taxation 103 9% 95 85 69

* Results are shown on a pro forma basis as though CPW Eurcpe had been 100% owned by the Group throughout the current and preceding periads

The financial results for the periods prior to the Demerger have been prepared on the basis that Lhe structure of the Group at Demerger

had been In place for the duratian of all periods reperted
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FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Company balance sheet
as at 29 March 2014 and 31 March 2013

2014 2013
Motes €m £m

Fixed assets
Investments 4 753 741
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 28 137
Debters due within one year 5 &L4 24

672 163
Creditors amounts falling due within one year ) 154} §22)
Net current assets 618 141
Total assets less current labilities 1.37M 882
Provisions 7 (2) {6l
Loans payable 8 (290} -
Net assets 1,07% 876
Equity
Share capital 9 1 1
Share premium reserve 9 283 170
Profit and loss account 9 795 705
Capital redemption reserve 9 - —
Total capital employed 1,079 874

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Company halance sheet

The financiat staterents of the Company on pages 98 to 103 were approved by the Board on 25 June 2014 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Andrew Harrison Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a] BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company 1s incorperated in the United Kingdormn The financial staternents have been prepared en a gaing concern basis [see note 1 to the
Group financial statements] and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards under Lhe historical cost convention,
as modifted by FRS 26 Finzncial Instruments Measurement

The Group s financial statements for the year endad 29 March 2014 contain a consolidated cash flow statement Conseguently, the Company
has appliad the exemption in FRS 1 Cash Flow Statements not to present its own cash flow statement

The followtng principal accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout both years

b) INVESTMENTS

Investments held in subsidiartes and joint ventures are recognised at cost, being the fair value of consideration, acquisition charges
associated with the investment and capital contributions by way of share-based payments less any prowvision for permanent diminution
In value

investments where the Company does not have control or significant influence are treated as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value
Changes in fair value together with any related deferred taxation are taken directly to reserves and recycled to the profit and loss account
when the investment 1s scld oris determined to be impaired

¢) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant and expensed over the vesting peniod, based
on an estimate of the number of shares that will eventually vest

Fair value 1s measured by use of a Binomiat model for share-based payments with internal performance criterra [such as EPS targets)
and a Monta Carlo model for those with external performance criteria (such as TSR targets)

For schemes with internal performance criterta the number of options expected to vest 1s recalculated at each baiance sheet date, based
on expectations of performance against target and of leavers prior to vesting The movement in curnulative expense since the grevious
balance sheet date i1s recagnised in the profit and loss account, with a corresponding entry in reserves

For schemes with external perfarmance critersa, the number of options expected to vest is adjusted only for expectations of teavers prior
to vesting The mavement in cumulative expanse since the previous balance sheet date 15 recognised in the profit and loss account
with a correspending entry In reserves

If a share-based payment scheme Is cancelled, any remaiming part of the fair value of the scheme is expensed through the profit and loss
account If a share-based payment scheme is forfeited, no further expense Is recegrused and any charges previously recognised through
the profit and loss account are reversed

Charges also arise on loans that are provided to employees to fund the purchase of shares v the Group as part of long-term incentive
glans to the extent to which the loans are not, in certain circumstances, repayable, the cost of the relevant part of such loans 1s expensed
over ihe course of the relevant incentive plans

d) DIVIDENDS
Dividends recevable from the Company s subsidiaries are recognised only when they are approved by sharehalders

Final dividend distributions to the Company s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial staternents in the year in which
they are approved by the Company s shareholders Interim and other dividends are recognisad in the year in which thay are paid

€] FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Material transactions in foreign currencies are hedged using forward purchases or sales of the relevant currencies and are recognised n
the financial statements at the exchange rates thus obiained Unhedged transactians are recorded at the exchange rate on the date of the
transaction Material monetary assets and Liabtlities denomnated in foreign currencies are hedged mainly using forward foretgn exchange
contracts to create matching babilities and asseis and are retranslated at each balance sheet date Hedge accounting as defined by FRS 26
has been applied in the both years

f)LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Bank fees and legal costs associated with the securing of externat financing are capitalised and amortised over the term of the relevant
facility All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit and loss account in the pertod in which they are incurred

gl PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when a legal or canstructive obligation exists as a result of past events and it 1s probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle tha obligattion and a reltable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation Prowvisions
are discounted where the time value of money is considered to be material
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FENANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to the Company financial statements contnues

2PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

In accordanca with the exemption permitied by section 408 of the Companies Act 2004, the profit and loss account of the Company I1s net
presented separately The profit recognised for the year to 29 March 2014 was £19m (2013 tass of €4m] Information regarding the audit
fees for the Group 1s provided in note 3 ta the Group financial statements

3 EQUITY DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS
The following dividends and distributions were paid during the year

2016 2013
£m E€m
Redemption of 172p per B share through the B/C Share Scheme — 33
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of 3 25p per ordinary share - 15
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of 1 75p per ordinary share — 8
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 of 3 25p per ordinary share 19 -
Interim dividend for the year ended 29 March 2014 of 2 00p per ordinary share 1" —
30 56

The following distribution is proposed but had not been effected at 22 March 2014
£m
Finat dividend for the year ended 29 March 2014 of 4 00p per ordinary share 23

The proposed final dwvidend for the year ended 29 March 2014 1s subject 1o shareholders approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements

4 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

2014 2013

£m fm

Opening balance 741 750
Additions 12 —
Impairments - 9l
Closing balance 753 741
Cost 851 839
Accumulated impairments (98) {98}
Net carrying amount 753 741

Fixed asset investments comprise investments in subsidiary undertakings, jeint venture investments and other minonity investments
Details of the Company s 1nvestments 1n material subsidiary undertakings are provided in note 12 to the Group financial statements

Additions during the year ended 29 March 2014 primarly reflect the cost of sharas 1ssued to satisfy Best Buy s abligations in relation
to incentive schemes {see note 23 to the Group financial statementsl

In the prior year, CPW Acton One Limited disposed of its investment property in Acton Landon for £40 5min cash Following this transaction
the net assels of CPW Acton One Limited fell below the value of the Company s investment in that company resulling in animpairmant
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5 DEBTORS: DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2014 2033
£m €m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 614 4
Loans to joint ventures 18 20
Deferred tax asset 2 1
Prepayments 5 -
Otherdebtors 5 1
844 2%

Amaunts awed by Group undertakings are repayable within 12 months of the balance sheet date

Other debtors include loans of £1m to senior employees of the Group in relation to the Carphone Warehouse Share Plan as explained in

note 5b to the Group financial statements
& CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2014 2013
&m £m
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 21 i
Other creditors 5 1
Accruals and deferred income 28 20
54 22
7 PROVISIONS
2014 2013
£m £m
Opening balance 6 9
Utilised in the year (4] .
Released in the year — (3
Closing balance 2 6
8 LOANS PAYABLE
2014 2013
£m Em
Loans payable 290 -
290 —

Details of loans payable are provided in note 19 to the Group financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Company financial statements contoued

9 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED PROFITS

al SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013 2014 2013
mzthion million £m Em
Allotted called-up and fully paid ordinary shares of 0 1p each 576 473 1 1
Share Profit Capital
Share premum andless redemption
capital reserva account raserva Total
2014 €m £m Em £m €m
Opening balance 1 170 705 — 876
Net profit for the year - — 19 — 19
Other camprehensive income - —_ 2 - 2
I1ssue of shares - 113 103 - 216
Equity dividends — — (30 — (301
Net movernent in relation to share schemes —_ —_ (4} — F4]
Closing balance 1 283 795 — 1,079
Share Profit Capntal
Share premiuem andloss  redemption
capital reserve account reserve Total
2013 £m Em £m Em £m
Opemning balance 34 170 175 557 936
Net loss for the year - - {4) - 4]
Redemption of shares £33) - (33} 33 [33)
Equity dividends - — (231 - (23]
Capital reduction - - 590 (590} -
Net movement in relation to share schemes - - - - -
Closing halance 1 170 705 - 876

Note 20 1o the Group financial statements provides further details of the issue of shares

For details of the Company s equity dividends and othar distributions see note 3
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10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has applied the exemption under FRS 25 Financial Instruments Presentation not to disclose details of financial instrumants
held by the Company Full disctosure of the Group s financral Instruments under FRS 29 IFRS 7] Financiat Instruments Disclosures and |AS 39
Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement 1s provided in note 25 to the Group financial statements

11 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 15 May 2014, the Company announced that it had reached agreement on the terms for an all-share merger with Dixons Retail plc [the "Merger”]
Under the terms of the Merger, ordinary shareholders in Dixons Retail plc will for each of their shares in Dixons Retail plc recewe 0155 shares
in the Company which will be renamed Dixons Carphone plc The Board considers that the Merger will deliver sigmificant value to Carphone
shareholders through a combination of enhanced commercial opportunities and operating synergies, which are expected to deliver recurring
annual benafits of at least £80m by the 2017-18 financial year The Merger 1s expected to be effected by way of a scheme of arrangement
and 1s conditional on the approval of the ordinary shareholders of both the Company and Dixons Retail plc and the sanction of the court

On 16 May 2014 the Company announced that, alongside the other shareholders in the business, it had entered into an exclusvity sgreement
in respact of the proposed sale of Virgin Mobile France to Numenicable Group for an enterprise value of £325m During the exclusvity period
the parties have carried out the necessary consultations with employee work councils, and the transaction 1s subject to the approval of the
French competition authority

12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Campany has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures not to provide details of related party

transactions with other Group compantes, as the Company s financial statements are presented together with the conselidated Group
financial statements

During the year the Company had the following disclosable transactions and balances with Its joint ventures

2014 2013
virgin Virgin
CPW Mohile CPW Mobile
Europe France Europe France
£m £m £m £m
Net interest and other finance income — 1 - 1
Loans owed to the Company — 18 - 20
Other amounts owed to the Company - - - -
Other amounts owed by the Company - — (6} —
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OTHER STATUTORY
INFORMATION

Shareholder and corporate information

Carphone Warehouse 1s listed on the main market of the London Stock Exchange (stock symbol CPW]
It became eligible for FTSE UK index series inclusion during December 2013 and 1s a constituent

of the FTSE 250

REGISTRAR
EQUINITE LIMITED

Aspect House

Spencer Road, Lancing

West Sussex BN9? 4DA

United Kingdom

0871 384 2089 (UK onlyl*/+44 (01121 415 7047 [from outside the UK)

*Calls to the 0871 number cost 8p per munute plus netwerk extras
Lines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday

You can manage your shareholdings via an electronic communications
service called Shareview - www shareview co uk To register you
will need your shareholder reference number which can be found
on your share certificate, dividend tax voucher or proxy card
Registration 1s free

UK CAPITAL GAINS TAX
Please refer to the corporate website for guidance on the apportionment
of the tax cost base of Carphone Warehouse shares for UK capital

gains tax purposes
wwww cpwplc com/finvestor-relations/shareholder-information/capital-gans-tax/

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2014

Financial year end 29 March
Preliminary results 2013-14 26 June
Ex-dividend date [final dividend 2013-14] ? July
Record date [final dwidend 2013-14) 11 July
Annual general meeting 23 July
intended dividend payment date

[final dividend 201314} 1 August
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REGISTERED OFFICE/HEAD OFFICE

1 Portal Way
London W3 6RS
United Kingdom
+44 [0]20 85617 4002
www cpwplc com

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER
07105905

GOMPANY SECRETARY

Enquines should be directed to

Tim Mornis
Company Secretary and General Counsel
cpwplclegal@cpwplc com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Enquiries should be directed to

Kate Ferry Investor Relations Director
Kerry Becker, Investor Relations Manager
irfdcpwplc com

ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

AUDITORS

DELOITTE LLP

2 New Street Square
London EC4A 3BZ

JOINT STOCKBROKERS
DEUTSCRE BANK AG

1 Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 20B

UBS INVESTMENT BANK
1 Finsbury Avenue
L.ondon EC2M 2PP




Glossary and definitions

The foltowing definitions apply throughout this annual report unless the context otherwise requires

ACQUISITION
INTANGIBLES

ARPU

B/C SHARE SCHEME

BEST BUY

BEST BUY EUROPE

BEST BUY
JOINTVENTURE
TRANSACTION

BEST BUY MOBILE

BEST BUY MOBILE
BISPOSAL

BESTBUYUK

BOARD

CARPHONE
OR THE COMPANY

CARPHONE GRQUP
OR GROUP

cGU
CIRCULAR

CONSIDERATION
SHARES

CPWOR CARPHONE
WAREHOUSE

CPW EUROPE

CPW EUROPE
ACQUISITION
DEMERGER
EARNINGS
EBIT

EBITDA

EPS
ESOT

HEADLINE RESULTS

Acquired sntangrble assets such as customer bases
brands and other iniangible assets acquired through
a business combination capitalisad separately

fram goodwall

Average revenue per user

The scherme used to return the imitial proceeds from
the Best Buy Mobile Disposal to shareholders

Best Buy Co Inc bincorperated in the United States)
and s subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures
and associates

Best Buy Europe Distnbuuens Limited and its subsidares
and interests in jornt ventures and associates
lincorperated in England and Wales]

Old Carphone Warehouse s disposal of a 50%
interest in its mobite retail and distribution businass
{Best Buy Europe] including its economic interests
in Best Buy Mabile 1n June 2008

Best Buy s retail operations in respect of mabile phones
and other connected devices inwhich Best Buy Europe
had a prefit share arrangement

The disposal of the Group s interest in Best Buy Mobile
to Best Buy

Best Buy Europe s Best Buy branded Big Box stores
and online business

The Beard of directers of the Company

Carphone Warehouse Group Public Limited Company
lincerporated in England and Wales under the Act
with registered number 07105905] whose regqistered
office 1s at 1 Portai Way London W3 6RS

The Company its subsidianes interests in joint
ventures and other investmenis

Cash generating unt

The circular betng sent to shareholdess in respect
of the Merger

The 42 1m ordinary shares in the Company issued
to Best Buy on 25 June 2013 at a pnice of £1 90 per share
1n connection with the CPYW Europe Acquisition

The continuing bustness of the Carphone Group
excluding its interest in Virgin Mobile France

Best Buy Europe s core continuing operations

The Company s acquisition of Best Buy s interest
in CPW Europe which completed on 26 June 2013

The demerger of 0ld Carphone Warehouse into the
Group and TalkTalk Group eifective on 26 March 2010

Profit or loss after taxation unless the context
otherwise requires

Earrings before investment incerme mterest
and taxation

Earnings before imvestment income interest taxation
depreciation and amortisation

Earmings per share [basic unless otherwse indicated)
Employee share ownership trust

Resulls before non Headline results The phrases
“Headline earmings™ ~Headline EBIT™ "Headline
EBITDA” and "Headline EPS should be interpreted
in the samz way The Headline resulis of the Group 5
joint ventures also include certain reclassifications
as dtaited in note 24 19 the Group financial stzterments
to aid understanding of underlying performance

HMRC

IFRS

MERGER

MNO

MVNO

MTR

NEW CPW

NON-HEADLINE
RESULTS

NPS

OLD CARPHONE
WAREHOUSE

COLD CARPHONE
WAREHOUSE GROUP
OPERATING FREE
CASHFLOW

PARTICIPATION PLAN

PAT
PBY

PRO FORMA

PROSPECTUS

ROCE

RCF

TALKTALK OR
TALKTALK GRGUP

TSR

UK GAAP

YES

YIRGIN MOBILE
FRANCE

Her Majesty s Revenue and Customs

Internaticnal Finanoial Reperting Standards
as adopted by the Eurepean Unian

The proposed merger of Dixons Retail ple
and Carphene

Mabile network aperator
Mebile wirtual network operator
Mcbile termination rates

New CPW Lirited [iIncorporated in Engtand
and Wales)

items which have been excluded from Headline
results to avoid distortion of underlying perfermance
Comprises exceptional tems which are censidered

1o be cne-off and sa malersal that they require separate
disclosure to avoid distortion of underlying performance
the results of businesses which have been discontinued
and arnortisation of acquisition intangibles

Net promioter score a rating used by the Group to
measure customers kkelihood to recommend CPW

TatkTalk Telecorn Holdings Lirmited (formerly
The Carphone Warehouse Group PLLC™|
lincorporated in England and Wales)

0Old Carphone Warehouse and its subsidiaries and
Intarests in joint ventures prior to the Demerger

EBITDA less capital expendiiure and operating cash
flows 1n respect of working capital used asa measure
cof cperaling cash generation

The Carphone Warehouse Group plc Participation
Plan 2011

Profit after taxation
Profit before taxation

Results aggregating CPW Europe and the Group s
wholly owned businesses as lhough CPW Europe had
been 100% owned by the Group in the relevant penod

The prospectus betng sent to shareholders in respect
of the Merger

Returm on capital employed Net profit as a percentage
of capital employed calculated using Headline earnings
and wath capiiat employed defined as average equity
and average non-current debt Averages are calculated
based on the opening and closing positions for the
relevant year

Revolving credit faciity

TalkTalk Telecom Group PLC and its subsidwanes
and cther investments

Total shareholder return

United Kingdern Accounting Standards
and applicable law

Value enhancement scheme

Omer Telecom Limuted incorporated in England
and Wales) and its subsidianes operating an MVNO
in France as a joint venture betwaen the Company
Bluebotite UK Limited and Financom S AS

Carphone Warehouse Group plc
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